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To transform the Company into a modern and dynamic cement manufacturing unit fully 
equipped to play a meaningful role on sustainable basis in the economy of Pakistan.

Mission
To provide quality products to customers at competitive prices; and
To generate sufficient profit to add to the shareholder’s value.

Vision
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE 

It gives me great pleasure to place before you the Annual Report of Thatta Cement Company Limited for the year ended June 30, 
2020.

Overall Business Performance 

During the year under review, Gross Profit Margin of the Company has decreased from 19.37% to just 2.97% on year to year basis. 
The Company suffered a loss after tax of Rs. 158.02 Million as compared to profit of Rs. 213.52 Million last year. The key factors 
for this significant decline in profit were reduction in retention price, low demand, increasing input costs, higher interest rates and 
currency devaluation. 

The results of the Company’s operations are dealt with in further detail in the annexed Directors’ Report and Financial Statements.

Overall Board Performance 

The company complies with the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 with respect to the Composition, procedures and meetings of Board of Directors and its committees.  
Code of Corporate Governance requires an annual evaluation of Board of Directors and its committees. The purpose of this evaluation 
is to bring improvement in the overall governance of the Company, efficiencies in Board process, enhancement of role of individual 
directors and sound support of Board Committees facilitating in discharging its responsibilities to achieve the objectives set for the 
Company.

The Board has approved a formal process for its performance evaluation and adopted self-evaluation mechanism based on 
comprehensive questionnaire. The obligation to undertake annual evaluation process is assigned to the Human Resource Committee 
of the Board. Accordingly, the performance evaluation of the Board, its members and Committees of the Board for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 was conducted as per mechanism approved by the Board and I report that:

The overall performance of the Board, Members and Committees of the Board on the basis of approved criteria for the year was 
satisfactory.

The overall assessment as satisfactory is based on an evaluation of the following integral components, which have a direct bearing 
on Board’s role in achievement of company’s objectives.

 Composition of the Board and meeting procedures.
 Vision and strategic direction
 Monitoring of Company’s performance
 Overall roles and responsibilities 
 Relationship among the Board and Management
 Composition and performance of Board Committees.

In the end, I would like to commend my fellow directors for their commitment and the contribution they make to our strategic 
deliberations. On behalf of the Board, I would also like to thank every one of our stakeholders for their valuable contribution for the 
success of the Company. 
 

Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis
Chairman  
September 30, 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present herewith their report and the audited financial statements together with 
auditors’ report for the year ended June 30, 2020.

OVERVIEW  

Production and dispatches for the year ended on June 30, 2020 are as follows:

The clinker production of your Company during the year under review was 258,158 tons resulting in capacity utilization of 47.07% in 
comparison with the clinker production of 470,245 tons implying capacity utilization of 85.75% during the corresponding year. 

Industry Review 

During the year 2019-2020, domestic cement dispatches registered a decline of 1% from 40.3 million tons to 40.0 million tons for the 
year under review. Exports dispatches registered an increase of 20% from 6.54 million tons to 7.85 million tons during the year. 
However, export performance were somehow reassuring during the current financial year which improved overall industry volumes by 
2% to 47.81 million tons for the financial year ended June 30, 2020 as compared to 46.88 million tons last year. 

In the Southern region, local dispatches exhibited a decline of 29.37% in volumetric terms from 7.98 million tons to 5.64 million tons 
whereas export dispatches registered an increase of 46.47% from 4.01 million tons to 5.88 million tons as compared to the 
corresponding year.

Due to tax reforms announced by government, imposition of axle load policy and stringent policies and procedures regarding Know Your 
Customer adversely affected the economy and resulted in slow down of construction activities in the Country. This has in-turn resulted 
in reduced demand of cement hence affected the sales and profitability of entire sector. 

Moreover, since the outbreak of Pandemic Coronavirus (COVID-19) there was lock down situation at both local and global levels, 
especially in the fourth quarter of the year, which adversely affected the performance of local and global markets. Such conditions 
brought most of the national infrastructure investment projects to a standstill, disrupted the normal pace of economic operations and 
affected all the sectors of the economy, including cement industry, which resulted in significant decline in sales of entire cement sector.  

Sales Review

During the financial year under review, overall company’s sales declined by 49.84% in volumetric terms as compared to last year. 
Where, the export sales declined by 70.36% and local sales declined by 41.81%. The main factor was stiff price competition due to 
availability of excess capacities that negatively impacted on the sales volumes of the Company.

%
Production    
Clinker 258,158 470,245 (212,087) (45.1)
Cement 197,463 366,649 (169,186) (46.14)
GGBFS  -   260 (260) (100)
    
Dispatches    
Cement 196,251 368,057 (171,806) (46.68)
Clinker  83,237 188,890 (105,653) (55.93)
GGBFS  -   260 (260) (100)
Total 279,488 557,207 (277,719) (49.84)

Description

-------------------------- Metric Tons --------------------------

2020 2019 Variance
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Cost of sales to sales ratio has increased to 97.03% during the year as compared to 81% in the corresponding year. Increase is mainly 
attributable to fixed cost charged as period cost in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, due to lower production of 
clinker in relation to Installed capacity during the year particularly in the fourth quarter due to lock-down situation. Moreover, there is rising 
trend in prices of packing material, transportation charges and other input cost along with the impact of devaluation of Pak rupee against 
US$. Consequently gross margins are reduced significantly from 19.37% to 2.97% as compared with last year.

Distribution cost during the year decreased to Rs. 89.8 million as compared to Rs. 220.25 million last year. The main reason for this 
decrease is due to decline in export sales revenue by 71.86%.

Loss for the year and future prospects

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company suffered loss after tax of Rs 158 million (2019: profit after tax of Rs. 213.5 million). This 
resulted in loss per share of Rs 1.58 (June 30, 2019: earnings per share of Rs 2.14). The factors that contributed in loss include low 
demand of cement, massive devaluation of Pak Rupee, rise in interest rates, decline in cement prices, substantial increase in Federal Excise 
Duty and higher input costs coupled with lock-down situation on top of prevailing economic depression in the country. All these factors were 
beyond control of the Company’s management. Despite all these unfavorable factors, the Company managed to timely comply with all the 
financial commitments during the year. 

The economic relief measures put in place by the Government to mitigate the effects of COVID-19 including various incentives for the 
construction industry will be successful. This, coupled with government’s particular focus on infrastructure development and housing, will 
result in higher domestic cement consumption in the year 2020-2021. Higher cement demand should result in much needed stability in 
cement prices and therefore, higher revenues.

Dividend 

As the Company has incurred a loss after tax for year ended June 30, 2020, the Directors have decided not to make any dividend 
appropriation for the year

Impact of Company’s business on the environment

The major impact of cement manufacturing business on environment is related to particulate matter and fugitive dust emissions of both 
inhalable and respirable micron sizes emitted from processes adopted for clinker production that cause a chronic fatal disease i.e. Silicosis.

The Company has a dedicated and qualified staff to meet the statutory and regulatory compliances of SEPA and SEQS standards. Being 
proactive on the impact of company’s business on the environment, the Company has installed de-dusting equipment such as dust cyclones, 
bag houses, dust suppression by damping down method, electrostatic precipitators, personal protective equipment and speed limit controls 
in Company’s premises to overcome RSPM (respirable suspended particulate matter) and FRD (fugitive road dust). 

Moreover, Environmental Quality Standards for ambient Air, Drinking Water, Noise and all other parameters are complied as required by 
SEPA Act 2014. Monitoring and Analysis procedures are also implemented through SEPA Certified Environmental Laboratory.
 
The Subsidiary Company of TCCL installed Waste Heat Recovery System (WHRS) to ensure the active contribution in minimizing Global 
Warming Impacts and to reduce the Carbon Emissions resulting from cement production and power generation.

In addition to above, Covid-19 pandemic is a global health crisis and the greatest challenge in recent times. The Company adopted the best 
practices and guidelines given by global health institutions and the Government of Pakistan to ensure safe operations.

 Sales – net  1,755,227 3,468,411
 Gross profit  52,100 671,967
 Selling & Distribution Cost  89,760 220,258
 Finance Cost   44,153 50,620
 (Loss)/Profit before taxation  (140,934) 295,318
 (Loss)/Profit for the year  (158,018) 213,522
 (Loss)/Earnings per share (Rupees)  (1.58) 2.14

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
Particulars

Financial Review 

A comparison of key financial results of your Company’s performance for the year ended June 30, 2020 with last year is as under:
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Following were the major initiatives taken in this regard; 

 Business Continuity Plan (BCP) related to Covid-19 is in place.
 Implementation of SOPs issued by Government of Sindh. 
 Employees were encouraged to work from home.
 Telecom / virtual meetings both at plant and Head office are being encouraged.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company always strives to discharge its social responsibilities towards the society. The 
Company promotes and facilitates welfare of the local communities in the town where the Company operates. During the year, the 
Company has arranged various safety and health awareness sessions.  Further, a well equipped Silicosis Diagnostic & health screening 
center with a suitably qualified staff has been established. 
 
Adequacy of internal financial controls 

All the necessary steps are being taken by the Directors to ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control systems 
up to and including the date of approval of the financial statements. This had regard to all material controls, including financial, 
operational and compliance controls that could affect the Company’s business.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions entered into were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors of the 
Company in compliance with the PSX Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Moreover, In terms of the requirement of 
section 208 of Companies Act, 2017[Act], following matters are included herein.
 
a. Renewal of Loan / Advance facility aggregating to Rs 300 million for Thatta Power (Private) Limited, Subsidiary Company[SC]

 Thatta Cement Company Limited (TCCL) had sought approval from its shareholders in Annual General Meeting [AGM] held on 
October 16, 2015, to provide advance/loan facility to SC to honor its financial obligations and to meet its working capital 
requirements. Thereafter, approval for annual renewal of aforesaid facility is being sought for a period of one year in each AGM(s). 
The approval of said advance/loan facility is valid upto the holding of AGM of the Company to be held on October 26, 2020. 

 However, increasing trade debts of the Subsidiary Company as of June 30, 2020 which mainly represents receivable from 
HESCO indicates that there is a delay in payment of electricity bills by HESCO; hence SC may require financial support to honor 
its financial obligations and to meet its working capital requirements. This in turn enables SC to provide uninterrupted supply of 
electricity to TCCL for sustainable cement production. Therefore, it is proposed to seek renewal for advance/loan facility to SC to 
ensure availability of sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations. Accordingly, a Statement of fact under section 
134(3) of the Act is annexed to the annual report setting out all material facts along with justification concerning the aforesaid 
matter. 

b. Waste Heat Utilization Agreement [WHUA] with Thatta Power (Private) Limited, Subsidiary Company[SC]

 Waste Heat Recovery Project [WHRP] of Subsidiary Company for generating 5 MW electricity has started its commercial 
operations during the year. TCCL will provide waste heat released from Air Quenching Chamber & Suspension Pre-heater to the 
Subsidiary Company to produce super heated steam. For that purpose, TCCL executed a WHUA to provide waste heat to the 
SC. 

c. Service Level Agreement with Thatta Power (Private) Limited, Subsidiary Company[SC]

 TCCL is providing business support services to its SC to facilitate their day to day operations. For that purpose, a service level 
agreement is in place which specifies scope of services and related terms and conditions.  The said agreement was approved by 
the respective Board of Directors of TCCL and SC.

d. Power Purchase Agreement with Thatta Power (Private) Limited, Subsidiary Company [SC] for supply of electricity to TCCL.

 TCCL has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement [PPA] on December 12, 2011 with SC for supplying of electricity. SC 
started its commercial operation effective from December 12, 2012. The pricing mechanism for invoicing/billing against supply 
of electricity along with terms and conditions are mentioned in the said PPA. The PPA was executed in accordance with the New 
Captive Power Policy, 2009. 
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Corporate and Financial Reporting 

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of Thatta Cement Company Limited present fairly its state of affairs, the 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. All necessary steps are being taken to ensure good Corporate 
Governance.

 
b. Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.

c. The financial statements together with notes thereto have been drawn in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017. International 
Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation 
of financial statements and there has been no material departure therefrom.

 
d. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting 

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e. The system of internal control has been effectively implemented and is continuously reviewed and monitored.

f. The Company is a going concern and there is no doubt at all about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g. There is nothing outstanding against the Company on account of taxes, duties, levies, and other charges except for those which 
are being made in the normal course of business and disclosed in the financial statements.

h. The Company maintains Provident and Gratuity Fund for its permanent employees. Stated below are the amount charged by the 
Company in profit and loss:

 a. Provident Fund Rs 9.507 million
 b. Gratuity Fund Rs.  17.262 million

i. The value of investments as per audited accounts of retirement benefit plans of Thatta Cement Company Limited as at June 30, 
2020 are as follows:

 a. Provident Fund Rs.  85.80 million 
 b. Gratuity Fund Rs.  55.38 million 

j. Key operating and financial statistics for the last six years have been given separately.

k. Detail statement of number of Board, Audit Committee and Human Resources & Remuneration Committee meetings held during 
the year and attendance by each director/member is annexed to this report separately as Annexure I as required under 227(2)(a) 
of the Companies Act, 2017.

l. Pattern of Shareholding of the Company in accordance with section 227(2)(f) of the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed to this 
report.

Changes in Board of Directors

During the year, following changes on the board due to casual vacancies were reported on Pakistan Stock Exchange and Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Shahid Aziz Siddiqui [Due to sad demise ] 
w.e.f November 08, 2019 

Muhammad Aslam Shaikh 
w.e.f February 04, 2020 

Muhammad Taha Hamdani  
w.e.f December 23, 2019 

Muhammad Jamshid Malik  
w.e.f February 24, 2020 

Name of outgoing director with date of
resignation

Name of incoming director with date of
appointment
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Code of Corporate Governance

a. The ‘Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance’ is annexed to this report.

b. Mentioned below is the Composition of Board of Directors to be included in Annual Report under section 227 of the 
Companies Act, 2017:

Description Number of directors 

a) Male 6
b) Female 1

Composition

I.    Independent Directors 4  
II.   Non-Executive  2
III.  Executive Director 1
IV.  Female Director 1

(c) The details of Board Sub-Committees is given on page 03 of annual report.

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration of Directors is governed by the Articles of Association of the Company which requires that the remuneration of a 
Director to be paid to every Director for attending the Meeting of the Directors or a committee of directors shall from time to time 
be determined by the Board of Directors taking into account the competencies and efforts in the light of scope of their responsibilities.

The details of the remuneration paid to the executive director (chief executive) of the Company is disclosed in Note 39 of the 
Standalone financial statements.

Board Evaluation
 
As required under the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2019, an annual evaluation of performance of 
the Board, members of the Board and its Committees was carried out to ensure that Board’s overall performance and effectiveness 
is measured against the objectives set for the company. For that purpose, Board has developed a mechanism for evaluation of 
Board’s own performance, members of the Board and its Committees. Based on the evaluation, overall performance of the Board, 
members and Committees of the Board for the year under review is satisfactory. 

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place between the end of the financial 
year and the date of Director’s Report.

Default in Payments

There were no defaults in payment of any debts falling due during the current year.

External Auditors

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company keeping in view the best practices for rotation 
of auditors as per Regulation 33(2) of Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2019, has proposed the appointment of M/s. BDO 
Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021. 

The appointment of existing auditors M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman & Co, Chartered Accountants was approved by Shareholders 
of the Company during Annual General Meeting of the Company held on  October 16, 2015.
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Statement of Financial Position 
   
Property, plant and equipment   4,325,672   4,392,538 
Stock-in-Trade   394,514   370,977 
Trade Debts   937,558   881,813 
Paid-up Share Capital   997,181   997,181 
Total Equity - Holding Company   3,609,010   3,639,915 
Trade and Other payables   472,428   428,056 
Short Term Borrowings   306,544   285,080 
   
Statement of Profit or Loss   
Sales - net    2,435,037   4,134,378 
Gross Profit   361,606   1,070,780 
Selling, Distribution cost & Administrative Expense   180,277   338,721 
Profit before taxation   65,327   646,927 
Profit  for the year   39,679   559,610 
(Loss)/ Earnings per share (in Rupees)   (0.35) 4.31

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Future Outlook

As the active Covid-19 cases have reduced significantly in the country and all the restriction imposed by the Government are now 
lifted. As the macro-economic situation has shown signs of improvement, cement operations in Pakistan are also showing strong 
signs of recovery and it is expected that the cement industry will continue to improve due to increase in demand in both domestic and 
international markets. 
  
Federal excise duty was reduced by 25% by the Federal Government as part of Construction package and other major initiatives to 
boost construction activities in the Country such as announcement of various development projects will definitely spur the demand of 
cement in upcoming periods. However, a significant push is expected to arise from big ticket projects like construction of small and 
large-capacity / multipurpose water reservoirs / dams, construction of Special Economic Zones as part of CPEC projects, and 
low-cost affordable houses for the public at large.

Moreover, during the current year, the Government also slashed the discount rate to 7% in order to stimulate the economic activity 
in view of reduction in growth rate due to outbreak of COVID-19. Considering the steps taken by the Government we are hopeful that 
in future economic slowdown currently facing the country would begin to reverse.

The management is alive to the challenges ahead and is continuously evolving strategies and adopting appropriate measures to 
mitigate market risks, meet future challenges and maintain business growth.

Performance of the Group

In compliance with section 226(4) of the Companies Act, 2017 attached with this report are the consolidated financial statements 
of Thatta Cement Company Limited (the Holding Company) and Thatta Power (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) for the / as 
at year ended June 30, 2020.

Operating Results

Thatta Power (Private) Limited – Captive Power Plant 

Thatta Power (Private) Limited (TPPL), subsidiary of Thatta Cement Company Limited (TCCL) has earned a profit after tax of Rs 
195.16 million; however, distribution of dividend to the shareholders of TPPL cannot be made this year, due to restricting covenants 
of financing agreements executed by the Subsidiary Company. Thus, distribution of profit to shareholders of the Subsidiary Company 
would be made in future subject to compliance of covenants of financing agreements. 
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The Subsidiary Company entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with HESCO on May 14, 2011 to sell electricity at rates 
agreed in the said agreement. The agreement was executed in accordance with the New Captive Power Policy (N-CPP) 2009. 
Subsequently, National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) issued an order revising the tariff formula resulting in reduced 
tariff. This act of downward revising the tariff for N-CPPs was unwarranted especially where there is severe electricity shortage in 
the province of Sindh.  In view of the said order, HESCO intimated to pay its dues for electricity purchased as per the revised tariff 
formula. In response, the Subsidiary Company filed a petition before the Honorable High Court of Sindh, against HESCO, on the 
grounds that HESCO failed to pay its dues to the Subsidiary Company as per PPA. The Honorable High Court of Sindh disposed off 
the petition filed by TPPL with the direction to HESCO to pay TPPL against purchase of electricity as per the rates stipulated in PPA 
until 01-02-2012 and thereafter on the rates determined by NEPRA. In view of the adverse order and according to the advice of the 
legal counsel the Company had filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan on October 28, 2015 against the order passed 
by the High Court of Sindh. Consequently, HESCO & NEPRA have also filed appeals before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the 
same order, which are pending for adjudication. 

WASTE HEAT RECOVERY [WHR] PROJECT OF THATTA POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED
 
By the grace of Allah the Almighty, test run of Waste Heat Recovery [WHR] has been successfully completed and the project has 
started its commercial production during the year under review. This WHR project is another milestone achieved by your company 
and will serve to significantly reduce the production cost of subsidiary company, improved efficiency and environment control by 
reducing company’s carbon footprint. 

Acknowledgement

The Directors are grateful to the Company’s shareholders, financial institutions and customers for their continued cooperation, 
support and patronage. The Directors acknowledge the relentless efforts and dedicated services, team work, loyalty and hard work 
of all the employees of the Company and hope their continued dedication shall further consolidate the Company and keep it abreast 
to face future developments and demands.

 
 Muhammad Aslam Shaikh Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis
 Chief Executive Chairman 

Karachi: September 30, 2020 
 



ANNEXURE I
Attendance of Directors in Board Meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2020  
  
Name of Directors   No. of Meetings  Meeting attended
  
Mr. Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis 5 1
Mr. Muhammad Taha Hamdani* 3 3
Mr. Muhammad Aslam Shaikh** 2 2
Ms. Naheed Memon 5 5
Mr. Agha Sher Shah 5 5
Mr. Saleem Zamindar 5 5
Mr. Noor Muhammad 5 5
Mr. Muhammad Jamshid Malik*** 1 0
Mr. Shahid Aziz Siddiqui**** 2 0
  
* Resigned as CEO w.e.f. December 23, 2019  
** Appointed as CEO  w.e.f  December 23, 2019  
*** Appointed as Director w.e.f  February 24, 2020  
**** Passed away on November 08, 2019  
  
Attendance of Members in Audit Committee Meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2020:  
  
Name of Members  No. of Meetings  Meeting attended
  
Mr. Saleem Zamindar 5 5
Mr. Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis 5 1
Mr. Noor Muhammad* 3 3
Mr. Shahid Aziz Siddiqui** 2 2
  
* Appointed as member on December 11, 2019   
** Passed away on November 08, 2019.  
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Statement of Financial Position 
   
Property, plant and equipment   4,325,672   4,392,538 
Stock-in-Trade   394,514   370,977 
Trade Debts   937,558   881,813 
Paid-up Share Capital   997,181   997,181 
Total Equity - Holding Company   3,609,010   3,639,915 
Trade and Other payables   472,428   428,056 
Short Term Borrowings   306,544   285,080 
   
Statement of Profit or Loss   
Sales - net    2,435,037   4,134,378 
Gross Profit   361,606   1,070,780 
Selling, Distribution cost & Administrative Expense   180,277   338,721 
Profit before taxation   65,327   646,927 
Profit  for the year   39,679   559,610 
(Loss)/ Earnings per share (in Rupees)   (0.35) 4.31

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 Sales – net  1,755,227 3,468,411
 Gross profit  52,100 671,967
 Selling & Distribution Cost  89,760 220,258
 Finance Cost   44,153 50,620
 (Loss)/Profit before taxation  (140,934) 295,318
 (Loss)/Profit for the year  (158,018) 213,522
 (Loss)/Earnings per share (Rupees)  (1.58) 2.14

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
Particulars
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%
Production    
Clinker 258,158 470,245 (212,087) (45.1)
Cement 197,463 366,649 (169,186) (46.14)
GGBFS  -   260 (260) (100)
    
Dispatches    
Cement 196,251 368,057 (171,806) (46.68)
Clinker  83,237 188,890 (105,653) (55.93)
GGBFS  -   260 (260) (100)
Total 279,488 557,207 (277,719) (49.84)

Description

-------------------------- Metric Tons --------------------------

2020 2019 Variance
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CATEGORY 
NO.

NUMBER OF 
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF 
SHARES HELD

PERCENTAGES
(%)CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minor children  7   3,625  0.004
    
2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties  4   51,058,286  51.203
    
3 NIT and ICP  -     -     -   
    
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions  2   11,837,835   11.871 
    
5 Insurance Companies  2   45,100   0.045 
    
6 Modarbas and Mutual Funds  2   2,871,580   2.880 
    
7 General Public    
 (a) Local   2,467   25,425,033   25.497 
 (b) Foreign  120   3,077,165   3.086 
    
8 Others  29   5,399,501   5.415 
 
  TOTAL  2,633   99,718,125   100.00 

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER DESCRIPTION NO. OF SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
Sky Pak Holding (Private) Limited Falls in Category # 2  21,152,787  21.21%
Al-Miftah Holding (Private) Limited Falls in Category # 2  14,895,118  14.94%

TOTAL PAID-UP CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
10% OF THE PAID-UP CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

 99,718,125        SHARES
 9,971,813        SHARES

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING TEN PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS CDC AND PHYSICAL
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

 232 1 100  2,382 
 740 101 500  361,948 
 362 501 1000  347,910 
 672 1001 5000  1,932,750 
 245 5001 10000  2,004,388 
 99 10001 15000  1,291,660 
 73 15001 20000  1,358,720 
 42 20001 25000  991,500 
 22 25001 30000  639,000 
 8 30001 35000  264,000 
 18 35001 40000  696,916 
 7 40001 45000  304,000 
 24 45001 50000  1,193,500 
 12 50001 55000  637,000 
 7 55001 60000  411,500 
 1 60001 65000  65,000 
 2 65001 70000  139,000 
 3 70001 75000  219,750 
 1 75001 80000  76,500 
 1 80001 85000  85,000 
 1 85001 90000  87,000 
 2 90001 95000  185,000 
 5 95001 100000  500,000 
 3 100001 105000  312,000 
 1 115001 120000  118,500 
 1 120001 125000  124,500 
 1 125001 130000  129,500 
 2 130001 135000  270,000 
 1 135001 140000  140,000 
 1 140001 145000  144,000 
 1 150001 155000  150,500 
 1 155001 160000  156,000 
 1 160001 165000  161,000 
 1 165001 170000  168,000 
 1 175001 180000  177,500 
 1 180001 185000  184,000 
 1 190001 195000  195,000 
 4 195001 200000  798,500 
 1 200001 205000  201,500 
 1 205001 210000  208,500 
 1 225001 230000  229,500 
 1 230001 235000  230,500 
 1 245001 250000  250,000 
 2 250001 255000  505,000 
 1 270001 275000  275,000 

No. of
shareholders

Shareholdings Total shares
held

From To
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No. of
shareholders

Shareholdings Total shares
held

From To

 1 285001 290000  285,500 
 1 295001 300000  298,500 
 1 325001 330000  328,000 
 1 385001 390000  390,000 
 1 395001 400000  396,500 
 1 400001 405000  405,000 
 1 415001 420000  416,000 
 1 420001 425000  424,000 
 2 495001 500000  1,000,000 
 1 500001 505000  501,000 
 1 520001 525000  525,000 
 1 600001 605000  605,000 
 1 775001 780000  780,000 
 1 995001 1000000  1,000,000 
 1 1365001 1370000  1,368,580 
 1 1500001 1505000  1,503,000 
 1 1955001 1960000  1,957,000 
 1 3370001 3375000  3,375,000 
 1 5715001 5720000  5,715,500 
 1 6530001 6535000  6,531,291 
 1 8460001 8465000  8,462,835 
 1 8475001 8480000  8,479,090 
 1 14895001 14900000  14,895,118 
 1 21150001 21155000  21,152,787 
    
  2,633     99,718,125 
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL STATISTICS OF SIX YEARS

Summary of Statement of Financial Position      
      
Assets Employed      
Property, plant and equipment  2,021,470   2,086,685   2,199,535   2,055,402   2,173,000   2,149,869 
Intangible assets  -     -     2,800   5,793   6,485   6,418 
Long term deposits  1,096   1,096   1,096   1,096   1,096   1,096 
Long term investment - Available for sale  -     -     -     -     164,768   279,341 
Long term investment in subsidiary  299,158   299,158   299,158   299,158   299,158   299,158 
Current assets  1,155,376   1,223,161   1,637,106   1,533,877   1,300,122   823,233 
  3,477,100   3,610,100   4,139,695   3,895,326   3,944,629   3,559,115 
      
      
Financed by       
Shareholders equity  2,464,579   2,618,906   2,556,790   2,440,620   2,074,969   1,673,500 
      
Long term financing   -     -     87,817   319,750   1,026,684   1,215,380 
Current portion of long term financing  -     87,817   231,933   231,933   231,933   69,398 
  -     87,817   319,750   551,683   1,258,617   1,284,778 
      
Long term deposits & deferred liabilities  303,904   315,909   305,347   289,105   204,469   152,392 
      
Current liabilities  708,617   675,285   1,189,741   845,851   638,507   517,843 
Current portion of long term financing  -     (87,817)  (231,933)  (231,933)  (231,933)  (69,398)
  708,617   587,468   957,808   613,918   406,574   448,445 
      
Total funds invested  3,477,100   3,610,100   4,139,695   3,895,326   3,944,629   3,559,115 
      
Summary of Statement of Profit or Loss      
Turnover   1,755,227   3,468,411   2,842,538   3,656,723   2,846,147   2,304,404 
EBITDA  (9,133)  488,591   689,237   1,089,909   903,011   517,344 
EBIT  (96,781)  345,938   562,098   943,029   791,004   473,468 
% Change in Sales   (49.39)   22.02   (22.26)  28.48   23.51   5.59 
% Change in EBITDA  (101.87)   (29.11)  (36.76)  20.70   74.55   (12.78)
% Change in EBIT  (127.98)   (38.46)  (40.39)  19.22   67.07   (13.07)
Gross profit  52,100   671,967   756,004   1,163,029   913,844   645,901 
Operating (loss) / profit  (122,952)  349,465   563,202   913,686   728,181   512,899 
(Loss) / profit before tax  (140,934)  295,318   497,371   855,306   666,009   417,007 
(Loss) / profit after tax  (158,018)  213,522   356,860   581,993   614,443   289,274 
Accumulated profit carried forward  1,367,680   1,522,007   1,459,891   1,343,721   913,548   431,766 
(Loss) / earnings per share (Rupees)  (1.58)  2.14   3.58   5.84   6.16   2.90 

-------------------------------------------Rupees in thousands-------------------------------------------

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Thatta Cement Company Limited will be held at Beach Luxury Hotel, M. T. 
Khan Road, Karachi on October 26, 2020 at 03:00 p.m. to transact the following business:

A. Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on October 21, 2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Unconsolidated Financial Statements of the Company together with the Directors’ 
and the Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020, together with the Annual Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and the Auditors’ report  thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3. To appoint external auditors of the Company for the year ending on June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. The present 
auditors, M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, shall stand retired on the conclusion of AGM. The Board 
of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has recommended the appointment of M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co. 
Chartered Accountants,as external auditors of the Company,for the year ending on June 30, 2021 till conclusion of the next 
AGM.

B. Special Business 

4. Investment (Loan/advance)  under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017

 To consider and, if deem fit, to pass with or without any amendment/ modification following resolutions as special resolutions:

 RESOLVED that the time period for providing advance/loan facility to Thatta Power(Private) Limited, the Subsidiary Company, to 
the extent of total amount of Rs. 300 million as approved/renewed by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 
October 21, 2019, be and is hereby extended further for a period  of one year till the holding of next Annual General Meeting to 
be held on or before October 27, 2021, to meet the requirements of Regulation 5(7) of Companies (Investment in Associated 
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 dated December 6,  2017.

 FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive and the Company Secretary be and are hereby jointly authorized to take and do 
and / or cause to be taken or done any / all necessary actions, deeds and things which are or may be necessary for giving effect 
to the aforesaid resolution and to do all acts, matters, deeds, and things which are necessary, incidental and / or consequential 
to the investment (loans and advances) of the Company’s funds as above as and when required at the time of investment.

 The statement as required under section134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 is being sent to the members with the notice. 

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Karachi : October 05, 2020  By Order of the Board

  Muhammad Abid Khan
   Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Monday, October 19, 2020 to Monday, October 26, 2020 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at our Share Registrar/Transfer Agent M/s THK Associates (Private) Limited, 
1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Karachi-75400 at the close of business on Friday October 16, 2020 shall be treated in time 
for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.
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2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf.  The instrument appointing proxy must be received at the registered office of the Company duly 
stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. A member cannot appoint more than one 
proxy. Attested copy of the member’s Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) must be attached with the form. For any other 
relevant aspects, contents of section 137 of Companies Act, 2017 will apply.

3. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the undermentioned guidelines, as laid down in Circular No. 1 of 2000 of SECP 
dated January 26, 2000.

 For Attending the Meeting

 In case of Individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her original 
CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

 Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their particulars, ID Number and account 
number in Central Depository System (CDS).

 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
along with proxy Form to the Company.

 For appointing the proxies

 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the Proxy Form as per the above requirement.

 Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers shall be mentioned on the Form.

 Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.

 The Proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
along with Proxy Form to the Company.

4. As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares 
with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not 
exceeding four years from the commencement of this Act, i.e. May 30, 2017.

 The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC-account with any of the brokers or Investor Account 
Directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including safe custody and 
sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange.

5. In terms of SECP’s circular no. 10 of 2014 read with provisions contained under section 132 and 134 of the Act, if the Company 
receives request/demand from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location to 
participate in the meeting through video conference at least 07 days prior to the date of meeting. The Company will arrange video 
conference facility in that city, subject to availability of such facility in that city.

 The Company will intimate members regarding venue of the video-link facility at least two days before the date of the general 
meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access the facility.
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 In this regard, please fill the following form and submit to the Registered Office of the Company 7 days before holding of the 
general meeting.

 I/We ________________of __________________being a member of Thatta Cement Company Limited, holder of 
_________________ Ordinary shares as per Registrar Folio No _____________ hereby opt for video conference facility at 
________________________.

     
  ______________________________

  Signature of Member

6. In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended June 30, 2020 are available on the Company’s website. 

7. SECP has notified through SRO No 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, in continuation of an earlier SRO No 787(I)/2014 dated 
September 8, 2014, whereby subject to the approval of shareholders’ in the general meeting the listed companies have been 
allowed to disseminate Annual Audited Accounts to the shareholders in soft form i.e. through CD/DVD/USB instead of 
transmitting the said accounts in hard copies. Accordingly, approval was obtained from shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting held on September 27, 2016 to disseminate Annual Audited Accounts to the shareholders in soft form i.e. through 
CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting the said accounts in hard copies.

 In addition to above, in terms of SRO No 787(I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can also opt to obtain annual 
balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor’s report and directors report etc. alongwith the notice of Annual General 
Meeting through email. For this purpose, we hereby provide you an opportunity to send us your written consent alongwith your 
valid email ID to provide you the same at your valid email ID. 

 For your convenience, a Standard Request Form has been made available at our website -www.thattacement.com - either to opt 
to receive future annual reports through email or in hard copies or otherwise request for hard copy of the accounts if and when 
needed. The scanned copy of the duly filled & signed form may be emailed to the Company Secretary at 
CSTCCL@thattacement.com or the same can be submitted through post/courier to Company’s Share Registrar M/s THK 
Associates (Pvt) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S, Karachi-75400.

8. For any query/problem/information, shareholders may contact the Company and/or Company’s Share Registrar M/s THK 
Associates (Pvt) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S, Karachi-75400.

9. Shareholders are requested to notify immediately to Company’s Shares Registrar of any change in their address or their 
particulars.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2017
Material facts concerning special business at the Annual General Meeting are given below:
Investment (Loan/Advance) under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017

In terms of Regulation 4(2) of Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 
dated December 6, 2017, every listed company which has obtained approval of shareholders, under section 199 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 in Annual General Meeting of the Company, has to provide the status of decision taken by shareholders including any 
change in terms and conditions of that investment /loan/advance.  The Company in its preceding Annual General Meeting held on 
October 21, 2019 had sought extension in time for providing loan/advance facility to its associated company/undertaking under 
section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for a period of one year till the holding of next Annual General Meeting. Therefore, approval 
for extension in time for a further period of one year is required to be obtained from shareholders in Annual General Meeting to be 
held on October 26, 2020. Accordingly, approval is hereby sought from shareholders, in terms of Regulation No. 5(7) of aforesaid 
Regulations, following information is given below:

Name of Subsidiary Company 

Total Investment approved

Amount of Investment made to date

Reasons for not having made complete investment so far where 
resolution required it to be implemented in specified time.

Thatta Power (Private) Limited
  
Rs 300 million 

Rs ‘Nil’ million as at June 30, 2020 (Rs Nil as on June 30, 2019)

Approval for loan/advance facility to the Subsidiary Company for 
an aggregate amount of Rs 300 million was initially obtained 
from the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 
October 16, 2015 based on estimated requirements of funds by 
the Subsidiary Company. The said facility was renewed for a 
further period of one year in the last Annual General Meeting held 
on October 21, 2019.

Subsequent to resumption of power supply to HESCO since 
January 2017, HESCO is paying monthly invoice on the basis of 
tariff determined by NEPRA. Hence, the requirements for 
utilization of funds from holding company reduced to ‘Nil’ as at 
June 30, 2020. 

However, increasing trade debts of subsidiary company as of 
June 30, 2020 which mainly represents receivable from HESCO 
indicates that there is a delay in recovery of electricity bills 
issued to HESCO which may require financial support to the 
Subsidiary Company to honor its financial obligations and to meet 
its working capital requirements and in turn enable it to provide 
uninterrupted supply of electricity to its Holding Company for 
sustainable cement production.

Therefore, renewal of loan / advance facility for the Subsidiary 
Company is essential for its continued business operations on 
the terms and conditions renewed by the shareholders in their 
preceding Annual General Meeting and on the same terms and 
conditions as per the agreement between Thatta Cement 
Company Limited and Thatta Power (Private) Limited. 

Unless specifically authorized by members in general meeting, 
the special resolution authorizing investment in associated 
undertaking shall be valid for a period of twelve months and shall 

Description Information required

stand lapse after such period as provided in regulation no. 6 of 
the aforesaid Regulations.

In view of aforesaid reasons, it is therefore proposed to extend 
the time for a further period of one year till the holding of next 
Annual General Meeting due to be held on or before October 27, 
2021.

1. Receivable from HESCO increased to Rs. 801.23 million as 
of June 30, 2020 (Rs. 684.38 million: June 30, 2019).

2. Waste Heat Recovery Project [WHRP] of Subsidiary 
Company for generating 5 MW electricity has started its 
commercial operations during the year.
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Thatta Power (Private) Limited
  
Rs 300 million 

Rs ‘Nil’ million as at June 30, 2020 (Rs Nil as on June 30, 2019)

Approval for loan/advance facility to the Subsidiary Company for 
an aggregate amount of Rs 300 million was initially obtained 
from the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 
October 16, 2015 based on estimated requirements of funds by 
the Subsidiary Company. The said facility was renewed for a 
further period of one year in the last Annual General Meeting held 
on October 21, 2019.

Subsequent to resumption of power supply to HESCO since 
January 2017, HESCO is paying monthly invoice on the basis of 
tariff determined by NEPRA. Hence, the requirements for 
utilization of funds from holding company reduced to ‘Nil’ as at 
June 30, 2020. 

However, increasing trade debts of subsidiary company as of 
June 30, 2020 which mainly represents receivable from HESCO 
indicates that there is a delay in recovery of electricity bills 
issued to HESCO which may require financial support to the 
Subsidiary Company to honor its financial obligations and to meet 
its working capital requirements and in turn enable it to provide 
uninterrupted supply of electricity to its Holding Company for 
sustainable cement production.

Therefore, renewal of loan / advance facility for the Subsidiary 
Company is essential for its continued business operations on 
the terms and conditions renewed by the shareholders in their 
preceding Annual General Meeting and on the same terms and 
conditions as per the agreement between Thatta Cement 
Company Limited and Thatta Power (Private) Limited. 

Unless specifically authorized by members in general meeting, 
the special resolution authorizing investment in associated 
undertaking shall be valid for a period of twelve months and shall 

This statement is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 26, 2020 at which a 
special business is to be transacted and the purpose of this statement is to set out all the material facts concerning such special 
business in terms of sections 134(3) and 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Companies (Investment in Associated 
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 dated December 6, 2017. The directors have no additional interest 
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

4. Material change in financial statements of associated 
company or undertaking since the resolution passed for making 
investment in said company or undertaking.

Description Information required

stand lapse after such period as provided in regulation no. 6 of 
the aforesaid Regulations.

In view of aforesaid reasons, it is therefore proposed to extend 
the time for a further period of one year till the holding of next 
Annual General Meeting due to be held on or before October 27, 
2021.

1. Receivable from HESCO increased to Rs. 801.23 million as 
of June 30, 2020 (Rs. 684.38 million: June 30, 2019).

2. Waste Heat Recovery Project [WHRP] of Subsidiary 
Company for generating 5 MW electricity has started its 
commercial operations during the year.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies [Code of 
Corporate Governance] Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following details:
a. Male: six
b. Female: one

2. The composition of the board is as follows:
  Independent Directors:   four
 Other Non-Executive Directors:  two
 Executive Director:     one
 Female Director:    one

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director in more than seven listed companies, including this 
Company;

 
4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct ‘and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 

throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. The 
Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating 
is maintained by the company; 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the 
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 [‘Act’] and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these 
Regulations;

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

 Mr. Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis - Chairman
 Ms. Naheed Memon - Director
 Mr. Agha Sher Shah - Director
 Mr. Saleem Zamindar - Director
 Mr. Noor Muhammad - Director
 Mr. Muhammad Aslam Shaikh - Chief Executive
 
10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, including their 

remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12. The board has formed following Committees as required under CCG, 2019 which comprises of members given below:

  Name of Members  Audit Committee 
 1. Mr. Saleem Zamindar Chairman of Committee
 2. Mr. Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis Member
 3. Mr. Noor Muhammad Member
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  Name of Members Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
 1. Mr. Agha Sher Shah Chairman of Committee 
 2. Ms. Naheed Memon Member
 3. Mr. Muhammad Aslam Shaikh Member
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 

 Name of Committee Number of Meetings held during year from
   July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020
 Audit Committee  Five 
 Human Resource and Remuneration Committee -

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function and also appointed a Head of Internal Audit who are suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control 
Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, 
that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in 
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief 
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;  

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; and

19. We have not complied with the requirement of Regulation 28 (3) which states that “the Human Resource and Remuneration 
committee shall meet at least once in a financial year”. Due to the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, we deferred the committee 
meeting and the same was conducted in July 2020.

 
Muhammad Aslam Shaikh Khawaja Muhammad Salman Younis
Chief Executive  Chairman

Karachi: September 30, 2020  
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ASSETS   
NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
Property, plant and equipment 6  2,021,470   2,086,685 
Intangible assets 7  -     -   
Long term investment in Subsidiary 8  299,158   299,158 
Long term deposits 9  1,096   1,096 
Total non-current assets   2,321,724   2,386,939 
   
CURRENT ASSETS   
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 10  339,360   314,592 
Stock-in-trade 11  410,190   389,192 
Trade debts 12  136,330   197,809 
Advances 13  6,597   5,673 
Trade deposits and prepayments 14  4,058   6,478 
Other receivables and accrued interest 15  17,703   18,921 
Taxation - net 16  218,673   217,726 
Cash and bank balances 17  22,465   72,770 
Total current assets   1,155,376   1,223,161 
   
Total assets   3,477,100   3,610,100 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY    
Share capital 18  997,181   997,181 
Share premium   99,718   99,718 
Accumulated profit   1,367,680   1,522,007 
Total shareholders' equity   2,464,579   2,618,906 
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Long term financing 19  -     -   
Long term deposits 20  2,791   4,297 
Long term employee benefit 21  15,963   17,744 
Deferred taxation 22  285,150   293,868 
Total non-current liabilities   303,904   315,909 
   
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Trade and other payables 23  390,389   292,087 
Unclaimed dividend   2,039   2,540 
Accrued mark-up 24  9,645   7,761 
Current maturity of long term financing 19  -     87,817 
Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
Total current liabilities   708,617   675,285 
   
Total equity and liabilities   3,477,100   3,610,100 
   
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 26  
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.   

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at June 30, 2020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVECHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



Sales - net 27  1,755,227   3,468,411 
   
Cost of sales 28  (1,703,127)  (2,796,444)
   
Gross profit   52,100   671,967 
   
Selling and distribution cost 29  (89,760)  (220,258)
Administrative expenses 30  (85,292)  (102,244)
   (175,052)  (322,502)
   
Operating (loss) /profit   (122,952)  349,465 
   
Other operating expenses 31  (19,107)  (34,633)
Finance cost 32  (44,153)  (50,620)
   (63,260)  (85,253)
   
Other income 33  45,278   31,106 
   
(Loss) / profit before taxation   (140,934)  295,318 
   
Taxation 34  (17,084)  (81,796)
   
(Loss) / profit for the year   (158,018)  213,522 
   
   
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted 35  (1.58)  2.14 
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.   

Annual Report 2020 43

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

 -------- Rupees -------
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(Loss) / profit for the year   (158,018)  213,522 
   
Other comprehensive income   
   
Items to be reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
  in subsequent years  -   -   
   
Items not to be reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
  in subsequent years   
   
Remeasurement gain / (loss) of defined benefit liability 23.1.4  3,691   (7,812)
   
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year   (154,327)  205,710 
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.   

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
   
(Loss) / profit before taxation   (140,934)  295,318 
   
Adjustment for:   
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2  87,648   139,853 
Amortization on intangibles 7  -     2,800 
Provision / (reversal) for slow moving & obsolete stores and 
  impairment of major stores & spares 6.3 & 10.1  1,127   4,733 
Finance cost 32  43,110   50,620 
Provision for gratuity 23.1.4  17,262   13,412 
Provision for leave encashment 21.4  2,808   3,518 
Provision for doubtful debt   897   2,182 
Property, plant and equipment written off 30  3   249 
Workers' Welfare Fund 31  -     6,740 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23.3  1,043   16,639 
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33  (104)  20 
   153,794   240,766 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes   12,860   536,084 
   
Working capital changes   
(Increase) / decrease in stores, spare parts and loose tools   (24,281)  297,136 
(Increase) / decrease in stock-in-trade   (20,998)  139,535 
Decrease / (increase) in trade debts   60,582   (109,007)
(Increase) / decrease in advances   (924)  173 
Decrease in trade deposits and prepayments   2,420   12,883 
Decrease in other receivable and accrued interest   1,218   81,986 
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables   108,575   (280,255)
   126,592   142,451 
   
Cash generated from operations   139,452   678,535 
   
Finance cost paid   (41,226)  (50,743)
Gratuity paid 23.1.4  -     (19,984)
Leave encashment paid 21.4  (4,589)  (1,658)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid   (7,946)  (8,970)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid 23.3  (16,941)  (27,391)
Income tax paid - net   (26,749)  (81,235)
   (97,451)  (189,981)
Net cash generated from operating activities   42,001   488,554 

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
   
Fixed capital expenditure   (24,050)  (33,154)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   104   123 
Net cash used in investing activities   (23,946)  (33,031)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
   
Repayment of long term financing   (87,817)  (231,933)
Dividend paid   (501)  (142,405)
Long term deposits (paid) / received   (1,506)  820 
Net cash used in financing activities   (89,824)  (373,518)
   
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (71,769)  82,005 
   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 36  (212,310)  (294,315)
   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36  (284,079)  (212,310)
   
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at July 1, 2018  997,181   99,718   1,459,891   2,556,790 
    
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity    
Final dividend @ Rs. 1.44 per share for the year ended June 30, 2018  -     -     (143,594)  (143,594)
    
Total comprehensive income for the year    
Profit for the year  -     -     213,522   213,522 
    
Other comprehensive income    
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   -     -     (7,812)  (7,812)
  -     -     205,710   205,710 
    
Balance as at June 30, 2019  997,181   99,718   1,522,007   2,618,906 
    
Balance as at July 1, 2019  997,181   99,718   1,522,007   2,618,906 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year    
Loss for the year  -     -    (158,018) (158,018)
    
Other comprehensive income    
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   -     -    3,691 3,691
  -     -    (154,327) (154,327)
    
Balance as at June 30, 2020  997,181   99,718  1,367,680 2,464,579
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.    

Share Capital

Share premium

Capital

Reserves

Revenue

Accumulated profit

Total 
Shareholders’

Equity

------------------------------------ Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVECHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS   
    
 Thatta Cement Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1980 as a public limited Company. The 

shares of the Company are quoted at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company's main business activity is manufacturing 
and marketing of cement. The registered office of the Company is situated at Office No. 606, 607, 608 & 608A, 
Continental Trade Centre, Block 8, Clifton, Karachi. The production facility of the Company comprises of 233 acres and is 
located at Ghulamullah Road, Makli, District Thatta, Sindh.   

    

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENT   
    
    
2.1 Sales - net   1,755,227   3,468,411 
    
 During the period, the sales of the Company has decreased by approximately Rs. 1.7 billion as a consequence of lower 

demand of cement in the south region due to economic depression prevailing in the Country. The construction related 
activities also remained affected and resulted in lower sales volume due to unstable political conditions and budget cuts 
by the Government since beginning of the fiscal year.   

   
2.2 Current maturity of long term financing   
    
 During the year outstanding balance of syndicated term finance facility (STFF) has been repaid fully amounting to Rs. 87.817 

million.   
    
2.3 Impact of Coronavirus - COVID-19   
    
 The outbreak of pandemic Coronavirus (COVID-19) resulted in strict lock-down situation at both local and global levels. This 

also resulted in labour and logistics issues, stagnation in construction activities and even suspension of business 
operations of the Company. This situation coupled with other factors has adversely affected the production and revenues 
of the Company. The management believes that due to the pandemic the Company’s operations, financial position and 
results have been impacted only on a temporary basis and believes that as normalcy comes about, these impacts will begin 
to recede.   

    
3 BASIS OF PREPARATION   
    
3.1 Statement of compliance   
    
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprises of such International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. In case the requirements differ, the provisions or 
directives of the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.   

    
 These unconsolidated financial statements are being submitted to the shareholders as required under section 223 of the 

Companies Act 2017 and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations.   
    
3.2 Basis of measurement   
    
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except as otherwise 

disclosed in the respective accounting policy notes.   
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3.3 Financial year   
    
 The Company's financial year starts from July 1 and ends at June 30.   
    
3.4 Functional and presentation currency   
    
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared & presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's 

functional and presentation currency.   
    
3.5 Use of estimates and judgments   
    
 The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards require 

management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized prospectively commencing from the period of revision. In preparing these unconsolidated financial statements, 
the significant judgments made by the management in applying the Company's accounting policies and key sources of estimation 
and uncertainty were the same as those that were applied to the unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019.    
  

 Management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to these unconsolidated financial 
statements:   

   
a) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment   
    
 The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its property, plant and 

equipment (note 5.1 & 6.1). The Company also reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any 
change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and 
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.    
  

b) Intangible assets   
    
 The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related amortization charge for its intangibles (note 5.3 

& 7). The Company also reviews the value of the intangibles for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of intangibles with a corresponding effect on 
the amortization charge and impairment.   

    
c) Impairment of assets   
    
 The Company reviews its provision for loss allowance at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in 

the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5.4 & 12). In particular, judgment by management is required in the 
estimates of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are 
based on assumptions about number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.  
 

    
d) Net realizable value of Stock-in-trade and stores & spares    
    
 The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores and spares to assess any diminution in the respective 

carrying values (note 5.6, 5.7 & 10). Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of 
stock-in-trade and stores & spares and corresponding effect in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of those future years. 
Net realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditures to make the sale.  
 

    

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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e) Provision for taxation   
    
 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax 

law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred tax, estimates of 
the Company's future taxable profits are taken into account.   

    
f) Contingencies   
    
 The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events 

cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of 
contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events with respect 
to evaluation based on element of issue involved and opinion of the legal counsel (note 26).   
   

g) Staff retirement benefits   
    
 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements for actuarial 

valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation and leave encashment (note 5.9, 21 & 23.1). Change in these assumptions 
in future years may affect the liability under the schemes in those years.    
  

h) Impairment of investments   
    
 The Company determines that a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value of its investments below its cost is an objective 

evidence of impairment (note 5.5 & 8). The impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount exceeds the higher of fair 
value less cost to sell and value in use.   

    
4 STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS WHICH BECAME EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR   

  
4.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the company and adopted in the 

current year   
    
 The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which 

became effective during the current year.    
    
 Standard or Interpretation Effective date 
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after) 
    
 IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral accounts' July 1, 2019 
    
 IFRS 16 'Leases' July 1, 2019 
 IAS 12 'Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments
  classified as equity' January 1, 2019 
 IAS 23 Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization January 1, 2019 
 IFRS 3 Previously held interest in a joint operation January 1, 2019 
 IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation January 1, 2019 
 IFRS 11 Previously held interest in a joint operation January 1, 2019 
 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' January 1, 2019 
 IAS 28 'Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' 
  (Amendments to IAS 28) January 1, 2019 
 IAS 19 'Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement' (Amendments to IAS 19) January 1, 2019 
 Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 1, 2019 
    
 Adoption of the above standard have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2020.   
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4.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant   
   

 The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year 
beginning on July 01, 2019 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting 
and operations and are therefore not presented here.    

    
4.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early 

adopted by the Company   
    
 The following new standards, amendments to the published standards and interpretations will be effective from the dates 

mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.   
    
 Standard or Interpretation Effective date 
  (annual periods beginning
  on or after) 
    
 IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3 January 1, 2020 
 IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020 
 IFRS 7, IFRS 9, and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform January 1, 2020 
 Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards January 1, 2020 
    
 The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published 

standards on the financial statements of the Company.   
    
4.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP).    
    
 Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified 

by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.    
    
 Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date 
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after) 
    
 IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2022 
 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International July 1, 2009 
   Financial Reporting Standards   
    
5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES   
    
 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below and 

have been consistently applied to all years presented.   
   
5.1 Property, plant and equipment   
    
 Property, plant and equipments (except freehold land) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 

if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.   
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 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment    
  

 Depreciation is charged using straight line method on all assets except on plant and machinery (other than utilities within plant 
and machinery) on which depreciation is charged by applying 'Units of Production (UoP) method'. Depreciation rates of each item 
is mentioned in note 6.1. Depreciation on addition is charged from the date when the asset is available for use and on disposal 
upto the date when the asset is classified as 'held for sale' in accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations' or the date when the asset is derecognized, whichever is earlier. Asset's residual values and useful lives 
are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate at each balance sheet date.    
 

 Subsequent costs   
    
 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred whereas major renewals and improvements are capitalized.  
   

 Disposal   
    
 The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal 

with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipments and is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. 
    

5.1.1 Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)   
    
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment losses, if any. These 

costs are transferred to fixed assets as and when assets are available for use.    
  

5.2 Government grant   
    
 Government grants related to assets are presented by deducting the grant amount in arriving at the carrying amount of the 

asset. The grant is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over the useful life of the asset as reduced by 
depreciation expense.   

    
5.3 Intangible assets   
    
 Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the 

cost of an asset can be measured reliably. Cost of intangible asset includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses 
incidental to bring the asset for its intended use. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an 
expense as and when incurred. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of an asset on a systematic basis applying the straight line 
method. Useful lives of all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization is 
significant. Subsequent expenditure on intangible asset is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific assets to which it relates.  

    
5.4 Impairment   
    
 Financial assets   
    
 The Company recognize an allowance for expected credit loss on all financial assets carried at amortized cost irrespective 

whether a loss event has occurred. For trade debts, the Company applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected 
credit losses (loss allowance) which uses a life time expected loss allowance while general 3-stage approach for other financial 
assets (deposits, other receivables and cash and bank balances) i.e. to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal 
to 12-month ECL if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition.   
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 The Company measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime 

expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Where 
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Company measures the 
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.   

 The Company recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal), that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.  
   

 Non-Financial assets   
    
 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than stock in trade and deferred tax asset, are assessed at each reporting 

date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount 
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, for the amount 
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using 
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the 
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows 
(cash generating units).   

    
 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.   
  

5.5 Investments   
    
 Investment in subsidiaries   
    
 Investment in subsidiaries are initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investment is reviewed at each reporting date 

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the investment's recoverable amount is 
estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited 
to the extent of initial cost of investment. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement profit or 
loss account.    

 Investment in associates   
    
 Investment in associates are initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investment is reviewed at each reporting date 

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exist the investment's recoverable amount is 
estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited 
to the extent of initial cost of investment. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit 
or loss.   

   
5.6 Stores, spare parts and loose tools   
    
 These are stated at lower of cost (calculated on weighted average basis) and net realisable value, less provision for dead and 

slow moving stores and spares. Store and spares in transit are valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon as 
on the unconsolidated statement of finanacial position.   

    
 Provision for dead and slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools is determined based on management's estimate 

regarding their future usability.   
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 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to 

be incurred to make the sale.   
    
5.7 Stock-in-trade   
    
 Stock of raw and packing material, work in process and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost 

in relation to work in process and finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate proportion of production overheads incurred 
in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Stocks of raw and packing material are valued at cost on weighted 
average basis. Stocks in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges directly attributable to the 
acquisition of related purchase incurred up to the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position.   
  

 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion 
and cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.   

  
5.8 Cash and cash equivalents   
    
 Cash and cash equivalents in local currency are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost and cash in 

foreign currencies are stated at the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date. For the purposes of the 
unconsolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand, cash with banks in current, PLS and 
deposit accounts net of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements, if any.    

5.9 Employee retirement benefits   
    
 Defined benefit plan   
    
 The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees. The scheme is administered by 

the trustees nominated under the Trust Deed. The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value of the Company's 
obligations under the scheme at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position less the fair value of plan assets, 
together with adjustment for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses. Contribution is made to this scheme on the basis of 
actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.    
  

 The present value of obligations are determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of 
government bonds. The government bonds are consistent with the estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. 
   

 Defined contribution plan   
    
 The Company also operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to which equal monthly 

contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary.   
  

 Leave encashment   
    
 The liability for accumulated earned leaves which are eligible for encashment relating to permanent employees are recognised on 

the basis of actuarial valuation in the period in which permanent employees render service that increases their entitlement to 
future leave encashment.   

    
5.10 Borrowings and finance cost   
    
 Loans and borrowings are recorded as and when the proceeds are received.   
    
 Borrowing cost incurred on long term finances directly attributable to the construction / acquisition of qualifying asset are 

capitalized up to the date, the respective assets are available for the intended use. All other mark-up, interest and other related 
charges are taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.   
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5.11 Taxation   
    
 Current   
    
 Provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for 

current income tax is recorded after adjustment, if any, to the provision for tax made in prior years including those arising from 
assessment and amendments in assessments during the year in such years.     
  

 Deferred   
    
 The Company accounts for deferred taxation on all temporary differences using balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax asset 

is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available and the credits can be utilized.  
 

5.12 IFRIC-23 "Uncertainity over income tax treatments"   
    
 The Company has adopted IFRIC-23 - Uncertainity over income tax treatments which clarifies how the recognition and 

measurement requirements of IAS-12 - Income taxes are applied when there is uncertainity over income tax treatment. IFRIC-23 
explains how the recognition and measurement of deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities when there is 
uncertainity over tax treatment.   

    
 An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainity over income tax that will be 

accepted by tax authorities. IFRIC-23 applies to all aspect of income tax accounting, when there is a uncertainity regarding the 
treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. 
While there are new disclosure requirements, entities are reminded of the general requirements to provide information about 
judgement and estimates made in preparing the unconsolidated financial statements.   
  

 The Company is already in compliance with the requirements of IFRIC-23.   
    
5.13 Trade and other payables   
    
 These are  recognized and carried at cost which is fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services 

received, whether or not billed to the Company.   
    
5.14 Provisions   
    
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at date of statement of financial position and adjusted 
to reflect the best estimate.   

    
5.15 Transactions with related parties   
    
 Transactions in relation to sales, purchases and services with related parties are made at arm's length prices except for 

Business Support Services for which the pricing mechanism is subject to approval of the Board of Directors.   
  

5.16 Revenue recognition   
    
 Revenue is recognized when control of a promised goods passes to a customer. It is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration  received or receivable, sales tax and other duties collected on behalf of third parties are not taken into account.  
 

 Company primarily generates revenue from sale of cement for which the control passes to the customer at a specific point in 
time.   
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 The revenue is recorded on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with the customer, including variable 

consideration such as discount, volume rebates or other contractual price reductions; if any.   

 Interest and rental / other income is recognized on accrual basis.   
    
5.17 Financial assets and liabilities   
    
5.17.1 Financial assets   
    
 a) Amortised cost  
    
  Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely payments of principal 

and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign 
exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in unconsolidated statement 
of profit or loss.  

    
 b) Fair value through other comprehensive income  
    
  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.  

    
 c) Fair value through profit or loss  
    
  Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or assets that 

are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.  

    
  Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair value 

of these statement of financial assets are normally recognised in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue 
to be recognised in unconsolidated profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an 
election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no 
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  

  Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received 
respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value or amortized cost as the case 
may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in which it arises.  

    
  Financial assets are derecognized when the Company losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial 

asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements 
imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.  

    
5.17.2 Financial liabilities   
    
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in unconsolidated 
statement  of profit or loss.   
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
    
    
    
 Operating fixed assets 6.1  1,959,623   2,039,815 
 Major stores and spares 6.3  61,847   46,870 
 Capital work-in-progress 6.4  -     -   
    2,021,470   2,086,685 

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective yield method.   

    
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing 

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.  
 

5.18 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities   
    
 A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if the Company 

has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and discharge the liability simultaneously. Corresponding income on assets and charge on liability is also offset. 

5.19 Segment reporting   
    
 Segment results that are reported to the Company’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items directly attributable 

to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, mainly comprises of 
corporate assets, head office expenses and tax assets and liabilities. Management has determined that the Company has a 
single reportable segment and therefore it has only presented entity wide disclosures.   
   

5.20 Foreign currency transactions   
    
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of each 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are reported in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position. All exchange differences are taken into unconolidated statement of 
profit or loss.   

    
5.21 Earnings per share   
    
 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.   

5.22 Dividends and appropriations   
    
 Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are declared / approved.
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 As at July 1,
2019

 Additions  Disposals Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2020

Depreciation
rate per
annum

As at
July 1,
2019

 Charge
for the year
(Note 6.2)

 Accumulated
depreciation
on disposals

 Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2020

 Net book
value as at
June 30,

2020

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIONCOST
2020

 Freehold land  6,186   -     -     -     6,186  -  -     -     -     -     -     6,186 

 Leasehold improvements  2,585   -     -     -     2,585  20%  2,585   -     -     -     2,585   -   

 Quarries and improvements  11,963   -     -     -     11,963  5%  11,828   9   -     -     11,837   126 

 Factory building on freehold land  246,642   -     -     -     246,642  10%  216,863   5,559   -     -     222,422   24,220 

 Electrical installations  59,265   -     -     -     59,265  5%  20,601   2,560   -     -     23,161   36,104 

 Housing colonies  74,096   -     -     -     74,096  5%  59,251   990   -     -     60,241   13,855 

 Office building on freehold land  22,281   -     -     -     22,281  5%  19,095   212   -     -     19,307   2,974 

 Plant and machinery  3,425,864   4,878   -     -     3,430,742  UoP  1,531,264   65,142   -     -     1,596,406   1,834,336 

 Quarry equipments  19,296   -     -     -     19,296  20%  18,915   88   -     -     19,003   293 

 Railway sidings  14,905   -     -     -     14,905  10%  14,047   172   -     -     14,219   686 

 Vehicles  65,175   -     (1,075)  -     64,100   10% & 20%   54,358   5,334   (1,075)  -     58,617   5,483 

 Furniture and fixtures  11,030   -     -     (7)  11,023  10%  8,271   553   -     (6)  8,819   2,204 

 Office & other equipments  18,538   -     -     (32)  18,506  10%  8,338   1,759   -     (30)  10,067   8,439 

 Medical equipments  629   -     -     -     629  10%  627   1   -     -     628   1 

 Laboratory equipments  70,332   1,437   -     -     71,769  10%  42,929   4,954   -     -     47,883   23,886 

 Computers  20,646   1,144   -     (114)  21,676  30%  20,645   315   -     (114)  20,846   830 

   4,069,433   7,459   (1,075)  (153)  4,075,664    2,029,618   87,648   (1,075)  (150)  2,116,041   1,959,623 

6.1 Operating fixed assets

 Freehold land  6,186   -     -     -     6,186  -  -     -     -     -     -     6,186 

 Leasehold improvements  2,585   -     -     -     2,585  20%  2,585   -     -     -     2,585   -   

 Quarries and improvements  11,963   -     -     -     11,963  5%  11,819   9   -     -     11,828   135 

 Factory building on  freehold land  246,642   -     -     -     246,642  10%  211,304   5,559   -     -     216,863   29,779 

 Electrical installations  58,848   417   -     -     59,265  5%  18,049   2,552   -     -     20,601   38,664 

 Housing colonies  74,096   -     -     -     74,096  5%  58,261   990   -     -     59,251   14,845 

 Office building on freehold land  22,281   -     -     -     22,281  5%  18,883   212   -     -     19,095   3,186 

 Plant and machinery  3,219,867   206,276   -     (279)  3,425,864  UoP  1,418,116   113,182   -     (34)  1,531,264   1,894,600 

 Quarry equipments  18,857   439   -     -     19,296  20%  18,689   226   -     -     18,915   381 

 Railway sidings  14,905   -     -     -     14,905  10%  13,875   172   -     -     14,047   858 

 Vehicles  66,515   -     (1,340)  -     65,175   10% & 20%   45,876   9,720   (1,238)  -     54,358   10,817 

 Furniture and fixtures  11,030   -     -     -     11,030  10%  7,720   551   -     -     8,271   2,759 

 Office & other equipments  18,549   207   (211)  (7)  18,538  10%  6,759   1,754   (171)  (4)  8,338   10,200 

 Medical equipments  629   -     -     -     629  10%  626   1   -     -     627   2 

 Laboratory equipments  69,496   836   -     -     70,332  10%  38,158   4,771   -     -     42,929   27,403 

 Computers  20,668   -     -     (22)  20,646  30%  20,512   154   -     (21)  20,645   1 

   3,863,117   208,175   (1,551)  (308)  4,069,433    1,891,232   139,853   (1,409)  (59)  2,029,618   2,039,815 

 As at July 1,
2018

 Additions  Disposals Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2019

Depreciation
rate per
annum

As at
July 1,
2018

 Charge
for the year
(Note 6.2)

 Accumulated
depreciation
on disposals

 Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2019

 Net book
value as at
June 30,

2019

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIONCOST
2019

---------------- Rupees in thousands ---------------- ---------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------

---------------- Rupees in thousands ---------------- ---------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------
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Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

6.4 Capital work-in-progress      

 Plant and Machinery  June 30, 2020  -     -     -     -   
       

  June 30, 2019  172,552   18,001   (190,553)  -   

---------------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------------

Opening
balance

Capital
expenditure

incurred

Transferred
to operating

fixed assets and
 store & spares

Closing
balance

6.3 Major stores and spares   
    
 Cost   
 Opening balance   84,175   86,644 
 Additions during the year   24,050   12,217 
 Transferred to operating fixed assets and
   capital work-in-progress   (7,459)  (14,686)
 Closing balance   100,766   84,175 
    
 Accumulated impairment   
 Opening balance   (37,305)  (31,546)
 Impairment charge for the year   (1,614)  (5,759)
 Closing balance   (38,919)  (37,305)
 Net book value   61,847   46,870 

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS   
    
 
 Cost   10,465   10,465 
 
 Amortization on intangibles   
 Opening balance   (10,465)  (7,665)
 Charge for the year 30  -     (2,800)
 Closing balance   (10,465)  (10,465)
    
 Net book value   -     -   
    

Note

6.1.1 The adjustment represents write off of certain items of operating fixed assets that have been taken out from active use as 
they are no longer usable and are in unserviceable condition.    

    
    
6.2 Allocation of depreciation   
    
 The depreciation on property, plant & equipment for the year has 
   been allocated as under:
    
 Cost of sales 28  84,636   135,637 
 Selling and distribution cost 29  789   773 
 Administrative expenses 30  2,223   3,443 
    87,648   139,853 
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

8 LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY   
    
 Thatta Power (Private) Limited (TPPL) 8.1 & 8.2  299,158   299,158 
    
8.1 The Company owns 62.43% shareholding of TPPL as at June 30, 2020 (2019: 62.43%). The principal business of the 

Subsidiary is generation, supply and transmission of electrical power. As at June 30, 2020 TPPL has authorized and 
issued Share Capital of Rs. 500 million and Rs. 479.16 million divided into 50,000,000 and 47,915,830 ordinary shares 
respectively. Investment in subsidiary is accounted and carried on the basis of cost.   
   

8.2 Thatta Cement Company Limited has pledged its investment in shares of TPPL in favour of National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) 
as the security trustee against syndicate term finance facility extended by NBP and other syndicate banks to TPPL.  
   

8.3 Investments in associated companies or undertakings have been made in accordance with the requirements of the Act.  
   

9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS   
    
 Long term deposits are given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up.  

  
10 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS   
    
 Coal and other fuels   163,933   128,020 
 Stores & spare parts   201,678   213,314 
 Loose tools   105   101 
    365,716   341,435 
    
 Provision for obsolete stores   (3,871)  (5,231)
 Provision for slow moving stores and spares   (22,485)  (21,612)
  10.1  (26,356)  (26,843)
    339,360   314,592 
10.1 Movement in provision   
    
 Opening balance   (26,843)  (27,869)
 Reversals during the year   487   1,026 
 Closing balance   (26,356)  (26,843)
    
11 STOCK-IN-TRADE   
    
 Raw material 28.1  18,587   20,399 
 Packing material 28.2  36,962   46,208 
 Work-in-process 28  303,363   286,583 
 Finished goods 28  51,278   36,002 
    410,190   389,192 
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

12 TRADE DEBTS   
    
 Considered good   
 Local - unsecured   136,330   197,809 
    
 Considered doubtful   
 Cement stockiest 12.1  60,801   60,801 
 Excessive rebate allowed 12.1  6,101   6,101 
 Controller military accounts   5,126   5,126 
 Other customers   2,182   2,182 
 Provision as per IFRS 9   897   -   
    75,107   74,210 
    
 Provision for loss allowance   (75,107)  (74,210)
    136,330   197,809 
    
12.1 This includes balances outstanding for more than ten years. The management contends that the amount recoverable from 

cement stockiest were misappropriated and certain unauthorized excessive rebates were allowed by collusion of certain 
personnel of the Company whose services had been terminated, when the Company was operating under State Cement 
Corporation of Pakistan (SCCP). Accordingly, the management had lodged references for the recovery of misappropriated 
amount with the National Accountability Bureau (NAB). The NAB has recovered an amount of Rs. 2.276 million in 
preceding years. The Company is continuously following with NAB officials for early realisation of amount owed to the 
Company and has also written letters in this regard for which reply has not yet been received, therefore provision has been 
maintained in respect of outstanding amount as a matter of prudence and abundant precaution.   

13 ADVANCES   
 
 Considered good - unsecured   
 -  to vendors   6,405   5,473 
 -  others   192   200 
    6,597   5,673 
    
14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS   
    
 Trade deposits  14.1  1,734   1,534 
 Prepayments   2,324   4,944 
    4,058   6,478 
    
14.1 Trade deposits are given in the normal course of business and comprises of earnest money and security deposits. These 

do not carry any interest or mark-up.   
    
15 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ACCRUED INTEREST   
    
 Interest receivable from banks   -     2,309 
 Deposit with Commissioner Workmen's Compensation 26.1.14  14,915   14,915 
 Others   2,788   1,697 
    17,703   18,921 
    
16 TAXATION - NET 16.1  218,673   217,726 
    
16.1 It mainly includes an amount of Rs. 217.726 million representing tax refundable for the tax year  2015, 2016, 2017, 

2018 & 2019.     
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

--- Number of shares ---

2020 2019
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

18 SHARE CAPITAL    
     
     
     
 Authorized share capital    
     
  200,000,000   200,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.  2,000,000   2,000,000 
     
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital   

 
     
  89,418,125    89,418,125 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
    - shares allotted for consideration paid in cash  894,181   894,181 
     
  10,300,000    10,300,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-  each
    - shares allotted for consideration other than cash  103,000   103,000 
  99,718,125    99,718,125    997,181   997,181 

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES   
    
 Cash in hand   2,575   2,481 
    
 Balances with banks   
 -   in current accounts 17.1  10,199   2,689 
 -   in profit and loss sharing (PLS) accounts 17.1,17.2,17.3  9,691   67,600 
    19,890   70,289 
    22,465   72,770 

17.1 These accounts are maintained with commercial banks under conventional banking system.    
  

17.2 During the year, the mark-up rates on PLS accounts ranges from 6.5% to 11.25% (2019: 3% to 6.5%) per annum.  
  

17.3 This includes Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 62.794 million) in PLS accounts under lien with National Bank of Pakistan, as Security 
Trustee, in accordance with the covenants of syndicated term finance facility agreements. These funds are to be used in 
accordance with the conditions mentioned in said financing agreement.

18.1 The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The shareholders are entitled 
to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the 
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.         
  

19 LONG TERM FINANCING    
    
 Loan from Banking companies - secured   
 Syndicated term finance facility (STFF) 19.1  -     87,817 
 Less : current maturity   -     (87,817)
    -     -   
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

19.1 This syndicated term finance facility has been obtained from syndicate of banks comprising of National Bank of Pakistan, 
Sindh Bank Limited, Summit Bank Limited and Silk Bank Limited. The facility carries mark-up at rates ranging between 
14.92% to 15.86% (2019: 8.89% to 14.92%) per annum payable quarterly. The tenure of financing is 8 years including 
grace period of 2 years and the facility is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 57.983 million each starting 
from June 17, 2016. During the year, Rs. 87.817 million has been re-paid against quarterly installment. The facility is 
secured by first joint pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future fixed assets and mortgage over 
the immovable properties. Unless the entire amount of loan has been repaid, the Company has to seek prior approval of 
the majority members of the syndicated term finance facility before declaration of any dividend.   

    
20 LONG TERM DEPOSITS   
 
 Dealers 20.1  2,110   2,110 
 Suppliers and contractors 20.2  681   2,187 
    2,791   4,297 
    
20.1 These relate to dealers against whom recovery proceedings are in process with National Accountability Bureau (NAB) and 

are adjustable against the amount owed by them to the Company (refer note: 12.1).   
   

20.2 These represent interest free security deposits, received from dealers, suppliers & contractors. These are kept in 
separate bank account and repayable / adjustable on cancellation or withdrawal of dealership and completion of contract 
in case of suppliers and contractors.    

    
21 LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT   
    
 This represents accrual for encashment of eligible earned leave balances in respect of permanent employees. Principal 

actuarial assumptions used for determining leave encashment liability are same as are used for gratuity actuarial valuation 
as disclosed in note 21.2.   

    
21.1 The amount recognised as liability  in the unconsolidated statement of financial position is as follows:   

    
    
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 21.2  15,792   17,744 
 Benefits due but not paid (payables)   171   -   
 Closing net liability   15,963   17,744 
    
21.2 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation   
    
    
 Opening balance   17,744   15,723 
 Current service cost 21.3  1,247   1,203 
 Interest cost 21.3  2,189   1,348 
 Benefits due but not paid (payables)   (171)  -   
 Benefits paid   (4,589)  (1,497)
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to change in experience adjustments 21.3  (628)  967 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation   15,792   17,744 
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

  2020   14,635   17,149   17,127   14,635 
  2019   16,676   18,963   18,929   16,689 

----------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -----------------------------------

- 100 bps+100 bps- 100 bps+100 bps
Discount rate Salary increase

21.6 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales   2,090   2,724 
 Selling and distribution cost   118   131 
 Administrative expenses   600   663 
    2,808   3,518 
    
22 DEFERRED TAXATION   
    
 Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of    
 Accelerated tax depreciation   349,349   333,992 
    
 Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of    
 Other provisions - for doubtful debts and stores   (40,608)  (40,124)
 Minimum Tax u/s 113 22.1  (23,591)  -   
  22.2  285,150   293,868 
    
22.1 The utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the 

reversal of existing taxable temporary differences.   

21.3 The amount recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss is as follows:   

    
    
 Current service cost 21.2  1,247   1,203 
 (Gain) / loss arising on present value of defined benefit obligation 21.2  (628)  967 
 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 21.2  2,189   1,348 
  21.4  2,808   3,518 
21.4 Movement in liabilities   
    
 Opening net liability   17,744   15,884 
 Charge for the year 21.3  2,808   3,518 
 Benefits paid   (4,589)  (1,658)
 Closing net liability   15,963   17,744 
    
21.5 Sensitivity analysis ( _ 100 bps) on present value of defined benefit obligation   +
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22.2 Movement in deferred tax

 2020   
 Opening deferred tax  (40,124)  333,992   293,868 
 Deferred tax liability  -     15,357   15,357 
 Deferred tax asset  (24,075)  -     (24,075)
 Deferred tax expense  (24,075)  15,357   (8,718)
 Closing deferred Tax  (64,199)  349,349   285,150 
    
 2019   
 Opening deferred tax  (39,433)  325,419   285,986 
 Deferred tax liability  -     8,573   8,573 
 Deferred tax asset  (691)  -     (691)
 Deferred tax expense  (691)  8,573   7,882 
 Closing deferred Tax  (40,124)  333,992   293,868 

--------------- Rupees in thousands ---------------

Deductible
temporary
differences

Taxable
temporary
differences

Total

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   
    
 Trade creditors   38,287   32,944 
 Accrued liabilities   123,162   145,596 
 Bills payable   123,881   6,728 
 Advances from customers   30,536   31,724 
 Excise duty and sales tax payable   33,795   29,452 
 Payable to Gratuity Fund 23.1  34,795   21,224 
 Payable to Provident Fund 23.2  1,518   -   
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund  23.3  -     15,898 
 Workers' Welfare Fund   -     7,946 
 Other liabilities   4,415   575 
    390,389   292,087 
    
23.1 Payable to Gratuity Fund   
    
 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation of the scheme carried out under Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 

Actuarial Cost Method as at June 30, 2020 are as follows:   
    
 - Discount rate used for year end obligation is 8.50 % per annum (2019: 14.25% per annum).   
 
 - Discount rate used for interest cost in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss charge is 14.25 % per annum (2019: 

9.00% per annum)   
    
 - Expected rate of increase in salary level at 7.5% per annum (2019: 13.25% per annum).   
 
 - Mortality rate used is SLIC 2001-2005 (2019: SLIC 2001-2005).   
    
23.1.1 The amount recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position is as follows:   

 
   
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 23.1.2  90,172   93,877 
 Fair value of plan assets 23.1.3  (55,377)  (72,653)
 Closing net liability   34,795   21,224 
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
23.1.2 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation   
    
 Opening net liability   93,877   79,230 
 Current service cost   14,332   12,522 
 Interest cost   11,725   6,765 
 Benefits paid    (21,875)  (7,915)
 Benefits due but not paid   (1,313)  (194)
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to change in experience adjustments 23.1.6  (6,574)  3,469 
 Closing net liability   90,172   93,877 
    
23.1.3 Movement in the fair value of plan assets   
    
 Opening fair value of plan assets   72,653   59,246 
 Expected return / interest income on plan assets 23.1.7  8,795   5,875 
 Employer contribution   -     19,984 
 Benefits paid    (21,875)  (7,915)
 Benefit due but not paid   (1,313)  (194)
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.7  (2,883)  (4,343)
 Closing fair value of plan assets 23.1.9  55,377   72,653 
    
23.1.4 Movement in liabilities   
    
 Opening net liability   21,224   19,984 
 Charge for the year 23.1.5  17,262   13,412 
 Employer contribution   -     (19,984)
 Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income   (3,691)  7,812 
 Closing net liability   34,795   21,224 
    
23.1.5 The amount recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or 
   loss is as follows:   
  
 Current service cost   14,332   12,522 
 Interest cost   11,725   6,765 
 Expected return / interest income on plan assets   (8,795)  (5,875)
    17,262   13,412 
    
23.1.6 The amount recognised in unconsolidated statement of other 
   comprehensive income is as follows:   
    
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to changes in assumption      
 and experience adjustments 23.1.2  (6,574)  3,469 
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.3  2,883   4,343 
    (3,691)  7,812 

23.1.7 Return on plan assets is as follows:    
   

 Expected return / interest income on plan assets 23.1.3  8,795   5,875 
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.3  (2,883)  (4,343)
    5,912   1,532 
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23.1.8 Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets     
 

      
      
 Present value of defined benefit obligation  (90,172)  (93,877)  (79,230)  (84,760)  (69,270)
 Fair value of plan assets  55,377   72,653   59,246   70,434   54,805 
 Deficit  (34,795)  (21,224)  (19,984)  (14,326)  (14,465)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

20162017201820192020
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----------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -----------------------------------

- 100 bps+100 bps- 100 bps+100 bps
Discount rate Salary increase

23.2.1 Fair value of investment is held by Provident fund     
      
      
      
 Bank balances   13,682  16%  4,035  4%
 Term deposit    36,111  42%  55,152  60%
 Mutual funds   36,007  42%  32,072  36%
    85,800  100%  91,259  100%

%Rupees in
thousands

%Rupees in
thousands

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

23.1.9 Disaggregation of fair value of plan assets   
    
 The fair value of the plan assets at statement of financial position date for each category is as follows:   

 

 Cash and cash equivalents (adjusted for current liabilities)   (890)  1,083 
 Mutual islamic funds   16,558   26,570 
 Certificate of islamic investments   39,709   45,000 
  23.1.3  55,377   72,653 

23.1.11 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales 28  12,282   9,785 
 Selling and distribution cost 29  1,143   866 
 Administrative expenses 30  3,837   2,761 
  23.1.5  17,262   13,412 
    
23.2 The following information is based on the audited financial 
   statements of the Provident fund:   
    
 Size of the Fund - Total assets   85,909   92,996 
 Cost of investments made   85,252   95,344 
 Percentage of investments made  100% 98%
 Fair value of investments 23.2.1  85,800   91,259 

23.1.10 Sensitivity analysis ( _ 100 bps) on present value of defined benefit obligation    

     
     
     
  2020   85,181   95,864   96,012   84,959 
  2019   88,660   99,805   99,960   88,430 

+
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23.2.2 The investments out of Provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 and rules formulated for this purpose.

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 
26.1 Contingencies
 
26.1.1 During the year 2014-2015, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an assessment order under section 

122(1)(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of Tax Year 2014 raising a tax demand of Rs. 78.35 million by 
making certain disallowances and additions in taxable income as reported in the tax return of that year. The Company filed 
an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against which the adverse order was passed by the 
CIR(A). Therefore, appeal has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on February 19, 2016 against the 
said order relating to certain add backs/disallowances, which is pending for hearing. In view of Company's tax consultant, 
the Company has an arguable case on merit; however, definite outcome cannot be predicted.

 
26.1.2 During the year 2013-14, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue - (ACIR) issued assessment order under section 

122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances and additions in taxable income thereby 
raising a tax demand of Rs. 2.787 million in respect of Tax Year 2008. The Company filed  an appeal before Commissioner 
Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) The management is confident that the Company has an arguable case on merits, however 
definite outcome cannot be predicted. Hence, no provision is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial 
statements.

 

23.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)   
    
 Opening balance   15,898   26,650 
 Allocation for the year 31  -     15,898 
 Interest on opening balance 32  1,043   741 
    16,941   43,289 
 Payments made during the year   (16,941)  (27,391)
 Closing balance   -     15,898 
    
24 ACCRUED MARK-UP   
    
 Syndicated term finance facility   -     467 
 Short term borrowing   8,457   7,294 
 Gratuity Fund   1,188   -   
    9,645   7,761 
    
25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS   
    
 Short-term running finance (secured) 25.1  306,544   285,080 
    
25.1 The aggregate running finance facilities available from banks as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 500 million (2019: Rs. 

600 million) out of which Rs. 193.456 million (2019: Rs. 314.92 million) remained unutilized at the year end. The facilities 
aggregating to Rs. 400 million are secured by way of first pari passu charge over current assets & ranking charge on fixed 
assets with 25% margin. The remaining facilities aggregating to Rs. 200 million are secured by way of first pari passu 
hypothecation charge over all plant & machinery and ranking hypothecation charges over all current assets with 25% 
margin. These facilities are renewable annually and carry mark-up at 3-months KIBOR plus 1.25% to 3% p.a (2019:  
3-months KIBOR plus 1.5% - 3% p.a).
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26.1.3 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has issued Assessment Orders in 2014-2015 raising an aggregate sales tax 
demand for Rs. 5.989 million by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Company in its sales tax return for tax period from 
July 2012 to February 2015. The Company had filed appeals against such Assessment Orders before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (CIR-A) who has passed orders aggregating to Rs. 5.91 million in favor of the Company. During the year ended June 
30, 2016, tax department has filed appeals against the said orders before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which are 
pending for hearing. In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision 
is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

26.1.4 In respect of tax periods from July 2012 to December 2014, an Order in Original (ONO) has been issued by an Officer of Sales 
Tax in 2014-2015 against the Company raising a demand of Rs. 244.274 million which is mainly based on comparison of 
industry average for fuel and power consumption with that of the Company and thereby presuming the production quantities 
which in the view of tax authorities have not been subject to Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty.  Accordingly, the Company has 
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the ONO passed by Officer of Sales Tax, however 
CIR-A decided the case against the Company.  Accordingly, the Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland 
Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A. Moreover, recovery proceedings were also initiated by tax authorities in the matter 
for an aggregate demand amount of Rs 488.548 million including 100% penalty on the principal amount as aforesaid. Therefore, 
the Company filed a stay application against the said aggregate demand before Sindh High Court. The Sindh High Court has 
allowed ad interim relief against recovery of demand and refrained tax authorities to take any adverse action in this respect. 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has passed an order in favor of the Company. 
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal in the High Court of Sindh against 
the order passed by Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue in favor of the Company. The matter is pending for adjudication. In view of 
Company's legal counsel, the case is sound in law, however definite outcome cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty.  

 
26.1.5 During the year ended June 30, 2018, an Order in Original (ONO) has been issued by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue 

(DCIR) against the Company in respect of tax periods from July 2013 to August 2017 raising a demand of Rs. 56.632 million 
by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Company in its sales tax returns for the aforesaid tax periods.  The Company has 
filed an appeal on March 28, 2018 against the ONO passed by DCIR before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). 
The appeal has been decided in favor of the Company. The Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by (CIR-A) in favor of the Company. The matter is pending for adjudication.  In 
view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made 
in these unconsolidated financial statements. 

26.1.6 During the year ended June 30, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 161/205 of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001(the Ordinance) in respect of tax year 2017 raising a tax demand of Rs. 94.670 million including 
default surcharge and penalty aggregating to Rs 15.208 million on the ground that Company has not deducted applicable 
withholding taxes while making payments for purchases & certain expenses and hence made default under section 161/205 of 
the Ordinance. The Company has filed an appeal on May 4, 2018 before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against 
the order passed by DCIR. The CIR-A has passed an order in favor of the Company.   However, Commissioner Inland Revenue, 
Zone II, Large Taxpayer Unit, Karachi has filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of 
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A)  passed in favor of the Company.  In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable 
outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.7 During the year ended June 30, 2019, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an order under section 

122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001(the Ordinance) in relation to tax audit conducted under section 177 of the Ordinance, 
in respect of tax year 2016. Through the said order, ACIR has disallowed deduction of certain expenses, deductible allowance of 
WPPF and tax credit claimed under section 65B of the Ordinance amounting to Rs 28.497 million, Rs 35.768 million and Rs 
16.915 million respectively. The Company has filed an appeal on September 13, 2018 before Commissioner Inland Revenue - 
Appeals (CIR-A) against the order passed by ACIR. While deciding the appeal, CIR-A has allowed deduction of Rs 28.497 million 
whereas deduction allowance of WPPF and tax credit under section 65B were upheld by CIR-A. Therefore, the Company has filed 
an appeal on November 12, 2018 before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A on the said 
disallowances which is pending for hearing. In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; 
hence no provision is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.  
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26.1.8 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an order-in-original (ONO) dated June 28, 2019 in respect of sales tax audit 
for the tax period from July 2017 to June 2018 raising a demand of Rs. 7.452 million (including default surcharge and penalty) 
by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Company in its sales tax return for the aforesaid tax period.  The Company filed 
an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) against ONO issued by DCIR.  While deciding appeal, CIR-A has 
deleted the disallowances of input tax amounting to Rs. 7.086 million and confirmed disallowance amounting to Rs. 0.011 
million. The Department has filed an appeal against the CIR-A's Order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue Karachi. The 
case is not yet fixed for hearing.  In view of Company's tax consultant, favourable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence 
no provision is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.9 Showcause notice u/s 122 (5A) of the ITO, 2001 dated February 15, 2019 was issued by  Additional Commissioner Inland 

Revenue (ACIR) Zone II, LTU containing observations relating to self-assessment order u/s 120 of ITO, 2001 for the tax year 
2017. The Company explained observations and attended hearings from time to time. However, learned ACIR passed Amended 
Assessment Order dated July 02, 2019 raising a demand of 34.094 million by disallowing certain expenses and tax credits.  
Such disallowances include fuel adjustment of Rs. 3.678 million, reduction in b/f tax credit u/s 65B of ITO, 2001 relating to tax 
year 2016 and disallowance of WPPF contribution. Management of the Company has filed the appeal against the impugned order 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A).   The CIR-Appeals annulled the assessment order vide his order no. 18 
dated September 06, 2019.  On November 21, 2019, ACIR issued notice to the company for further clarification/explanation 
regarding fuel adjustment, WPPF and WWF to pass the appeal effect order. The management of the Company provided the 
required clarification/explanation, however, appeal effect order has not yet been passed by ACIR.

 
26.1.10 On September 05, 2019, an Order in Original (ONO) has been issued by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) against 

the Company in respect of Sales tax audit for the tax period from July 2018 to December 2019  raising a demand of Rs. 0.150 
million including default surcharge and penalty by disallowing certain input tax amounting to Rs. 0.143 million claimed by the 
Company in its sales tax returns for the aforesaid tax period.  The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue –Appeals (CIR-A) against the said order. In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is 
anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.11 The Deputy Commissioner Inland revenue (DCIR) has issued showcause notice dated September 05, 2019 to the Company for 

the Tax Year 2019  and disallowed input tax amounting to Rs. 24.2 million on some taxable purchases and services received by 
the Company for the purpose of business during the period from July 01, 2018 to June 30, 2019. In response to showcause 
notice, the Company attended hearings from time to time and provide documents, explanations and supporting evidences. 
However, the Learned DCIR has passed an order in original (ONO) on February 13, 2020 disallowing input tax to the extent of 
Rs. 0.951 million. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue –Appeals (CIR-A) against the said 
order. In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be 
made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.12 The learned DCIR has issued an order dated February 26, 2020  as a result of monitoring of withholding taxes under Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2018. DCIR raised a demand of Rs. 0.499 million (including default surcharge and penalty) on the 
grounds that company has not deducted applicable withholding taxes at the time of making payments of certain expenses and 
hence made default under section 161/205/182 of the Income Tax Ordinance. The Company has filed an appeal before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR-A) against the order passed by DCIR which is pending for hearing. In view of 
Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these 
unconsolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.13 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued a notice on January 31, 2020 under Section 177 of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 for the purpose of Income Tax audit of the Company for the Tax Year 2015. The Company attended hearings 
from time to time and provided supporting documents and explanations against the audit observations raised by DCIR. However, 
the learned DCIR passed an amended assessment order on April 28, 2020 and raised the tax demand of Rs. 0.6 million by 
disallowing certain admissible expenses including  leave encashment, donation expense, salary expense and Tax credit u/s 65B. 
The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeal (CIR-A) against the disallowances which is 
pending for hearing. In view of Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is 
required to be made in these unconsolidated financial statements.
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----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
26.2.4 Operating lease commitments:  
   
 0 - 1 year   1,916   1,741 

26.1.14 Certain ex-employees of the Company contested the Company's gratuity policy of 30 days and filed a Suit against the 
Company demanding 60 days gratuity as applicable to the employees of former holding company having an impact of Rs. 
14.9 million. The said Suit has been decided in favor of the applicants. However, the Company challenged the said order 
vide C.P. no. 591/2013, before the Sindh High Court at Hyderabad and  later on filed Labor Appeal No. 04/2014, before 
the Sindh Labor Court No. VI at Hyderabad being the Court of appropriate jurisdiction. After dismissal of the said appeal, 
a revision application has been filed before the Sindh Labor Appellate Tribunal, Karachi. The Tribunal also dismissed the 
appeal and hence C.P. no. D - 2636 has been filed on November 2, 2015 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh at 
Hyderabad wherein stay has been granted by the High Court. The matter is pending for disposal. In view of the Company's 
legal counsel, no definite outcome can be anticipated but the Company has a good case.

 
26.1.15 An ex-employee of the Company had filed CP # 86/2013 on May 21, 2013 for recovery of Rs. 2.10 million out of which 

an amount of Rs. 0.248 million has been claimed on account of 60 days gratuity and numerous other false and fabricated 
claims of short payments of Rs. 1.86 million. In view of the Company's legal counsel, the Company has a good case 
whereas no definite outcome can be estimated.

 
26.1.16 Ex-workers of Labor Contractor had filed applications against the Company before the Labor Court at Hyderabad for 

reinstatement of their services which were not maintainable therefore, dismissed by the Court. The decision has been 
challenged vide Appeal no. Hyd-25/2016, Hyd-26/2016, Hyd-27/2016 and Hyd-28/2016 before the Sindh Labor 
Appellate Tribunal in Karachi. During the year ended June 30, 2018, Sindh Labor Appellate Tribunal has disposed of the 
appeals filed by ex-workers of contractor by awarding them the compensation instead of reinstatement of their services. 
The Company has challenged the said decision on January 5, 2018 before the High Court of Sindh, Hyderabad. In view of 
the Company's legal counsel, the Company has a good case whereas no definite outcome can be estimated.

 
26.1.17 During the year ended June 30, 2017, an ex-employee of the Company had filed a Suit no. 51/2017 on July 5, 2017 for 

recovery of damages, salaries and mesne profit amounting to Rs. 197 million in the High Court of Sindh. The said 
ex-employee was dismissed from the Company's service on November 1, 1999 due to involvement in serious acts of 
misconduct. The said person has challenged the dismissal before different forums including High Court of Sindh, Federal 
Services Tribunal and the Supreme Court of Pakistan and lost all the cases. In view of Company's legal counsel, this 
litigation will also lead to the same fate as detailed above.

 
26.1.18 During the year ended June 30, 2000, two cement dealers had filed Suit no. 150/2001 & 151/2001 against the Company 

for Rs. 6.5 million and Rs. 1.5 million respectively being value of trucks which were handed over to the Company in lieu of 
outstanding dues from these dealers. The matter is pending for adjudication. In view of the Company's legal counsel,  no 
unfavorable outcome can be estimated.

 
26.2 Commitments
 
26.2.1 Guarantee given by a commercial bank to Sui Southern Gas Company Limited on behalf of the Company amounts to Rs. 45 

million (2019: Rs. 45 million).
 
26.2.2 Other outstanding guarantees given on behalf of the Company by banks amount to Rs. 3 million (2019: Rs. 3 million).
 
26.2.3 Irrevocable letter of credit under revenue & capital expenditure as on balance sheet date were Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 64.196 

million ) & Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 32.699 million) respectively.
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27 SALES - NET   
    
 Gross Sales -   Local   2,377,892   3,906,289 
  -   Export   220,822   784,738 
     2,598,714   4,691,027 
    
 Less: -   Federal Excise Duty   465,677   599,368 
  -   Sales tax   377,810   623,248 
     843,487   1,222,616 
    
   27.1  1,755,227   3,468,411 
    
27.1 The Company's revenue disaggregated by primary geographical
   markets is as follows.    
    
 Sale of cement and clinker   
    
 Primary geographical markets   
 Within Pakistan   1,534,405   2,683,673 
 Outside Pakistan   220,822   784,738 
    1,755,227   3,468,411 
    
27.2 Company's revenue disaggregated by pattern/timing of revenue recognition is as follows:   

    
 Timing of revenue recognition   
    
 Goods transferred at a point in time   1,755,227   3,468,411 
    
28 COST OF SALES   
    
 Raw material consumed 28.1  100,388   193,461 
    
 Manufacturing expenses   
 Fuel and power   1,118,598   1,775,188 
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.3  280,755   284,857 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  84,636   135,637 
 Packing material consumed 28.2  67,608   150,193 
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed   54,271   71,093 
 Vehicle hire, running & maintenance   9,389   11,956 
 Repairs and maintenance   6,288   16,227 
 Insurance   5,165   14,576 
 Other production overheads   4,487   6,126 
 Communication   1,668   2,294 
 Provision / (reversal) for slow moving & obsolete stores and
   impairment of major stores & spares 6.3 & 10.1  1,126   4,733 
 Entertainment   804   1,544 
    1,634,795   2,474,424 
 Cost of production (balance carried forward)   1,735,183   2,667,885 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 Balance brought forward   1,735,183   2,667,885 
    
 Work-in-process   
    
   Opening balance   286,583   408,198 
   Closing balance 11  (303,363)  (286,583)
    (16,780)  121,615 
 Cost of goods manufactured   1,718,403   2,789,500 
    
 Finished goods   
    
   Opening balance   36,002   42,946 
   Closing balance 11  (51,278)  (36,002)
    (15,276)  6,944 
    1,703,127   2,796,444 
    
28.1 Raw material consumed   
    
 Opening balance   20,399   46,972 
 Purchases   98,576   166,888 
    118,975   213,860 
 Closing balance 11  (18,587)  (20,399)
  28.1.1  100,388   193,461 
    
28.1.1 It includes royalty amounting to Rs. 4.678 million (2019: Rs. 8.599 million) relating to Lime Stone and Clay Shale, payable 

to Director General Mines & Mineral Development, Government of Sindh.    
    
    
28.2 Packing material consumed   
    
 Opening balance   46,208   30,611 
 Purchases   58,362   165,790 
    104,570   196,401 
 Closing balance 11  (36,962)  (46,208)
    67,608   150,193 
    
28.3 This includes employees' retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 21.243 million (2019: Rs. 19.495 million).  

   

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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29 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST   
    
 Export logistics and related charges   49,852   156,307 
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1  16,767   17,646 
 Commission   7,591   13,385 
 Loading and others   5,546   11,405 
 Rent, rates and taxes   2,492   2,203 
 Freight charges - local sale   2,214   11,555 
 Vehicle running expenses   1,561   1,391 
 Marking fee expense   812   1,879 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  789   773 
 Sales promotion expenses   635   1,555 
 Communication   345   313 
 Travelling and conveyance   327   647 
 Repair and maintenance   301   270 
 Entertainment   234   215 
 Utilities   149   260 
 Printing and stationery   79   74 
 Advertisements   59   24 
 Miscellaneous   7   356 
    89,760   220,258 
    
29.1 This includes employees' retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 1.879 million (2019: Rs. 1.602 million).   

   
    
30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   
    
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1  50,260   53,875 
 Rent, rates and taxes   4,029   3,492 
 Fees and subscription   3,629   2,187 
 Education expenses   3,414   6,584 
 Repairs and maintenance   3,359   3,665 
 Board, Audit and HR Committee meeting fees   3,020   4,600 
 Vehicle running expenses   2,731   2,721 
 Legal and professional charges   2,424   4,735 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  2,223   3,443 
 Other auditors' remuneration 30.4  1,600   1,317 
 Utilities   1,499   1,726 
 Auditors' remuneration 30.3  1,325   1,160 
 Communication, postage, telegram   1,218   1,306 
 Corporate expenses   759   1,283 
 Printing and stationery   542   1,879 
 Charity and donation 30.2  542   1,311 
 Provision for doubtful debt 12  897   2,182 
 Entertainment   501   625 
 Miscellaneous   433   314 
 Insurance   367   358 
 Travelling and conveyance   352   79 
 Advertisements   165   353 
 Fixed assets written off 6.1.1  3   249 
 Amortization of intangible assets 7  -     2,800 
    85,292   102,244 
    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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30.1 This includes employees' retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 6.456 million (2019: Rs. 5.683 million).   

30.2 None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in any donee's fund to which donation was made.  

   
30.3 Auditor's remuneration   
    
 Annual audit fee   840   867 
 Half yearly review fee   250   77 
 Audit fee for unconsolidated financial statements   42   38 
 Fee for Code of Corporate Governance & other services   49   38 
 Out of pocket expenses   144   140 
    1,325   1,160 
    
30.4 Other auditor's remuneration   
 
 Internal audit fee   1,480   1,197 
 Out of pocket expenses   120   120 
    1,600   1,317 
    
31 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES   
     
 Workers' Welfare Fund   -     6,740 
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23.3  -     15,898 
 Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment   -     20 
 Exchange loss   16,194   11,975 
 Loss on sale of store items   173   -   
 Others   2,740   -   
    19,107   34,633 
    
32 FINANCE COST   
    
 Mark-up on long term financing   4,015   24,134 
 Mark-up on short term borrowings   37,256   25,076 
 Mark-up on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23.3  1,043   741 
 Mark-up on Gratuity Fund 38.1.3  1,188   -   
 Bank charges and commission   651   669 
    44,153   50,620 

33 OTHER INCOME   
    
 Income from financial assets   
 Income on bank deposit accounts 33.1  4,594   4,926 
 Markup earned on loan/advance to the Subsidiary 38.3  899   -   
    5,493   4,926 
    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 Income from non-financial assets   
 Management fee 33.2  21,259   19,326 
 Waste heat recovery   11,259   -   
 Scrap sales   2,533   4,755 
 Rental income   1,737   1,481 
 Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment   104   -   
 Gain on sale of store items   -     176 
 Others   2,893   442 
    39,785   26,180 
    45,278   31,106 
    
33.1 Income earned from bank deposits are under interest / mark-up arrangements with conventional banking system.  

   
33.2 This represents management fee income of Rs. 21.26 million (2019: Rs. 19.33 million) for Business Support Services 

provided to Thatta Power (Private) Limited, which is a Subsidiary Company.   
 

   
34 TAXATION   
    
 Current    25,802   73,914 
 Deferred    (8,718)  7,882 
    17,084   81,796 
    
34.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit    
    
 (Loss) / profit before tax   (140,934)  295,318 
    
 Tax at 29%   -     85,642 
    
 Tax effect of   
 - admissible/inadmissible expenses in determining taxable income - net   -     1,209 
 - income charged at different rates    2,211   7,860 
 Tax Credit under section 65B    -     (20,797)
 Minimum Tax U/s 113   23,591   -   
 Tax effect on taxable temporary differences - net   (8,718)  7,882 
    17,084   81,796 

34.2 The returns of income have been filed upto and including Tax Year 2019 (corresponding to financial year ended June 30, 
2019) which are treated as deemed assessment order by Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 120 of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. However, assessment order(s) including deemed assessment orders may be amended by the CIR within 
five years from the expiry of the financial year in which such order(s) is issued or further amended within one year from the 
end of financial year in which such amended orders issued.  

    
 Deemed assessment orders in respect of tax years 2015, 2016 and 2017 were amended by CIR.   

   

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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34.3 As per section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, in case a public company which does not distributes 20% of its 
after tax profit for the year within six months of the end of the tax year through cash, a tax at the rate of 5 % of its 
accounting profit before tax shall be imposed. The Company earned a profit after tax of Rs. 213.522 million for the year 
ended June 30, 2019, however, keeping in view the lower profitability and foreseeing the challenging conditions faced by 
cement sector in the year ahead, the Board of Directors did not recommended any dividend for the year ended June 30, 
2019.   

    
 The Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the vires of Section 5A of 

the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and SHC accepted the CP and granted stay against the aforementioned section. In view 
of Company's legal consultant, favourable outcome is anticipated. Hence no provision for tax liability in this respect has 
been recorded by the Company in these unconsolidated financial statements.   

    
34.4 During the year, amendment made under section 65B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through the Finance Act, 2019 

whereby the percentage of tax credit on investment in plant and machinery has been reduced from 10% to 5% for the tax 
year 2019 which is subject to adjustment against the refund or may required to be paid with the Return of Income.  
Company filed a petition in the high court against the amendment and obtained stay order as the likely impact of the 
amendment in 65B would be Rs. 10.398 million. The management is confident that the Company has an arguable case on 
merits. Hence, no provision has been recorded in the unconsolidated financial statements, since till the next date, no 
adverse action shall be taken against the Company in respect of this case.   

    
35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED   
    
35.1 Basic earnings per share   
    
 (Loss) / profit for the year (Rupees in thousands)   (158,018)  213,522 
    
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number of shares)   99,718,125   99,718,125 
    
 (Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)   (1.58)  2.14 
    
35.2 Diluted earnings per share   
    
 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company did not have any convertible instruments in issue as at June 

30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.  
 

    
36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
    
 Cash and bank balances 17  22,465   72,770 
 Short term borrowings 25  (306,544)  (285,080)
     (284,079)  (212,310)
    

37 CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION   
    
 Production capacity - clinker (tons) 37.1  548,400   548,400 
 Actual production - clinker (tons) 37.1  258,158   470,245 
 Actual production - cement (tons) 37.2  197,463   366,649 
    
37.1 The production capacity utilization of clinker during the year has remained at 47.07% (2019: 85.75%).  
    
37.2 Cement from clinker is produced in accordance with the market demand.   
    

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019Note

2020 2019Note
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37.3 In the prior years, the 'production capacity' and the resulting 'production capacity utilization' has been understated and 
overstated respectively. The Company has rectified the same.   

    
38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   
    
 Related parties comprises of associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key management personnel and staff 

retirement funds. The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into 
at commercial terms and conditions except for Service Level Agreement for business support services with the Subsidiary 
Company for which the basis are approved by the Board of Directors. Further, contribution to defined contribution plan 
(provident fund) is made as per the terms of employment and trust deed and contribution to the defined benefit plan 
(gratuity scheme) is in accordance with the actuarial advice. Detail of transactions during the year ended June 30, 2020 
and outstanding balances as at June 30, 2020 with related parties are as follows:    
   

38.1 Transaction with related parties   
    
38.1.1 Subsidiary Company  

 Thatta Power (Private) Limited   
 Common shared expenses   3,879   3,607 
 Receipts on account of common shared expenses   2,881   3,643 
 Sales/purchase of store items (inclusive of GST) - net   90   13,523 
 Receipts/payment on account of purchase of store items - net   522   13,820 
 Purchase of electricity (inclusive of GST)   604,187   836,925 
 Payment on account of electricity (inclusive of GST)   608,241   826,924 
 Management fee claimed (inclusive of SST)   24,022   21,839 
 Management fee received (inclusive of SST)   17,834   21,673 
 Loan/advance to the Subsidiary 38.3  58,000   -   
 Receipts on account of loan/advance to the Subsidiary 38.3  58,000   -   
 Sale of cement   -     10,778 
 Receipts on account of sale of cement   380   11,824 
 Markup earned on loan/advance to the Subsidiary 33  899   -   
 Receipts on account of markup on loan/advance to the Subsidiary    899   -   
 Sale of waste heat (inclusive of GST)   13,173   -   
 
38.1.2 Key management personnel   
 Salaries and benefits 39  56,873   67,281 
 Sale of vehicles   -     102 
  
38.1.3 Other related parties   
 Contribution to Employees' Gratuity Fund 23.14  -     19,984 
 Markup on account of payable to Gratuity Fund 32  1,188   -   
 Contribution to Employees' Provident Fund   8,753   9,850 
 Education expenses - Model Terbiat School  30  3,309   6,312 
    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020



Annual Report 2020 79

------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -------------------------------

Executives

2020 2019

Chief
Executive

Chief
Executive

Executives

 Managerial remuneration  14,353   29,141   12,000   42,537 
 Leave fare allowance  725   1,407   303   885 
 Bonus  1,550   3,354   606   2,148 
 Retirement benefits  2,113   3,955   1,966   6,439 
 Other benefits     156   119   157   240 
   18,897   37,976   15,032   52,249 
     
 Number of person(s)  2   11   1   13 
     
39.1 The Chief Executive, Executive Director and Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained car(s) and other 

benefits in accordance with their entitlement as per rules of the Company.    
    

39.2 An aggregate amount of Rs. 3.020 million (2019: Rs. 4.6 million) was paid to Non-Executive Directors during the year on 
account of Board, Audit Committee and HR & Remuneration Committee meeting fee. 

38.2 Balances with related parties   
    
38.2.1 Subsidiary Company    
 Thatta Power (Private) Limited   
 Payable against purchase of electricity (inclusive of GST)   75,377   79,431 
 Receivable against management fee (inclusive of SST)   8,008   1,820 
 Receivable against common shared expenses   1,320   322 
 Receivable against sale/purchase of store items - net   61   673 
 Receivable against sale of cement   -     380 
 Receivable against sale of waste heat (inclusive of GST)   13,173   -   
    
38.2.2 Other related parties   
 
 Payable to Employees' Gratuity Fund   35,983   21,224 
 Payable to Employees' Provident Fund   754   -   
    
38.3 Loan/advance to the Subsidiary   
    
 The Company had sought approval from its shareholders in Annual General Meeting held on October 21, 2019, to provide 

advance/loan facility aggregating to Rs. 300 million at KIBOR+2.62% to Subsidiary Company to honor its financial 
obligations and to meet its working capital requirements.   

    
38.4 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment and as further 

disclosed under note 39.   
    
39 REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES   

   
 The aggregate amount charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for the year in respect of remuneration to the 

Chief Executive, Directors and Executives is as follows:

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020



80 THATTA CEMENT

40 OPERATING SEGMENTS   
    
40.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.  

   
40.2 Revenue from sale of cement and clinker represents 100% (2019: 100%) of the total revenue of the Company.  

40.3 91.50%  (2019: 77.37%) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.   
   

40.4 All non-current assets of the Company at June 30, 2020 are located in Pakistan.   
   

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT   
    
 The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowing and management of working capital with a view to maintain 

an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a whole the Company's risk arising from 
financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such 
instruments. Financial instruments of the Company are as under:   

    
    
 
 Financial assets   
 Long term deposits 9  1,096   1,096 
 Trade debts 12  136,330   197,809 
 Trade deposits 14  1,734   1,534 
 Other receivables and accrued interest 15  17,703   18,921 
 Cash and bank balances 17  22,465   72,770 
    179,328   292,130 
    
 Financial liabilities   
 Current maturity of long term financing 19  -     87,817 
 Unclaimed dividend   2,039   2,540 
 Long term deposits 20  2,791   4,297 
 Trade and other payables 23  321,643   207,067 
 Accrued mark-up 24  9,645   7,761 
 Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
    642,662   594,562

41.1 Financial instruments and related disclosures 
  
  Financial risk management objectives
   The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments: 
  
  - credit risk
  - liquidity risk
  - market risk
  - operational risk
  
  The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the 

Company's risk management framework. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, the management 
has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's financial risk exposure. The 
Company's overall risk management program focuses on the under predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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%Rupees in
thousands

%Rupees in
thousands

2020 2019

 a) Credit risk
  
  Credit risk is a risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party 

to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when 
a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with same party, or when counter parties are engaged in 
similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would 
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly effected by change in economics, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments 
affecting a particular industry.

  
  At the reporting date, the Company's total credit risk was concentrated in the following industrial/economic sectors: 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:   
    
 Long term deposits 9  1,096   1,096 
 Trade debts 12  136,330   197,809 
 Trade deposits 14  1,734   1,534 
 Other receivables and accrued interest 15  17,703   18,921 
 Bank balances 17  19,890   70,289 
    176,753   289,649 
    
41.1.1 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired   
    
 The credit quality of assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information 

and external credit ratings or to historical counterparty default rates. As at June 30, 2020 trade debts of Rs. 64.601 
million (2019: Rs. 22.622 million) were past due but not impaired. These relates to a number of independent customers 
for whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of these trade debts is as follows:   

    

    
 -   within 30 days   50,180   120,202 
 -   31 to 90 days   21,549   54,985 
 -   91 to 180 days   27,947   18,845 
 -   over 180 days   36,654   3,777 
  12  136,330   197,809 
    

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure to credit risk, 
the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payment from its customers against sale of cement. Except for 
customers relating to the Government and certain credit worthy customers, the management strictly adheres to this 
policy. For any balance receivable from such Government & credit worthy customers, the management continuously 
monitors the credit exposure towards them and make provisions against those balances considered doubtful. Cash is held 
only with banks with high quality credit worthiness. There is no significant risk exposure to loan and advances and other 
receivables.

  Banks   19,890  11%  70,289  24%
  Others   159,438  89%  219,360  76%
     179,328  100%  289,649  100%

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 The credit quality of cash at bank (in Current, PLS and deposit accounts) as per credit rating agencies is as follows:  
 

    
 Rating   
    
 A1 +   35   65,463 
 A1   9   9 
 A-   31   31 
 Other   19,815   4,786 
  17  19,890   70,289 

 Due to Company's long standing relationship with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong 
financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligation to the 
Company. For trade debts, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the customer, taking into 
account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are fixed based on internal or external 
ratings in accordance with limits set by the management. The utilization of said limits is regularly monitored.  
 

 Financial assets that are past due or impaired   
    
 The credit quality of financial assets that are past due or impaired can be assessed by reference to  note 12.1. The aging 

analysis of these impaired trade debts is as follows:   
 
   
    
 Below ten years   3,079   2,182 
 Over ten years   72,028   72,028 
    75,107   74,210 
 
 b) Liquidity risk management  
    
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than 
expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.    

    
  The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of non-current interest bearing liabilities, long term deposit, short 

term borrowings, trade and other payable and mark-up accrued.   
    
  The Company's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 

meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Company's reputation.    

    
  Management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet 

liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue 
reliance on large individual customers.

 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities    
   

 The table below analyses Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 
the balance sheet date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The amounts in the table are the 
gross nominal undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments).

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2019
Carrying amount

2018

 Non-derivative Liabilities      
 Long term deposits 20  2,791   (2,791)  -     -     (2,791)
 Trade and other payables 23  359,853   (359,853)  (359,853)  -     -   
 Short term borrowings 25  306,544   (306,544)  (153,272)  (153,272)  -   
 Accrued mark-up 24  9,645   (9,645)  (9,645)  -     -   
    678,833   (678,833)  (522,770)  (153,272)  (2,791)
       
  

 Non-derivative Liabilities      
 Current maturity of long
   term financing 19  87,817   (92,277)  (92,277)  -     -   
 Long term deposits 20  4,297   (4,297)  -     -     (4,297)
 Trade and other payables 23  260,363   (260,363)  (260,363)  -     -   
 Short term borrowings 25  285,080   (285,080)  (142,540)  (142,540)  -   
 Accrued mark-up 24  7,761   (7,761)  (7,761)  -     -   
    645,318   (649,778)  (502,941)  (142,540)  (4,297)
       
 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rate 

effective as at the reporting date. 

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

Carrying
amount

Note

Note

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

2020
Six to twelve

months
More than
one year

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

2019
Six to twelve

months
More than
one year

 c) Market risk  
    
  Market risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads 

(not relating to changes in the obligor's / issuer's credit standing) will affect the Company's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.  

    
 d) Interest / Mark-up rate risk management  
    
  Interest / mark-up rate risk management arises from the possibility of changes in interest/mark-up rates which may affect 

the value of financial instruments. The Company has long term finance and short term borrowing at variable rates. 
Company is exposed to interest / mark-up rates risk on long term financing, where interest rate risk is covered by holding 
"Prepayment option" which can be exercised upon any adverse movement in the underlying interest rates. At the balance 
sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:  

    
 
 
 
 Variable rate instruments  
 Financial assets   9,691   67,600 
 Financial liabilities   306,544   372,897 
    
 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:  
    
 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

Therefore, change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect unconsolidated profit or loss account.  
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 Assets      
 Bank balance in PLS accounts 17 6.5% to 11.25%  9,691   -     -     9,691 
 Total assets    9,691   -     -     9,691 
       
 Liabilities      
 Short term borrowings 25 12.97% to 15.60%  (153,272)  (153,272)  -     (306,544)
 Total liabilities    (153,272)  (153,272)  -     (306,544)
 On-balance sheet gap    (143,581)  (153,272)  -     (296,853)
 Total interest risk sensitivity gap    (143,581)  (296,853)  (296,853)  (296,853)
       

 Assets      
 Bank balance in PLS accounts 17 3% to 6.5%  67,600   -     -     67,600 
 Total assets    67,600   -     -     67,600 
       
 Liabilities      
 Short term borrowings 25 8.92% to 13.99%  (142,540)  (142,540)  -     (285,080)
 Long term financing 19 8.89% to 14.92%  (92,277)  -     -     (92,277)
 Total liabilities    (234,817)  (142,540)  -     (377,357)
 On-balance sheet gap    (167,217)  (142,540)  -     (309,757)
 Total interest risk sensitivity gap    (167,217)  (309,757)  (309,757)  (309,757)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

2020
Mark-up /
return (%)

Note

Note

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

More than
1 year

Total

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

2019
Mark-up /
return (%)

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

More than
1 year

Total

 e) Foreign exchange risk management    
     

  Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to change in foreign 
exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. 
Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts receivable/payable from/to the 
foreign entities and outstanding letters of credit and bills payable. 
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 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:  
    
 Financial assets  
    
 If interest rate had fluctuated by _1% with all other variables held constant, (loss) / profit before tax for the year would 

have been Rs. 0.10 million (2019: Rs 0.68 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest income from 
these financial assets.  

    
 Financial liabilities  
    
 If interest rate had fluctuated by _1% with all other variables held constant, (loss) / profit before tax for the year would 

have been Rs. 3.07 million (2019: Rs. 3.73 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense 
on these financial liabilities.

 A summary of the Company’s interest rate gap position, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity 
dates at the end of year is as follows:

+

+
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 The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

 f) Fair value of financial instruments    
   

  Fair value of the financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be sold or exchanged, or a liability can be 
settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.    
   

  The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values. 
The methods used for determining fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in respective 
policy notes.    

 
 g) Fair value hierarchy    

   
  The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation technique:    
     
  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.    
  Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable 

either, directly or indirectly.    
     
  Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 

observable market data.
   
 h) Capital Risk Management    

  The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it 
can continue to provide returns and benefits for shareholders and to maintain a strong base to support the sustained 
development of its business.    

     

 Effects of US Dollars gain/loss   6,194  336 

 Trade and other payables    123,881   737   6,728   41 
      
 Currently, the Company does not obtain forward cover against the gross exposure. The following significant rates applied 

during the year:     
  

 
 
 USD to PKR    158.64   136.39   168.10  163.24 
      
 Sensitivity analysis     
      
 A five percent strengthening / weakening of Rupee against US Dollar on June 30th would have increased / decreased equity 

and unconsolidated profit and loss account by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis that were used for the year 2019.

------------------------------------- in thousands -------------------------------------

USDUSDPKR PKR
2020 2019

Rate as on June 30Average Rate
2020 20202019 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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  The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and make adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount 
of dividend payable to the shareholders or issue new shares.    

  
  The Company finances its expansion projects through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a 

view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.   
 

     
     
 Gearing ratio    

Accrued mark-up 24  9,645   7,761 
 Current maturity of long term financing 19  -     87,817 
 Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
 Total debt   316,189   380,658 
 
 Less: cash and bank balances 17  (22,465)  (72,770)
 Net debt (A)   293,724   307,888 
 
 Share capital 18  997,181   997,181 
 Share premium   99,718   99,718 
 Accumulated profit   1,367,680   1,522,007 
 Total shareholders' equity (B)   2,464,579   2,618,906 
     
 Total shareholders' equity and net debt (A+B)   2,758,303   2,926,794 
     
 Gearing ratio (A+B)/(A)  10.65% 10.52%
     
 i) Operational risk    

    
  Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, 

technology and infrastructure supporting the Company's activities, either internally within the Company or externally at 
the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those 
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of operation behaviour. Operational 
risks arise from all the Company's activities.    
    
The Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its 
reputation while achieving its objectives of becoming a profitable organisation, producing high quality cement and 
generating returns for investors. Primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over 
operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas: 

 - requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities ;  

 - requirements for reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

 - compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;    
    

 - documentation of controls and procedures;

 - requirements for periodic assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of controls and procedures to  address 
the risks identified;

    
 - ethical and business standards;   
 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 - risk mitigation, including insurance
    
 - operational and qualitative track record of the plant and equipment supplier and related service providers.

42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
  
 The total number of employees as at year end were 497 (2019: 511) and average number of employees were 503 (2019: 

517).  
  
43 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
  
 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 30, 2020 have proposed final cash dividend Rs. Nil per share 

(2019: Rs. Nil per Share) in respect of year ended June 30, 2020. 
  
44 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
  
 For better presentation certain prior year’s figures have been reclassified consequent to certain changes in the current 

year’s presentation. 
  
45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION 
  
 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 30, 2020 by the Board of Directors 

of the Company. 
  
46 GENERAL 
  
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees. 

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at June 30, 2020

ASSETS   
NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
Property, plant and equipment 6  4,325,672   4,392,538 
Intangible assets 7  -     -   
Long term deposits 8  1,096   1,096 
Total non-current assets   4,326,768   4,393,634 
   
CURRENT ASSETS   
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 9  379,551   361,741 
Stock-in-trade 10  394,514   370,977 
Trade debts 11  937,558   881,813 
Short term investment 12  306,000   306,000 
Advances 13  37,275   47,465 
Trade deposits and prepayments 14  6,563   7,677 
Other receivables and accrued interest 15  24,683   72,246 
Taxation - net 16  267,120   268,595 
Cash and bank balances 17  60,599   119,234 
Total current assets   2,413,863   2,435,748 
   
Total assets   6,740,631   6,829,382 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
   
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY    
Share capital 18  997,181   997,181 
Share premium   99,718   99,718 
Accumulated profit   2,512,111   2,543,016 
Equity attributable to the owners of the Holding Company   3,609,010   3,639,915 
   
Non-controlling interests   870,058   795,783 
Total equity   4,479,068   4,435,698 
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Long term financing  19  1,045,078   1,065,633 
Long term deposits 20  2,791   4,297 
Long term employee benefit 21  15,963   17,744 
Deferred taxation 22  285,150   293,868 
Total non-current liabilities   1,348,982   1,381,542 
   
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Trade and other payables 23  472,428   428,056 
Unclaimed dividend   2,039   2,540 
Accrued mark-up 24  43,578   44,513 
Current maturity of long term financing 19  87,992   251,953 
Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
Total current liabilities   912,581   1,012,142 
   
Total equity and liabilities   6,740,631   6,829,382 
   
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 26  
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.   

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Sales - net 27  2,435,037   4,134,378 
   
Cost of sales 28  (2,073,431)  (3,063,598)
   
Gross profit   361,606   1,070,780 
   
Selling and distribution cost 29  (89,760)  (220,258)
Administrative expenses 30  (90,517)  (118,463)
   (180,277)  (338,721)
   
Operating profit   181,329   732,059 
   
Other operating expenses 31  (19,107)  (45,079)
Finance cost 32  (171,026)  (80,478)
   (190,133)  (125,557)
   
Other income 33  74,131   40,425 
   
Profit before taxation   65,327   646,927 
   
Taxation 34  (25,648)  (87,317)
   
Profit for the year   39,679   559,610 
   
(Loss) / profit for the year attributable to:   
-   Equity holders of the Company   (34,596)  429,585 
-   Non-controlling interest   74,275   130,025 
   39,679   559,610 

   
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted 35  (0.35)  4.31 
   
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.   

-------- Rupees --------
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Profit for the year   39,679   559,610 
   
Other comprehensive income   
   
Items to be reclassified to consolidated statement of 
  profit or loss in subsequent years   -     -  
 
Items not to be reclassified to consolidated statement 
  of profit or loss in subsequent years   
   
Remeasurement gain / (loss) of defined benefit liability 23.1.6  3,691   (7,812)
   
   
Total comprehensive income for the year   43,370   551,798 
   
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:   
   
-   Equity holders of the Company   (30,905)  421,773 
-   Non-controlling interests   74,275   130,025 
   43,370   551,798 
   
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.   

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
   
Profit before taxation   65,327   646,927 
   
Adjustment for:   
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2  186,684   195,136 
Amortization on intangibles 7  -     2,800 
Provision for slow moving & obsolete stores and 
  impairment of major stores & spares 28  3,118   4,733 
Finance cost 32  169,983   80,478 
Provision for gratuity 23.1.5  17,262   13,412 
Provision for leave encashment 21.3  2,808   3,518 
Provision for doubtful debt 30  897   2,182 
Property, plant and equipment written off 30  3   11,519 
Workers' Welfare Fund   -     6,740 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund   1,043   16,639 
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33  (104)  20 
   381,694   337,177 
   
Operating cash flows before working capital changes   447,021   984,104 
   
Working capital changes   
(Increase) / decrease in stores, spare parts and loose tools   (19,315)  310,280 
(Increase) / decrease in stock-in-trade   (23,537)  133,062 
Increase in trade debts   (56,642)  (371,028)
Decrease in advances   10,190   4,776 
Decrease in trade deposits and prepayments   1,114   19,006 
Decrease in other receivables and accrued interest   47,563   33,480 
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables    54,645   (255,174)
   14,018   (125,598)
   
Cash generated from operations   461,039   858,506 
   
Finance cost paid   (167,701)  (80,802)
Gratuity paid 23.1.4  -     (19,984)
Leave encashment paid 21.4  (4,589)  (1,658)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid   (7,946)  (8,970)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid   (16,941)  (27,391)
Income tax paid - net   (32,891)  (110,616)
   (230,068)  (249,421)
Net cash generated from operating activities   230,971   609,085 
   

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

98 THATTA CEMENT



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
   
Fixed capital expenditure   (119,825)  (1,186,262)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   104   123 
Net cash used in  investing activities   (119,721)  (1,186,139)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
   
Repayment of long term financing   (189,342)  (333,459)
Long term financing obtained   -     1,102,863 
Dividend paid   (501)  (142,405)
Long term deposits (paid) / received   (1,506)  820 
Net cash (used in) / generated from  financing activities   (191,349)  627,819 
   
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (80,099)  50,765 
   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 36  (165,846)  (216,611)
   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36  (245,945)  (165,846)
   
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.   

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Accumulated
profit

Share
premium

Issued, 
subscribed
 and paid-up
share capital

Total Non-controlling
interests

Total
equity

------------------------------------ Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Balance as at July 1, 2018  997,181   99,718   2,264,837   3,361,736   665,758   4,027,494 
      
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity      
Final dividend @ Rs. 1.44 per share for the year
  ended June 30, 2018  -     -     (143,594)  (143,594)  -     (143,594)
      
Total comprehensive income for the year       
      
Profit for the year  -     -     429,585   429,585   130,025   559,610 
      
Other comprehensive income      
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   -     -     (7,812)  (7,812)  -     (7,812)
  -     -     421,773   421,773   130,025   551,798 
Balance as at June 30, 2019  997,181   99,718   2,543,016   3,639,915   795,783   4,435,698 
      
Balance as at July 1, 2019  997,181   99,718   2,543,016   3,639,915   795,783   4,435,698 
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
Profit for the year  -     -     (34,596)  (34,596)  74,275   39,679 
      
Other comprehensive income      
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   -     -     3,691   3,691   -     3,691 
  -     -     (30,905) (30,905)  74,275   43,370 
Balance as at June 30, 2020  997,181   99,718   2,512,111   3,609,010   870,058   4,479,068 
      
      
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.     
 

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS    
 

1.1 The Group consists of Thatta Cement Company Limited (TCCL) and Thatta Power (Private) Limited (TPPL), (together 
referred to as the Group).    
 

1.2 Holding Company 
    Thatta Cement Company Limited  
 Thatta Cement Company Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1980 as a public limited company. 

The shares of the Holding Company are quoted at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Holding Company's main business 
activity is manufacturing and marketing of cement. The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Office No. 
606, 607, 608 & 608A, Continental Trade Centre, Block 8, Clifton, Karachi. The production facility of the Holding Company 
comprises of 233 acres and is located at Ghulamullah Road, Makli, District Thatta, Sindh.   
 

1.3 Subsidiary Company 
    Thatta Power (Private) Limited  
 Thatta Power (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) is a 62.43% owned subsidiary of the Holding Company as at June 

30, 2020 (2019: 62.43%). The principal business of the Subsidiary Company is generation and sale of electrical power. 
As at June 30, 2020, the Subsidiary Company has authorized and issued, subscribed and paid up capital of Rs. 500 million 
and Rs. 479.16 million divided into 50,000,000 (2019: 50,000,000) ordinary shares and 47,915,830 (2019: 
47,915,830) ordinary shares respectively. The registered office and generation facility of the Subsidiary Company is 
situated at Ghulamullah Road, Makli, District Thatta, Sindh, which comprises of 3 acres.   
  

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENT    
   

2.1 Sales - net   1,755,227  3,468,411 
     

During the period, the sales of the Holding Company has decreased by approximately Rs. 1.7 billion as a consequence of 
lower demand of cement in the south region due to economic depression prevailing in the Country. The construction related 
activities also remained affected and resulted in lower sales volume due to unstable political conditions and budget cuts 
by the Government since beginning of the fiscal year.    

2.2 Current maturity of long term financing

 During the year outstanding balance of syndicated term finance facility (STFF) has been repaid fully amounting to Rs. 
87.817 million by the Holding Company.     

2.3 Impact of Coronavirus - COVID-19

 The outbreak of pandemic Coronavirus (COVID-19) resulted in strict lock-down situation at both local and global levels. This 
also resulted in labour and logistics issues, stagnation in construction activities and even suspension of business 
operations of the Group. This situation coupled with other factors has adversely affected the production and revenues of 
the Group. The management believes that due to the pandemic the Group’s operations, financial position and results have 
been impacted only on a temporary basis and believes that as normalcy comes about, these impacts will be started to 
recede.

 
2.4 Waste Heat Recovery Project    

 
 During the year, the Waste Heat Recovery Project (WHRP) of Subsidiary Company for Power Generation has been 

completed, which comprises nine boilers, a steam turbine and a generator. This WHRP utilize waste heat to produce super 
heated steam which used for power generation.  After the completion of WHRP the gross generation capacity of the 
Subsidiary Company has increased to 27.1 MW.    
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
3.1 Statement of compliance    

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprises of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the 
Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. In case the requirements 
differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.    
 

 These consolidated financial statements are being submitted to the shareholders as required under section 228 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations.    
 

3.2 Basis of consolidation    
 

 These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and the Subsidiary 
Company. The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date on which more than 50% voting rights are transferred to the Holding Company or power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Upon loss of control, the Holding Company 
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary Company, any non-controlling interests and other components of 
equity related to the Subsidiary Company. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.    
 

 The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Holding 
Company, using accounting policies that are generally consistent with those of the Holding Company.   
 

 The assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary Company have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis. The carrying value of 
investment held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the Subsidiary Company's shareholders' equity in the 
consolidated financial statements. Intra group balances and transactions are eliminated.   
 

3.3 Basis of measurement    
 

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except as otherwise 
disclosed in the respective accounting policy notes.    

3.4 Financial year    
 

 The Group's financial year starts from July 1 and ends at June 30.    
 

3.5 Functional and presentation currency    
 

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group's 
functional and presentation currency.     

3.6 Use of estimates and judgments    
 

 The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards require 
management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period of revision. In preparing these 
consolidated financial statements, the significant judgments made by the management in applying the Group's accounting 
policies and key sources of estimation and uncertainty were the same as those that were applied to the consolidated 
financial statements as at and for the year ended June 30, 2019.    
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 Management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to these consolidated financial statements:  
   

a) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment    
 

 The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its property, plant and 
equipment (note 5.1 & 6.1). The Group also reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any 
change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment 
with a corresponding affect on the depreciation charge and impairment.    

b) Intangible assets    
 

 The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related amortization charge for its intangibles (note 5.3 & 7). 
The Group also reviews the value of the intangibles for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in 
future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of intangibles with a corresponding affect on the 
amortization charge and impairment.    
 

c) Impairment of assets    
 

 The Group reviews its provision for loss allowance at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5.4 & 11). In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimates of 
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on 
assumptions about number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.  
   

d) Net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores & spares     
 

 The Group reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores and spares to assess any diminution in the respective 
carrying values (note 5.6, 5.7 & 9). Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of 
stock-in-trade, stores and spares and corresponding effect in consolidated statement of profit or loss of those future years. Net 
realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditures to make the sale.  
   

e) Provision for taxation    
 

 In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Group, the management considers the current income tax law 
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred taxes, estimates of the 
Group's future taxable profits are taken into account.    
 

f) Contingencies    
 

 The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events 
cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent 
assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of uncertain future events with respect to evaluation 
based on element of issue involved and opinion of the legal counsel (note 26).    

g) Staff retirement benefits    

 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these consolidated financial statements for actuarial valuation of 
present value of defined benefit obligation and leave encashment (note 5.9, 21 & 23.1). Change in these assumptions in future 
years may affect the liability under the schemes in those years.    
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h) Impairment of investments    
 

 The Group determines that a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value of its investments below its cost is an 
objective evidence of impairment (note 5.5 & 12). The impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount exceeds 
the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.    
 

4 STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS WHICH BECAME EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR   
 

4.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group and adopted in the 
current year    
 

 The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs 
which became effective during the current year.

 Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after)
   
   
 IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral accounts' July 1, 2019
   
 IFRS 16 'Leases' July 1, 2019
   
 IAS 12 'Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments
   classified as equity' January 1, 2019
   
 IAS 23 Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization January 1, 2019

 IFRS 3 Previously held interest in a joint operation January 1, 2019
   
 IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation January 1, 2019
   
 IFRS 11 Previously held interest in a joint operation January 1, 2019
   
 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' January 1, 2019
   
 IAS 28 'Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' 
    (Amendments to IAS 28) January 1, 2019
   
 IAS 19 'Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement' (Amendments to IAS 19) January 1, 2019
   
 Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
   
 Adoption of the above standard have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2020.  

  
4.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant  
   
 The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial 

year beginning on July 01, 2019 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's financial 
reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.  
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4.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early 
adopted by the Group  

   
 The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations will be effective from the dates mentioned 

below against the respective standard or interpretation.  
  
  Effective date (annual periods  

 Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)
  
 IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3 January 1, 2020
   
 IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020
   
 IFRS 7, IFRS 9, and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform January 1, 2020
   
 Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards January 1, 2020
   
 The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published 

standards on the financial statements of the Group.  
   
4.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP).   
   
 Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by 

the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.   
   
  Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after)
   
 IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2022
   
 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International July 1, 2009
    Financial Reporting Standards  
   
5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
   
 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below and have 

been consistently applied to all years presented.  
   
5.1 Property, plant and equipment  
   
 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 

any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.  
   
 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  
   
 Depreciation is charged using straight line method on all assets except on plant and machinery (other than utilities within plant and 

machinery) on which depreciation is charged by applying 'Units of Production (UoP) method'. Majority items of plant and machinery 
of the Subsidiary Company are depreciated on the basis of 'Running Hours' (RH) of engines. Depreciation rates of each item is 
mentioned in note 6.1. Depreciation on addition is charged from the date when the asset is available for use and on disposal up to 
the date when the asset is classified as 'held-for-sale' in accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations' or the date when the asset is derecognized, whichever is earlier. Assets' residual values and useful  
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 lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date. 
  
 Subsequent costs  
   
 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to consolidated 
statement of profit or loss as and when incurred whereas major renewals and improvements are capitalized.  

   
 Disposal  
   
 The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal 

with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.  
  

5.1.1 Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)  
   
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment loss, if any. These 

costs are transferred to fixed assets as and when assets are available for use.  
   
5.2 Government grant  
   
 Government grants related to assets are presented by deducting the grant amount in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. 

The grant is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss over the useful life of the asset as reduced by depreciation 
expense.  

   
5.3 Intangible assets  
   
 Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the cost 

of an asset can be measured reliably. Cost of intangible asset includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental 
to bring the asset for its intended use. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and 
when incurred. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of an asset on a systematic basis by applying the straight line method. Useful 
lives of all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization is significant. 
Subsequent expenditure on intangible asset is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. 

   
5.4 Impairment  
   
 Financial assets  
   
 The Group recognize an allowance for expected credit loss on all financial assets carried at amortized cost irrespective whether a 

loss event has occurred. For trade debts, the Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses 
(loss allowance) which uses a life time expected loss allowance while general 3-stage approach for other financial assets (deposits, 
other receivables and cash and bank balances) i.e. to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL 
if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
  

 The Group measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the 
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. Where the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the 
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 
  

 The Group recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal), that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in consolidated statement of profit or loss.  
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 Non-Financial assets  
   
 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than stock in trade and deferred tax asset, are assessed at each reporting date 

to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is 
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, for the amount by 
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value 
less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the 
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows 
(cash generating units).  

   
 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.    

5.5 Investments  
   
 Investment in associate  
   
 Investment in associates are initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investment is reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exist the investment's recoverable amount is 
estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited to 
the extent of initial cost of investment. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.6 Non-controlling interests (NCI)
 
 NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the 

Company’s interest in a subsidiary, except those part of the initial acquisition transaction, that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions.

 
5.7 Goodwill
 
 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the 

acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the 
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the 
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration 
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest 
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss account as a bargain purchase gain.

 
5.8 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
 
 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are 

accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted 
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to 
owners of the Holding Company.
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5.9 Stores, spare parts and loose tools  
   
 These are stated at lower of cost (calculated on weighted average basis) and net realisable value, less provision for obsolete and 

slow moving stores and spares. Stores and spares in transit are valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon as 
on the date of consolidated statement of financial position. 

   
 Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools is determined based on management's estimate 

regarding their future usability.  
   
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to 

be incurred to make the sale.  
   
5.10 Stock-in-trade  
   
 Stock of raw and packing material, work in process and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost 

in relation to work in process and finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate proportion of production overheads incurred 
in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Stocks of raw and packing material are valued at cost on weighted 
average basis. Stocks in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges directly attributable to the 
acquisition of related purchase incurred up to the date of consolidated statement of financial position.  

   
 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion 

and cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.  
 
5.11 Cash and cash equivalents  
   
 Cash and cash equivalents in local currency are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and cash in 

foreign currencies are stated at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. For the purposes of the consolidated 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand, cash with banks in current, PLS and deposit 
accounts net of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements, if any.  

   
5.12 Employee retirement benefits  
   
 Defined benefit plan  
   
 The Holding Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees. The scheme is 

administered by the trustees nominated under the Trust Deed. The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value 
of the Holding Company's obligations under the scheme at the date of consolidated statement of financial position less the fair 
value of plan assets, together with adjustment for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses. Contribution is made to this scheme 
on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.   
  

 The present value of obligations are determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of 
government bonds. The government bonds are consistent with the estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. 
 

 Defined contribution plan  
   
 The Holding Company also operates an approved contributory Provident fund for all its permanent employees to which equal 

monthly contributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary.  

 Leave encashment  
   
 The liability for accumulated earned leaves which are eligible for encashment relating to permanent employees are recognised on 

the basis of actuarial valuation in the period in which permanent employees render service that increases their entitlement to 
future leave encashment.  

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

108 THATTA CEMENT



   
5.13 Borrowings and finance cost  
   
 Loans and borrowings are recorded as and when the proceeds are received.  
   
 Borrowing cost incurred on long term finances directly attributable to the construction / acquisition of qualifying assets 

are capitalized up to the date, the respective assets are available for the intended use. All other mark-up, interest and 
other related charges are taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss.  

   
5.14 Taxation  
   
 Current  
   
 Provision for current taxation of the Holding Company is computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current income tax is recorded after adjustment, if any, to the provision for tax made in 
prior years including those arising from assessment and amendments in assessments during the year in such years.  
  

 The profits and gains of the Subsidiary Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from income tax in 
terms of Clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the conditions and 
limitations provided therein. Under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the 
Subsidiary Company is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on 'turnover' under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. However, full provision is made in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on income from other sources not 
covered under the above clauses at current rate of taxation after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if 
any.  

   
 Deferred  
   
 The Holding Company accounts for deferred taxation on all temporary differences using balance sheet liability method. 

Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the 
credits can be utilized.   

   
 Deferred tax has not been provided in these consolidated financial statements for the Subsidiary Company as the Group's 

management believes that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future due to the fact that the 
profits and gains of the Subsidiary Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax subject to the 
conditions and limitations provided for in terms of Clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001.  

   
5.15 IFRIC-23 Uncertainity over income tax treatments  
   
 The Group has adopted IFRIC-23 - Uncertainity over income tax treatments which clarifies how the recognition and 

measurement requirements of IAS-12 - Income taxes are applied when there is uncertainity over income tax treatment. 
IFRIC-23 explains how the recognition and measurement of deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities when 
there is uncertainity over tax treatment.  

   
 An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainity over income tax that will 

be accepted by tax authorities. IFRIC-23 applies to all aspect of income tax accounting, when there is a uncertainity 
regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and 
credits and tax rates. While there are new disclosure requirements, entities are reminded of the general requirements to 
provide information about judgement and estimates made in preparing the consolidated financial statements.  
  

 The Group is already in compliance with the requirements of IFRIC-23.  
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5.16 Trade and other payables  
   
 These are  recognized and carried at cost which is fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services 

received, whether or not billed to the Group.  
   
5.17 Provisions  
   
 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at date of statement of financial position and 
adjusted to reflect the best estimate.  

   
5.18 Transactions with related parties  
   
 Transactions in relation to sales, purchases and services with related parties are made at arm's length prices.  

  
5.19 Revenue recognition  
   
 Thatta Cement Company Limited  
   
 Revenue is recognized when control of a promised goods passes to a customer. It is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, sales tax and other duties collected on behalf of third parties are not taken into 
account.  

   
 The Company primarily generates revenue from sale of cement for which the control passes to the customer at a specific 

point in time.
   
 The revenue is recorded on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with the customer, including variable 

consideration such as discount, volume rebates or other contractual price reductions; if any.  
   
 Interest and rental/other income is recognized on accrual basis.  
   
 Thatta Power (Private) Limited  
   
 The Subsidiry Company has entered into Power Purchase Agreements with its customers for supply of electricity. The 

transmission of electricity is considered single performance obligation. The Company recognises revenue at point of time 
when control of electricity is transferred to customer. Control is considered to be transferred when the electricity is 
directly transmitted in the customer terminals.   

   
5.20 Financial assets and liabilities  
   
 Financial instruments  
   
 a) Amortised cost 
   
  Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely payments of 

principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment 
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in 
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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 b) Fair value through other comprehensive income 
   
  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective 

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

   
 c) Fair value through profit or loss 
   
  Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or assets 

that are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is 
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises. 

   
  Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair 

value of these financial assets are normally recognised in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to 
be recognised in consolidated profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Where an 
election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there 
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the 
investment. 

   
  Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 

received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value or amortized 
cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities 
is included in the consolidated profit or loss for the period in which it arises. 

   
  Financial assets are derecognized when the Group losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial 

asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory 
requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Group. 

   
 Financial liabilities  
   
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in 
consolidated profit or loss.  

   
 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective yield method.  
   
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in 
consolidated profit or loss.  

   
5.21 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities  
   
 A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial 

position if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Group intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realize the asset and discharge the liability simultaneously. Corresponding income on assets and 
charge on liability is also offset.  
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
    
    
 Operating fixed assets 6.1  4,260,881   3,265,338 
 Capital work-in-progress 6.3  -     1,077,386 
 Major stores and spares 6.4  64,791   49,814 
    4,325,672   4,392,538 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

5.22 Segment reporting  
   
 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 

and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other 
components. All operating segments' results are reviewed regularly by the Group's management to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance.  

   
 Segment results that are reported to the Group's management include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 

those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, mainly comprises of corporate assets, head 
office expenses and tax assets and liabilities.  

   
5.23 Foreign currency transactions  
   
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 

each transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are reported in Pakistani Rupees using the exchange 
rates those prevailing on the date of consolidated statement of financial position. All exchange differences are taken into 
consolidated statement of profit or loss.  

   
5.24 Earnings per share  
   
 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the consolidated 

profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss attributable to 
shareholders of the Holding Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.  

   
5.25 Dividends and appropriations  
   
 Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are declared / approved. The Subsidiary 

Company can declare dividends subject to prior approval from syndicate of banks.
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6.1.1 This represents certain items of operating fixed assets that have been written off as they are no longer usable and are in 
unserviceable condition.

 As at July 1,
2019

 Additions  Disposals Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2020

Depreciation
rate per
annum

As at
July 1,
2019

 Charge
for the year
(Note 6.2)

 Accumulated
depreciation
on disposals

 Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2020

 Net book
value as at
June 30,

2020

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIONCOST
2020

 Freehold land  6,422   -     -     -     6,422  -  -     -     -     -     -     6,422 

 Leasehold improvements  2,585   -     -     -     2,585  20%  2,585   -     -     -     2,585   -   

 Quarries and improvements  11,963   -     -     -     11,963  5%  11,828   9   -     -     11,837   126 

 Factory building on freehold land  488,743   147,738   -     -     636,481  10% & 4%  280,262   19,183   -     -     299,445   337,036 

 Electrical installations  59,265   -     -     -     59,265  5%  20,601   2,560   -     -     23,161   36,104 

 Housing colonies  74,096   -     -     -     74,096  5%  59,251   990   -     -     60,241   13,855 

 Office building on freehold land  22,281   -     -     -     22,281  5%  19,095   212   -     -     19,307   2,974 

 Cooling towers  73,235   -     -     -     73,235  7%  33,579   5,126   -     -     38,705   34,530 

 Plant and machinery  4,612,807   1,031,911   -     -     5,644,718  UoP & RH  1,711,727   145,306   -     -     1,857,033   3,787,685 

 Quarry equipments  19,296   -     -     -     19,296  20%  18,915   88   -     -     19,003   293 

 Railway sidings  14,905   -     -     -     14,905  10%  14,047   172   -     -     14,219   686 

 Vehicles  65,175   -     (1,075)  -     64,100   10% & 20%   54,358   5,334   (1,075)  -     58,617   5,483 

 Furniture and fixtures  11,608   -     -     (7)  11,601  10%  8,646   611   -     (6)  9,252   2,349 

 Office & other equipments  19,175   -     -     (32)  19,143  10%  8,729   1,823   -     (30)  10,522   8,621 

 Medical equipments  629   -     -     -     629  10%  627   1   -     -     628   1 

 Laboratory equipments  70,332   1,437   -     -     71,769  10%  42,929   4,954   -     -     47,883   23,886 

 Computers  20,852   1,144   -     (114)  21,882  30%  20,851   315   -     (114)  21,052   830 

   5,573,369   1,182,230   (1,075)  (153)  6,754,371    2,308,031   186,684   (1,075)  (150)  2,493,490   4,260,881 

6.1 Operating fixed assets

 Freehold land  6,422   -     -     -     6,422  -  -     -     -     -     -     6,422 

 Leasehold improvements  2,585   -     -     -     2,585  20%  2,585   -     -     -     2,585   -   

 Quarries and improvements  11,963   -     -     -     11,963  5%  11,819   9   -     -     11,828   135 

 Factory building on freehold land  488,743   -     -     -     488,743  10% & 4%  265,019   15,243   -     -     280,262   208,481 

 Electrical installations  58,848   417   -     -     59,265  5%  18,049   2,552   -     -     20,601   38,664 

 Housing colonies  74,096   -     -     -     74,096  5%  58,261   990   -     -     59,251   14,845 

 Office building on freehold land  22,281   -     -     -     22,281  5%  18,883   212   -     -     19,095   3,186 

 Cooling towers  73,235   -     -     -     73,235  7%  28,453   5,126   -     -     33,579   39,656 

 Plant and machinery  4,277,796   347,184   -     (12,173)  4,612,807  UoP & RH  1,558,852   153,533   -     (658)  1,711,727   2,901,080 

 Quarry equipments  18,857   439   -     -     19,296  20%  18,689   226   -     -     18,915   381 

 Railway sidings  14,905   -     -     -     14,905  10%  13,875   172   -     -     14,047   858 

 Vehicles  66,515   -     (1,340)  -     65,175   10% & 20%   45,876   9,720   (1,238)  -     54,358   10,817 

 Furniture and fixtures  11,608   -     -     -     11,608  10%  8,031   615   -     -     8,646   2,962 

 Office & other equipments  19,186   207   (211)  (7)  19,175  10%  7,092   1,812   (171)  (4)  8,729   10,446 

 Medical equipments  629   -     -     -     629  10%  626   1   -     -     627   2 

 Laboratory equipments  69,496   836   -     -     70,332  10%  38,158   4,771   -     -     42,929   27,403 

 Computers  20,874   -     -     (22)  20,852  30%  20,718   154   -     (21)  20,851   1 

   5,238,039   349,083   (1,551)  (12,202)  5,573,369    2,114,986   195,136   (1,409)  (683)  2,308,031   3,265,338 

             

 As at July 1,
2018

 Additions  Disposals Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2019

Depreciation
rate per
annum

As at
July 1,
2018

 Charge
for the year
(Note 6.2)

 Accumulated
depreciation
on disposals

 Adjustment
(Note 6.1.1)

 As at
June 30,

2019

 Net book
value as at
June 30,

2019

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIONCOST
2019

---------------- Rupees in thousands ---------------- ---------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------

---------------- Rupees in thousands ---------------- ---------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------
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6.2 Allocation of depreciation   
    
 The depreciation on property, plant & equipment for the year has
    been allocated as under:   
 Cost of sales 28  183,672   190,920 
 Selling and distribution cost 29  789   773 
 Administrative expenses 30  2,223   3,443 
    186,684   195,136 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

6.4 Major stores and spares   
    
 Cost   
 Opening balance   87,119   89,588 
 Additions during the year   24,050   12,217 
 Transferred to operating fixed assets and capital work-in-progress   (7,459)  (14,686)
 Closing balance   103,710   87,119 
    
 Accumulated impairment   
 Opening balance   (37,305)  (31,546)
 Impairment charge for the year   (1,614)  (5,759)
 Closing balance   (38,919)  (37,305)
 Net book value   64,791   49,814 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note

Note
6.3 Capital work-in-progress     
      
      
      
 Waste heat recovery project  6.3.1  1,077,386   94,407   (1,171,793)  -   
 June 30, 2020    1,077,386   94,407   (1,171,793)  -   
      
 June 30, 2019    214,212   1,053,727   (190,553)  1,077,386 
      
6.3.1 The Waste Heat Recovery Project has been completed during the year. After, the completion of Waste Heat Recovery 

Project the gross generation capacity of the Subsidiary Company has been increased to 27.1 MW.

---------------------- Rupees in thousands ----------------------

Opening
balance

Capital
expenditure

incurred

Transferred
to operating
fixed assets

Closing
balance

    
7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS   
 
 Cost   10,675   10,675 
 
 Amortization on intangibles   
 Opening balance   (10,675)  (7,875)
 Charge for the year 30  -     (2,800)
 Closing balance   (10,675)  (10,675)
    
 Net book value   -     -   
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9 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS   
    
 Coal and other fuels   163,933   128,020 
 Stores & spare parts   243,859   260,454 
 Loose tools   107   110 
    407,899   388,584 
    
 Provision for obsolete stores   (3,871)  (5,231)
 Provision for slow moving stores and spares   (24,477)  (21,612)
  9.1  (28,348)  (26,843)
    379,551   361,741 
   
9.1 Movement in provision   
    
 Opening balance   (26,843)  (27,869)
 (Provision) / reversal during the year   (1,505)  1,026 
 Closing balance   (28,348)  (26,843)
    
10 STOCK-IN-TRADE   
    
 Raw material 28.1  18,587   20,399 
 Packing material 28.2  36,962   46,208 
 Work-in-process 28  288,870   269,597 
 Finished goods 28  50,095   34,773 
    394,514   370,977 
     

 
11 TRADE DEBTS   
    
 Considered good   
 Local - unsecured 11.1  937,558   881,813 
    
 Considered doubtful   
 Cement stockiest 11.2  60,801   60,801 
 Excessive rebate allowed 11.2  6,101   6,101 
 Controller military accounts   5,126   5,126 
 Other customers   2,182   2,182 
 Provision as per IFRS 9   897   -   
    75,107   74,210 
 Provision for loss allowance   (75,107)  (74,210)
    937,558   881,813 

11.1 These include Rs. 711.570 million which are disputed with HESCO on grounds of tariff differential amount and subsequent 
deductions / adjustments made at the time of payment to the Subsidiary Company by the HESCO. In respect of which both 
parties i.e the Subsidiary Company and HESCO are under litigation. The brief detials of the matter are as under ; 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

8 LONG TERM DEPOSITS   
    
 Long term deposits are given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up.
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Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

 The Honorable High Court of Sindh has disposed the petition filed by the Subsidiary Company with the direction to 
HESCO to pay Thatta Power (Pvt) Ltd (TPPL) against purchase of electricity as per the rates stipulated in Power 
Purchase Agreement (PPA) until 01-02-2012 and thereafter on the reduced rates determined by NEPRA. In view 
of the adverse order and according to the advice of the legal counsel the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal 
before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the order passed by the High Court of Sindh. Consequently, HESCO 
and NEPRA have also filed appeals before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the same order, which are pending 
for adjudication. Moreover, the Subsidiary Company has resumed power supply to HESCO from January, 2017 and 
generating monthly invoice for supply of electricity as per tariff stipulated in PPA, whereas HESCO is paying the 
monthly invoice on the basis of tariff determined by NEPRA. Moreover, after the promulgation of the Sindh New 
Captive Power Plants Subsidy Bill 2017, the Government of Sindh is providing tariff differential support i.e. 
difference between tariff as per PPA and tariff determined by NEPRA, to the captive power plants. The Subsidiary 
Company has not received tariff differential subsidy after March 2018 .    
 

 However, as the matter is pending before the Supreme Court and the legal advisor expects a successful outcome 
of the case. Therefore, the management strongly feels that under the terms of the PPA, the above amount of Rs 
711.570 million is likely to be recovered by the Subsidiary Company. Further, Receivable from HESCO are secured 
to the extent of Rs.286.71 million (2019 : Rs.286.71 million) against Stand by Letter of Credit (SBLC) issued by 
National Bank Of Pakistan.   

   
11.2 This includes balances outstanding for more than ten years. The management contends that the amount 

recoverable from cement stockiest were misappropriated and certain unauthorized excessive rebates were allowed 
by collusion of certain personnel of the Holding Company, when the Holding Company was operating under State 
Cement Corporation of Pakistan (SCCP). Accordingly, the management of the Group had lodged references for the 
recovery of misappropriated amount with the National Accountability Bureau (NAB). The NAB has recovered an 
amount of Rs. 2.276 million in the preceding years. Provision has been maintained in respect of outstanding 
amount as a matter of prudence and abundant precaution.   

    

12 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT    
    
 At amortized cost   
 Term deposit with National Bank of Pakistan 12.1  306,000   306,000 
    
12.1 The term deposit is placed for a period of one year under interest/mark-up arrangement at the rate of 8.5% to 

11.00%(2019: 8.50%) per annum and has been pledged against the bank guarantee issued to Sui Southern Gas 
Company Limited by National Bank of Pakistan on behalf of the Subsidiary Company.   

13 ADVANCES   
    
 Considered good-unsecured
 
 - to vendors 13.1  37,083   43,469 
 - margin against Letter of Credit   -     3,796 
 - others   192   200 
    37,275   47,465 
    

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

116 THATTA CEMENT



Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES   
    
 Cash in hand   3,221   3,136 
    
 Balances with banks   
 -   in current accounts 17.1  21,198   38,538 
 -   in profit and loss sharing (PLS) accounts 17.1 & 17.2  36,180   77,560 
  17.3  57,378   116,098 
    60,599   119,234 
    
17.1 These accounts are maintained with commercial banks under conventional banking system.    

17.2 During the year, the mark-up rates on PLS accounts ranged from 6.5% to 11.25%  (2019: 3% to 8%) per annum.  
   

17.3 It includes restricted funds of Rs. 36.9 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 22.9 million) maintained by the Subsidiary Company 
in various project accounts at National Bank of Pakistan as a covenant of syndicated term finance agreement. The funds 
are to be used strictly in accordance with the terms of financing agreements. 

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

13.1 The Subsidary Company has applied for exemption against deduction of advance tax amounting to Rs. 26.203 million on 
import of plant & machinery for Waste Heat Recovery Project before the Commissioner Inland Revenue, which was 
rejected by the CIR. Thereafter the Subsidiary Company filed a revision application on the order passed by CIR, which was 
also rejected by the Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue. Subsequently, the Subsidiary Company filed a Constitutional 
Petition D-8047 of 2018 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Honorable High Court of Sindh has passed an 
interim Order on September 21, 2018 with the direction to deposit pay order amounting to Rs. 26.203 million as security 
and instruct collector of Customs to release the consignment of the Subsidiary Company. The case is pending for further 
adjudication.   

    
    
14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS   
    
 Trade deposits  14.1  1,734   1,534 
 Prepayments   4,829   6,143 
    6,563   7,677 
    
14.1 Trade deposits are given in the normal course of business and comprises of earnest money and security deposits. These 

do not carry any interest or mark-up.    
    
    
15 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ACCRUED INTEREST   
    
 Interest receivable from banks   6,980   7,298 
 Deposit with Commissioner Workmen's Compensation 26.1.4  14,915   14,915 
 Sales tax refundable   -     48,336 
 Others   2,788   1,697 
    24,683   72,246 
    
16 TAXATION - NET 16.1  267,120   268,595 
    
16.1 It mainly includes an amount of Rs. 217.726 million representing tax refundable of the Holding Company for the tax year 

2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 and an amount of Rs. 50.869  million representing tax refundable of the Subsidiary 
Company upto the Tax Year 2019.  
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19 LONG TERM FINANCING    
    
 Loan from Banking companies - secured   
 - Syndicated term finance facility (STFF) - TCCL 19.1  -     87,817 
 - Syndicated term finance facility (STFF) - TPPL 19.2 & 19.3  25,381   126,906 
 - Syndicated term finance facility - II (STFF - II) - TPPL 19.4 & 19.5  1,107,689   1,102,863 
    1,133,070   1,317,586 
    
 Less: Current maturity   (87,992)  (251,953)
    1,045,078   1,065,633 
    
19.1 This syndicated term finance facility has been obtained from syndicate of banks comprising of National Bank of Pakistan, 

Sindh Bank Limited, Summit Bank Limited and Silk Bank Limited. The facility carries mark-up at rates ranging between 
14.92% to 15.86% (2019: 8.89% to 14.92%) per annum payable quarterly. The tenure of financing is 8 years including 
grace period of 2 years and the facility is payable in 24 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 57.983 million each starting 
from June 17, 2016. During the year, Rs. 87.817 million has been re-paid against quarterly installments.  The facility is 
secured by first joint pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future fixed assets and mortgage over 
the immovable properties. Unless the entire amount of loan has been repaid, the Holding Company has to seek approval 
of the majority members of the syndicated term finance facility before declaration of any dividend.   
   

19.2 This syndicated term finance facility has been obtained from syndicate of banks comprising of National Bank of Pakistan, 
Sindh Bank Limited and Summit Bank Limited. The facility carries a floating mark-up linked to 3 months KIBOR as base rate 
plus 3% on annualized basis. The tenure of financing is 7 years and 9 months including grace period of 9 months and the 
facility is payable in 28 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 25.381 million each starting after one year from the date of 
first drawdown. The drawdown of the entire facility i.e. Rs. 710.675 million was on November 21, 2012.  Unless the entire 
amount of loan has been repaid, the Subsidiary Company has to seek approval of the majority members of the syndicated 
term finance facility before declaration of any dividend.      
   

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

18.1 The Holding Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The shareholders of the 
Holding Company are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at 
general meetings of the Holding Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Holding Company’s residual assets.

--- Number of shares ---

2020 2019
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

18 SHARE CAPITAL

    
     
 Authorized share capital    
     
  200,000,000   200,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.  2,000,000   2,000,000 
     
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital   

    
    Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each  - shares allotted
  89,418,125    89,418,125    for consideration fully paid in cash  894,181   894,181 
     
    Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-  each - shares allotted for
  10,300,000    10,300,000   consideration other than cash 103,000   103,000  

    
   99,718,125   99,718,125    997,181   997,181 
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20 LONG TERM DEPOSITS   
    
 Dealers 20.1  2,110   2,110 
 Suppliers and contractors 20.2  681   2,187 
    2,791   4,297 
    
20.1 These relate to dealers against whom recovery proceedings are in process with National Accountability Bureau (NAB) and 

is adjustable against the amount owed by them to the Holding Company (refer note 11.2).   
   

20.2 These represent interest free security deposits received from dealers, suppliers & contractors. These are kept in a 
separate bank account and repayable / adjustable on cancellation or withdrawal of dealership and completion of contract 
in case of suppliers and contractors.    

    
21 LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT   
    
 This represents accrual for encashment of eligible earned leave balances in respect of permanent employees. Principal 

actuarial assumptions used for determining leave encashment liability are same as are used for Gratuity actuarial valuation 
as disclosed in note 23.1.   

     
21.1 The amount recognised as liability  in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:   

  
    
    
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 21.2  15,792   17,744 
 Benefits due but not paid (payables)   171   -   
 Closing net liability   15,963   17,744 

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

19.3 The syndicated term finance facility provided by the syndicate of banks as explained in note 19.2 is secured by first joint 
pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and future moveable and immoveable fixed assets (other than 
land and building), mortgage over all present and future immoveable assets including land and building, first joint pari 
passu hypothecation charge on current assets, lien over import documents, assignment over receivables and insurance 
policies and pledge of the Subsidiary Company's shares owned by the Holding Company.    
 

19.4 This syndicated term finance facility-II has been obtained from syndicate of banks comprising of National Bank of Pakistan, 
Sindh Bank Limited and Summit Bank Limited. The facility carries a floating mark-up linked to 3 months KIBOR as base rate 
plus 2.5% on annualized basis. The tenure of financing is 7 years including grace period of 18 months and deferral period 
of 12 months. The principal repayment is payable in 18 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 62.61 million commencing after 
grace period and principal deferment period whereas the mark up is payable quarterly in arrears with no grace period.  
 

 However, during the year, the Subsidiary Company has been granted deferment of principal installment for further one year 
under State Bank's Banking Policy and Regulatory Department (BPRD) circular letter no. 13 of 2020 by member banks of 
this syndicate facility-II. As per the revised terms the 1st installment of principal is now repayble from April 2021.  There 
are no other changes in the terms of revised agreement.    

    
19.5 The syndicated term finance facility-II provided by the syndicate of banks as explained in note 19.4 is secured by first joint 

pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and future moveable and immoveable fixed assets (other than 
land and building), mortgage over all present and future immoveable assets including land and building, first joint pari 
passu hypothecation charge on current assets. 
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----------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -----------------------------------

- 100 bps+100 bps- 100 bps+100 bps
Discount rate Salary increase

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

21.2 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation   
    
 Opening balance   17,744   15,723 
 Current service cost 21.3  1,247   1,203 
 Interest cost 21.3  2,189   1,348 
 Benefits due but not paid    (171)  -   
 Benefits paid   (4,589)  (1,497)
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to change in experience adjustments 21.3  (628)  967 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation   15,792   17,744 
    
21.3 The amount recognised in consolidated statement of profit 
   or loss is as follows:    

  
 Current service cost 21.2  1,247   1,203 
 (Gain) / loss arising on present value of defined benefit obligation 21.2  (628)  967 
 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 21.2  2,189   1,348 
  21.4  2,808   3,518 
    
21.4 Movement in liabilities   
    
 Opening net liability   17,744   15,884 
 Charge for the year 21.3  2,808   3,518 
 Benefits paid   (4,589)  (1,658)
 Closing net liability   15,963   17,744 

21.6 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
    
 Cost of sales 28  2,090   2,724 
 Selling and distribution cost 29  118   131 
 Administrative expenses 30  600   663 
    2,808   3,518 

22 DEFERRED TAXATION   
    
 Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of    
 Accelerated tax depreciation   349,349   333,992 
    
 Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of   
 Other provisions - for doubtful debts and stores   (40,608)  (40,124)
 Minimum Tax u/s 113 22.1  (23,591)  -   
  22.2  285,150   293,868 
    

21.5 Sensitivity analysis ( _ 100 bps) on present value of defined benefit obligation:    

    

 

    

  2020  14,635   17,149   17,127   14,635 

  2019  16,676   18,963   18,929   16,689 

+
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22.2 Movement in deferred tax   
    
 

 2020   
 Opening deferred tax  (40,124)  333,992   293,868 
 Deferred tax liability  -     15,357   15,357 
 Deferred tax asset  (24,075)  -     (24,075)
 Deferred tax expense  (24,075)  15,357   (8,718)
 Closing deferred tax  (64,199)  349,349   285,150 
    
 2019   
 Opening deferred tax  (39,433)  325,419   285,986 
 Deferred tax liability  -     8,573   8,573 
 Deferred tax asset  (691)  -     (691)
 Deferred tax expense  (691)  8,573   7,882 
 Closing deferred tax  (40,124)  333,992   293,868 

----- Rupees in thousands -----

Deductible
temporary
differences

Taxable
temporary
differences

Total

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   
    
 Trade creditors   38,792   87,811 
 Accrued liabilities   125,144   136,166 
 Bills payable   123,881   6,728 
 Advances from customers   30,536   31,724 
 Contractors retention money   8,754   6,068 
 Excise duty and sales tax payable   33,795   29,452 
 Provision for stores and spares (generator)   -     26,496 
 Payable to Gratuity Fund 23.1.1  34,795   21,224 
 Payable to Provident Fund   1,518   -   
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23.3 & 23.4  39,656   55,554 
 Workers' Welfare Fund 23.4  15,069   23,015 
 Sales tax payable   5,883   -   
 Other liabilities   14,605   3,818 
    472,428   428,056 
   
23.1 Payable to Gratuity Fund   
    
 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation of the Fund carried out under Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 

Actuarial Cost Method as at June 30, 2020 are as follows:   
    
 - Discount rate used for year end obligation is 8.50% per annum (2019: 14.25% per annum).   

 - Discount rate used for interest cost in consolidated statement of profit or loss  is 14.25% per annum (2019: 9.00% 
per annum).   

    
 - Expected rate of increase in salary level at 7.5% per annum (2019: 13.25% per annum).   

22.1 The utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the 
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences.
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 - Mortality rate used is SLIC 2001-2005 (2019: SLIC 2001-2005).   
    
23.1.1 The amount recognised as liability in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:   

 
 
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 23.1.2  90,172   93,877 
 Fair value of plan assets 23.1.3  (55,377)  (72,653)
 Closing net liability   34,795   21,224 
    
23.1.2 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation   
    
 Opening net liability   93,877   79,230 
 Current service cost   14,332   12,522 
 Interest cost   11,725   6,765 
 Benefits paid    (21,875)  (7,915)
 Benefits due but not paid   (1,313) (194)
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to change in experience adjustments 23.1.6  (6,574)  3,469 
 Closing net liability   90,172   93,877 
    
23.1.3 Movement in the fair value of plan assets   
    
 Opening fair value of plan assets   72,653   59,246 
 Expected return / interest income on plan assets 23.1.7  8,795   5,875 
 Employer contribution   -     19,984 
 Benefits paid    (21,875)  (7,915)
 Benefit due but not paid   (1,313)  (194)
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.7  (2,883)  (4,343)
 Closing fair value of plan assets 23.1.9  55,377   72,653 
    
23.1.4 Movement in liabilities   
    
 Opening net liability   21,224   19,984 
 Charge for the year 23.1.5  17,262   13,412 
 Employer contribution   -     (19,984)
 Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income 23.1.6  (3,691)  7,812 
 Closing net liability   34,795   21,224 
    
23.1.5 The amount recognised in consolidated statement  of profit
    or loss is as follows:   
    
 Current service cost   14,332   12,522 
 Interest cost   11,725   6,765 
 Expected return / interest income on plan assets   (8,795)  (5,875)
    17,262   13,412 
    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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23.1.8 Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets:    

 
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation  (90,172)  (93,877)  (79,230)  (84,760)  (69,270)
 Fair value of plan assets  55,377   72,653   59,246   70,434   54,805 
 Deficit  (34,795)  (21,224)  (19,984)  (14,326)  (14,465)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

20162017201820192020

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

23.1.6 The amount recognised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income is as follows:   
   

 
 
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss due to change in assumption and 
   experience adjustments 23.1.2  (6,574)  3,469 
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.3  2,883   4,343 
    (3,691)  7,812 
    
23.1.7 Return on plan assets is as follows:   
    
 Expected return / interest income on plan assets 23.1.3  8,795   5,875 
 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 23.1.3  (2,883)  (4,343)
    5,912   1,532 

23.1.9 Disaggregation of fair value of plan assets:   
    
 The fair value of the plan assets at the date of consolidated statement of financial position for each category is as follows: 

   
 
 Cash and cash equivalents (adjusted for current liabilities)   (890)  1,083 
 Mutual islamic funds   16,558   26,570 
 Certificate of islamic investments   39,709   45,000 
  23.1.3  55,377   72,653 

23.1.11 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
    
 Cost of sales 28  12,282   9,785 
 Selling and distribution cost 29  1,143   866 
 Administrative expenses 30  3,837   2,761 
  23.1.5  17,262   13,412 
    

----------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -----------------------------------

- 100 bps+100 bps- 100 bps+100 bps
Discount rate Salary increase

23.1.10 Sensitivity analysis ( _ 100 bps) on present value of defined benefit obligation:    

    

 

  2020   85,181   95,864   96,012   84,959 

  2019   88,660   99,805   99,960   88,430 

+
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23.2.1 Fair value of investment held by Provident Fund    
     
 Bank balances   13,682  16%  4,035  4%
 Term deposits   36,111  42%  55,152  60%
 Mutual funds   36,007  42%  32,072  36%
    85,800  100%  91,259  100%
     
23.2.2 The investments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies 

Act, 2017 and rules formulated for this purpose.

%Rupees in
thousands

%Rupees in
thousands

2020 2019

23.2 The following information is based on the audited financial 
   statements of the Provident Fund:
   
 Size of the Fund - Total assets   85,909   92,996 
 Cost of investments made   85,252   95,344 
 Percentage of investments made  100% 98%
 Fair value of investments 23.2.1  85,800   91,259 

23.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)   
    
 Opening balance   55,554   66,306 
 Allocation for the year 31  -     15,898 
 Interest on opening balance 32  1,043   741 
    56,597   82,945 
 Payments made during the year   (16,941)  (27,391)
 Closing balance   39,656   55,554 
    
23.4 The Subsidiary Company had obtained an opinion from its legal counsel regarding the applicability of welfare laws and other 

related matters on the Subsidiary Company and according to the opinion of the legal counsel no provision is made for 
WPPF & WWF in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020.   

    
    
24 ACCRUED MARK-UP   
    
 Syndicated term finance facility   33,933   37,219 
 Short term borrowing   8,457   7,294 
 Gratuity Fund   1,188  
    43,578   44,513 
    
25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS   
    
 Short-term running finance (secured) 25.1  306,544   285,080 
    
25.1 The aggregate running finance facilities available from banks to the Holding Company as at June 30, 2020 amounted to 

Rs. 500 million (2019: Rs. 600 million) out of which Rs. 193.456 million (2019: Rs. 314.92 million) remained unutilized 
at the year end. The facilities aggregating to Rs. 400 million are secured by way of first pari passu charge over current 
assets & ranking charge on fixed assets with 25% margin. The remaining facilities aggregating to Rs. 200 million are 
secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge over all plant & machinery and ranking hypothecation charges over 
all current assets with 25% margin. These facilities are renewable annually and carry mark-up at 3-months KIBOR plus 
1.25% - 3% p.a (2019:  3-months KIBOR plus 1.5% - 3% p.a).  

    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2020

124 THATTA CEMENT



26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS   
    
26.1 Contingencies   
    
26.1.1 During the year 2014-2015, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an assessment order under section 

122(1)(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of Tax Year 2014 raising a tax demand of Rs. 78.35 million by 
making certain disallowances and additions in taxable income as reported in the tax return of that year. The Holding 
Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against which the adverse order was 
passed by the CIR-A. Therefore, appeal has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)  on February 19, 
2016 against the said order relating to certain add backs/disallowances which is pending for hearing. In view of Holding 
Company's tax consultant, the Holding Company has an arguable case on merit, however, definite outcome cannot be 
predicted.     
  

26.1.2 During the year 2013-14, the Additional Comissioner Inland Revenue - (ACIR) issued assessment order under section 
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances and additions in taxable income thereby 
raising a tax demand of Rs. 2.787 million in respect of Tax Year 2008. The Holding Company filed  an appeal before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). The management is confident that the Holding Company has an arguable 
case on merits, however definite outcome cannot be predicted. Hence, no provision is required to be made in these 
consolidated financial statements.

 
26.1.3 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed Assessment Orders in 2014-2015 raising an aggregate 

sales tax demand for Rs. 5.989 million by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Holding Company in its sales tax 
return for tax period from July 2012 to February 2015. The Holding Company had filed appeals against such Assessment 
Orders before Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR-A) who has passed orders aggregating to Rs. 5.91 million in favor of 
the Holding Company. During the year ended June 30, 2016, tax department has filed appeals against the said orders 
before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which are pending for hearing. In view of Holding Company's tax consultant, 
favourable outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these consolidated 
financial statements. 

 
26.1.4 In respect of tax periods from July 2012 to December 2014, an Order in Original (ONO) was issued by an Officer of Sales 

Tax in 2014-2015 against the Holding Company raising a demand of Rs. 244.274 million which is mainly based on 
comparison of industry average for fuel and power consumption with that of the Holding Company and thereby presuming 
the production quantities which in the view of tax authorities have not been subject to Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty.  
Accordingly, the Holding Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the 
ONO passed by the Officer of Sales Tax, however CIR-A decided the case against the Holding Company.  Accordingly, the 
Holding Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A. 
Moreover, recovery proceedings were also initiated by tax authorities in the matter for an aggregate demand amount of 
Rs 488.548 million including 100% penalty on the principal amount as aforesaid. Therefore, the Holding Company filed a 
stay application against the said aggregate demand before the High Court of Sindh. The High Court of Sindh has allowed 
ad interim relief against recovery of demand and refrained tax authorities to take any adverse action in this respect. During 
the year ended June 30, 2017, Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has passed an order in favor of the Holding 
Company. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal in the High Court 
of Sindh against the order passed by Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue in favour of the Holding Company. The matter is 
pending for adjudication. In view of the Holding Company's legal counsel, the case is sound in law, however definite outcome 
cannot be predicted with any degree of certainity.     
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26.1.5 During the year ended June 30, 2018, an Order in Original (ONO) has been issued by Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (DCIR) against the Holding Company in respect of tax periods from July 2013 to August 2017 raising a demand 
of Rs. 56.632 million by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Holding Company in its sales tax returns for the 
aforesaid tax period.  The Holding Company has filed an appeal on March 28, 2018 against the ONO passed by DCIR 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). The appeal has been decided in favor of the Holding Company. The 
Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by 
CIR(A) in favour of the Holding Company. The matter is pending for adjudication. In view of Holding Company's tax 
consultant, favourable outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these 
consolidated financial statements.    
 

26.1.6 During the year ended June 30, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 
161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001(the Ordinance) in respect of tax year 2017 raising a tax demand of Rs. 
94.670 million including default surcharge and penalty aggregating to Rs 15.208 million on the ground that Holding 
Company has not deducted applicable withholding taxes while making payments for purchases & certain expenses and 
hence made default under section 161/205 of the Ordinance. The Holding Company has filed an appeal on May 4, 2018 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the order passed by DCIR. The CIR-A has passed the order 
in favor of the Holding Company. However, Commissioner Inland Revenue, Zone II, Large Taxpayer Unit, Karachi has filed 
an appeal with the Apellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals 
(CIR-A) passed in favor of the Holding Company. In view of the Holding Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of 
such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these consolidated financial statements.  
   

26.1.7 During the year ended June 30, 2019, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 
122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001(the Ordinance) in relation to tax audit conducted under section 177 of the 
Ordinance, in respect of tax year 2016. Through the said order, ACIR has disallowed deduction of certain expenses, 
deductible allowance of WPPF and tax credit claimed under section 65B of the Ordinance amounting to Rs 28.497 million, 
Rs 35.768 million and Rs 16.915 million respectively. The Holding Company has filed an appeal on September 13, 2018 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the order passed by ACIR. While deciding the appeal, 
CIR-A has allowed deduction of Rs 28.497 million whereas deduction allowance of WPPF and tax credit under section 65B 
were upheld by CIR-A. Therefore, the Holding Company has filed an appeal on November 12, 2018 before the Apellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A on the said disallowances which is pending for hearing. In view 
of the Holding Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeals are anticipated; hence no provision is required 
to be made in these consolidated financial statements.    

26.1.8 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an order-in-original (ONO) dated June 28, 2019 in respect of sales 
tax audit for the tax period from July 2017 to June 2018 raising a demand of Rs. 7.452 million (including default 
surcharge and penalty) by disallowing certain input tax claimed by the Holding Company in its sales tax return for the 
aforesaid tax period.  The Holding Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) against 
ONO issued by DCIR.  While deciding appeal, CIR-A has deleted the disallowances of input tax amounting to Rs. 7.086 
million and confirmed disallowance amounting to Rs. 0.011 million. The Department has filed an appeal against the CIR-A's 
Order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue Karachi. The case is not yet fixed for hearing.  In view of Holding 
Company's tax consultant, favourable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in 
these consolidated financial statements.    
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26.1.9 Showcause notice u/s 122 (5A) of the ITO, 2001 dated February 15, 2019 was issued by  Additional Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (ACIR) Zone II, LTU containing observations relating to self-assessment order u/s 120 of ITO, 2001 for the tax 
year 2017. The Holding Company explained observations and attended hearings from time to time. However, learned ACIR 
passed Amended Assessment Order dated July 02, 2019 raising a demand of 34.094 million by disallowing certain 
expenses and tax credits.  Such disallowances include fuel adjustment of Rs. 3.678 million, reduction in b/f tax credit u/s 
65B of ITO, 2001 relating to tax year 2016 and disallowance of WPPF contribution. Management of the Holding Company 
has filed the appeal against the impugned order before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A).   The CIR-Appeals 
annulled the assessment order vide his order no. 18 dated September 06, 2019.  On November 21, 2019, ACIR issued 
notice to the company for further clarification/explanation regarding fuel adjustment, WPPF and WWF to pass the appeal 
effect order. The management of the Holding Company provided the required clarification/explanation, however, appeal 
effect order has not yet been passed by ACIR.

   
26.1.10 On September 05, 2019, an Order in Original (ONO) has been issued by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) 

against the Holding Company in respect of Sales tax audit for the tax period from July 2018 to December 2019  raising 
a demand of Rs. 0.150 million including default surcharge and penalty by disallowing certain input tax amounting to Rs. 
0.143 million claimed by the Holding Company in its sales tax returns for the aforesaid tax period. The Holding Company 
has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue –Appeals (CIR-A) against the said order. In view of Holding 
Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in 
these consolidated financial statements.

   
26.1.11 The Deputy Commissioner Inland revenue (DCIR) has issued showcause notice dated September 05, 2019 to the Holding 

Company for the Tax Year 2019  and disallowed input tax amounting to Rs. 24.2 million on some taxable purchases and 
services received by the Holding Company for the purpose of business during the period from July 01, 2018 to June 30, 
2019. In response to showcause notice, the Holding Company attended hearings from time to time and provide 
documents, explanations and supporting evidences. However, the learned DCIR has passed an order in original (ONO) on 
February 13, 2020 disallowing input tax to the extent of Rs. 0.951 million. The Holding Company has filed an appeal before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue –Appeals (CIR-A) against the said order. In view of Holding Company's tax consultant, 
favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these consolidated financial 
statements.    
  

26.1.12 The learned DCIR has issued an order dated February 26, 2020  as a result of monitoring of withholding taxes under 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2018. DCIR raised a demand of Rs. 0.499 million (including default surcharge 
and penalty) on the grounds that Holding Company has not deducted applicable withholding taxes at the time of making 
payments of certain expenses and hence made default under section 161/205/182 of the Income Tax Ordinance. The 
Holding Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR-A) against the order passed by 
DCIR which is pending for hearing. In view of Holding Company's tax consultant, favorable outcome of such appeal is 
anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these consolidated financial statements.   
   

26.1.13 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued a notice on January 31, 2020 under Section 177 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 for the purpose of Income Tax audit of the Company for the Tax Year 2015. The Holding Company 
attended hearings from time to time and provided supporting documents and explanations against the audit observations 
raised by DCIR. However, the learned DCIR passed an amended assessment order on April 28, 2020 and raised the tax 
demand of Rs. 0.6 million by disallowing certain admissible expenses including  leave encashment, donation expense, 
salary expense and Tax credit u/s 65B. The Holding Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - 
Appeal (CIR-A) against the disallowances which is pending for hearing. In view of the Holding Company's tax consultant, 
favorable outcome of such appeal is anticipated; hence no provision is required to be made in these consolidated financial 
statements.    
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26.1.14 Certain ex-employees of the Holding Company contested the Company's gratuity policy of 30 days and filed a Suit against 
the Holding Company demanding 60 days gratuity as applicable to the employees of former holding company having an 
impact of Rs. 14.9 million. The said Suit has been decided in favour of the applicants. However, the Holding Company 
challenged the said order vide C.P. no. 591/2013, before the Sindh High Court at Hyderabad and  later on filed Labour 
Appeal No. 04/2014, before the Sindh Labour Court No. VI at Hyderabad being the Court of appropriate jurisdiction. After 
dismissal of the said appeal, a revision application has been filed before the Sindh Labour Appellate Tribunal, Karachi. The 
Tribunal also dismissed the appeal and hence C.P. no. D - 2636 has been filed on November 2, 2015 before the High Court 
of Sindh at Hyderabad wherein stay has been granted by the High Court. The matter is pending for disposal. In view of the 
Holding Company's legal counsel, no definite outcome can be anticipated but the Holding Company has a good case.

    
26.1.15 An ex-employee of the Holding Company had filed CP # 86/2013 on May 21, 2013 for recovery of Rs. 2.10 million out of 

which an amount of Rs. 0.248 million has been claimed on account of 60 days gratuity and numerous other false and 
fabricated claims of short payments of Rs. 1.86 million. In view of the Holding Company's legal counsel, the Holding 
Company has a good case whereas no definite outcome can be estimated. 

  
26.1.16 Ex-workers of Labour Contractor had filed applications against the  Holding Company before the Labour Court at 

Hyderabad for reinstatement of their services which were not maintainable therefore, dismissed by the Court. The decision 
has been challenged vide Appeal no. Hyd-25/2016, Hyd-26/2016, Hyd-27/2016 and Hyd-28/2016 before the Sindh 
Labour Appellate Tribunal in Karachi. During the year ended June 30, 2018, Sindh Labour Appellate Tribunal has disposed 
of the appeals filed by ex-workers of contractor by awarding them the compensation instead of reinstatement of their 
services. The Holding Company has challenged the said decision on January 5, 2018 before the High Court of Sindh, 
Hyderabad. In view of the Holding Company's legal counsel, the Holding Company has a good case whereas no definite 
outcome can be estimated.    
 

26.1.17 During the year ended June 30, 2017, an ex-employee of the Holding Company had filed a Suit no. 51/2017 for recovery 
of damages, salaries and mesne profit of Rs. 197 million in the High Court of Sindh. The said ex- employee was dismissed 
from the Holding Company's service on November 1, 1999 due to involvement in serious acts of misconduct. The said 
person has challenged the dismissal before different forums including High Court of Sindh, Federal Services Tribunal and 
the Supreme Court of Pakistan and lost all the cases. In view of the Holding Company's legal counsel, this litigation will also 
lead to the same fate as detailed above.   

    
26.1.18 During the year ended June 30, 2000, two cement dealers had filed Suit no. 150/2001 & 151/2001 against the Holding 

Company for Rs. 6.5 million and Rs. 1.5 million respectively being value of trucks which were handed over to the Holding 
Company in lieu of outstanding dues from these dealers. The matter is pending for adjudication. In view of the Holding 
Company's legal counsel,  no unfavorable outcome can be estimated.   

    
26.1.19 The Subsidiary Company entered into Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Hyderabad Electric Supply Company Limited 

(HESCO) on May 14, 2011 to sell electricity at rates agreed in the said agreement. The agreement was executed in 
accordance with the Policy Framework for New - Captive Power Producers (N-CPPs). Subsequently, National Electric 
Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) issued an order (dt January 9, 2013) revising the tariff formula resulting in reduced 
tariff. In view of the said order, HESCO intimated to pay its dues for electricity purchased as per the revised tariff formula. 
In response, the Subsidiary Company filed a petition # 132 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh on February 8,2013, 
against HESCO, on the grounds that HESCO failed to pay the dues to the Subsidiary Company as per PPA.  The Honorable 
High Court of Sindh disposed off the petition filed by the Subsidiary Company with the direction to HESCO to pay TPPL 
against purchase of electricity as per the rates stipulated in PPA until 01-02-2012 and thereafter on the rates determined 
by NEPRA. In view of the adverse order and according to the advice of the legal counsel the Subsidiary  Company had filed 
an appeal CA No. 1133/2015 before the Supreme Court of Pakistan on October 28, 2015 against the order passed by 
the High Court of Sindh. Consequently, HESCO & NEPRA have also filed appeals before the Supreme Court of Pakistan 
against the same order, which are pending for adjudication.    
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26.1.20 As per clause 132 of Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, business income of Subsidiary Company is 
exempt from Income Tax . On that basis the Subsidiary Company had filed income tax return for the tax year 2013 while 
claiming exemption from business income and paid income tax on interest income. This exemption was challenged by 
Commissioner Inland Revenue, Hyderabad and subsequently tax demand was raised amounting to Rs. 154 million rejecting 
the basic income tax exemption and also increased the Subsidiary Company’s taxable income based on certain 
unreasonable grounds. The Subsidiary Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). Moreover, 
tax department also issued a show cause notice (dated March 4, 2015) for the Tax Year 2014 rejecting the claim of 
income tax exemption on the same basis. The Subsidiary Company filed a petition before the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
in respect of the show cause notice issued by FBR and High Court of Sindh granted the stay in respect of show cause 
notice issued by FBR to refrain tax department to issue assessment order and initiate recovery proceedings there against. 
Subsequently the High Court of Sindh has vacated the stay of demand with effect from November 11, 2015 and has 
ordered the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) to decide the case within two months from the date of the order. The 
hearing of the appeal was held on September 21, 2016 and the ATIR issued an order on January 7, 2017 and set-aside 
the appeal of the Subsidiary Company for exemption under clause 132 of Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, while accepting the Subsidiary Company’s argument in principle.

 Moreover, tax consultant suggested to file a Miscellaneous Application (MA) before the ATIR requesting to decide the 
matter instead of set-aside the appeal. The hearing was held on April 27, 2017 and a favorable order was passed by ATIR 
on May 4, 2017, thereby allowing the Subsidiary Company to claim exemption under clause 132 of Second Schedule of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Thereafter, Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal against the order passed 
by ATIR in the High Court of Sindh which is pending for adjudication.  

    
 The hearing of the appeal was held and a favorable order was passed by ATIR, thereby allowing the Subsidiary Company to 

claim exemption under clause 132 of Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  Thereafter. Commissioner 
Inland Revenue has filed an appeal  on August 29, 2017 against the order passed by ATIR in the High Court of Sindh which 
is pending for adjudication.   

    
26.1.21 Sales Tax audit for the tax period June 2012 to Aug 2013 was initiated by FBR and an adverse order was issued 

amounting to Rs. 10.645 Million. Basis of the order were very weak and the management has filed an appeal before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue – Appeals (CIR- A) through its sales tax consultant Shekha & Mufti Chartered Accountants 
on June 29, 2015. The hearing of the case was held on October 3, 2015 and a favorable order was passed by CIR-A on 
December 7,2015, thereby allowing input sales tax claimed by the Subsidiary Company to the extent of Rs. 10.513 million 
and upheld the Sales Tax demand of Rs. 0.132 million,which was according paid by the Subsidiary Company. Subsequently 
FBR has filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by CIR-A, which is 
pending for adjudication.      
 

26.1.22 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has disallowed the input sales tax on services claimed by the Subsidiary 
Company and raised a demand of Rs. 2.77 million. The Subsidiary Company had filed an appeal against the order passed 
by DCIR before CIR-Appeals. A favorable order was passed by CIR-A, thereby allowing input sales tax claimed by the 
Company. Subsequently, CIR has filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order 
passed by CIR-A, which is pending for adjudication.   

  
26.1.23 During the year, the Assistant Commissioner Withholding Tax Unit,-VII, Regional Tax Office, Hyderabad (ACIR) issued 

show cause notice to u/s 161 (1) (1A) of the Ordinance to give effects to order-in-appeal dated March 28, 2018 wherein 
it was investigate payment of amounts that were declared as outstanding as on June 30, 2016 during original 
proceedings. The case was fixed for hearing on June 22, 2020 however due to COVID-19 all hearings were suspended, 
therefore the Subsidiary Company requested for adjournment till July 15, 2020. The learned ACIR issued ex parte order 
on June 27th, 2020 ignoring the request for adjournment filed by the Subsidiary Company thereby creating demand of Rs 
55.117 million. The Subsidiary Company had filed an appeal u/s 127 of the Ordinance through its consultant. Hearing in 
the case was fixed on August 18, 2020. The Commissioner (Appeals) Hyderabad vide his order-in-appeal no 53 dated 
August 27, 2020 annulled the order passed and deleted the demand created therein.   
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Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

26.1.24 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ADCIR) issued Show Cause Notice (SCN) u/s 122(9) of the Ordinance in 
respect of tax year 2014. The SCN was issued for two issues i.e. exemption claimed under clause (132) Part I of Second 
Schedule of the Ordinance and claim of deductions against income from other sources u/s 4o of the Ordinance. These two 
issues were considered as erroneous as well as prejudicial to the interest of the revenue by the leaned ADCIR. The 
management of the Subsidiary Company provided detailed workings and explanations for both issues raised as 
aforementioned. However evidences and explanations offered by the Subsidiary Company could not attain ADCIR's 
satisfaction hence he passed an order u/s 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the `Ordinance') creating a 
demand of Rs 87.567 million. The Subsidiary Company had filed an appeal u/s 127 of the Ordinance through its consultant 
M/s Sharjeel Ayub & Co Chartered Accountants. Hearing in the case was fixed on August 18, 2020. The Commissioner 
(Appeals) Hyderabad vide his order-in-appeal no 41 dated August 26, 2020 annulled the order passed and deleted the 
demand created therein.

 
26.1.25 During the year, the Subsidiary Company has filed an Appeal No. 253/2019 against Assistant Commissioner Sindh 

Revenue Board (SRB) before the Commissioner Appeals, Sindh Revenue Board, Karachi. In the said appeal the Subsidiary 
Company has challenged OnO No. 716/2019 dated 15.10.2019 alleging non-payment of Sindh Workers Participation 
Fund (SWPF) for the Accounting year ended 30th June, 2013 claiming an amount of Principal of Rs. 9.135 million and 
Penalties Rs. 0.224 million. However, the legal advisors of the Subsidiary Company believes that the Subsidiary Company 
has strong grounds that the order passed by the Assistant Commissioner (AC), Sindh Revenue Board without jurisdiction, 
the Sindh Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 2015 (Sindh Act No. XVIII of 2016) cannot be applicable 
retrospectively as the AC wrongly relied upon the judgment dated 12.02.2018 in CP. No. D-1313 of 2013 of the Hon’ble 
High Court of Sindh as also the Subsidiary Company has no direct, indirect or contractual workers besides other grounds 
and the appeal will be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company.

26.2 Commitments   
    
26.2.1 Guarantees given by commercial banks to Sui Southern Gas Company Limited on behalf of the Group amount to Rs. 351 

million (2019: Rs. 351 million).    

26.2.2 Other outstanding guarantees given on behalf of the Group by banks amount to Rs. 3 million (2019: Rs. 3 million).  
   

26.2.3 Irrevocable letter of credit under revenue & capital expenditure as on June 30, 2020 were Rs. Nil million (2019: Rs. 
64.196 million) & Rs. Nil million (2019: Rs. 47.008 million) respectively.   

    
26.2.4 Commitment in respect of capital expenditure under deferred payment letter of credit were Rs. Nil million (2019: Rs. 

50.466 million).   
 
  
26.2.5 Operating lease commitments:   
    
 0 - 1 year   1,916   1,741 
    
27 SALES - NET   
    
 Gross Sales -   Local   3,173,270   4,685,470 
  -   Export  220,822   784,738 
    3,394,092   5,470,208 
    
 Less: -   Federal Excise Duty   465,677   599,368 
  -   Sales tax   493,378   736,462 
    959,055   1,335,830 
  27.1 & 27.2  2,435,037   4,134,378 
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27.1 The Group's revenue disaggregated by primary geographical markets is as follows.    

 Sale of cement, clinker and electric power   
    
 Primary geographical markets   
 Sale of cement and clinker   
 Within Pakistan   1,534,405   2,683,673 
 Outside Pakistan   220,822   784,738 
    
 Sale of electric power   
 Within Pakistan   679,810   665,967 
    2,435,037   4,134,378 
    
27.2 Group's revenue disaggregated by pattern/timing of revenue recognition is as follows.    

 
 Timing of revenue recognition   
    
 Goods/electric power transferred at a point in time   2,435,037   4,134,378 
    
28 COST OF SALES   
    
 Raw material consumed 28.1  100,388   193,461 
    
 Manufacturing expenses   
 Fuel and power   1,331,919   1,923,502 
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.3  280,755   284,857 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  183,672   190,920 
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed   80,161   109,534 
 Packing material consumed 28.2  67,608   150,193 
 Repairs, operations and maintenance   29,849   41,714 
 Insurance   13,870   20,471 
 Vehicle hire, running and maintenance   9,389   11,956 
 Other production overheads   4,825   6,333 
 Communication   1,668   2,294 
 Provision / (reversal) for slow moving & obsolete stores and
   impairment of major stores & spares 6.4 & 9  3,118   4,733 
 Entertainment   804   1,544 
    2,007,638   2,748,051 
    
 Cost of production   2,108,026   2,941,512 
    
 Work-in-process   
   Opening balance   269,597   384,911 
   Closing balance 10  (288,870)  (269,597)
    (19,273)  115,314 
    
 Cost of goods manufactured   2,088,753   3,056,826 
    
 Finished goods   
   Opening balance   34,773   41,545 
   Closing balance 10  (50,095)  (34,773)
    (15,322)  6,772 
    2,073,431   3,063,598 

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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28.1 Raw material consumed   
    
 Opening balance   20,399   46,972 
 Purchases   98,576   166,888 
    118,975   213,860 
    
 Closing balance 10  (18,587)  (20,399)
  28.1.1  100,388   193,461 
    
28.1.1 It includes royalty amounting to Rs. 4.678 million (2019: Rs. 8.599 million) relating to Lime Stone and Clay Shale, payable 

to Director General Mines & Mineral Development, Government of Sindh.    
    
    
    
28.2 Packing material consumed   
    
 Opening balance   46,208   30,611 
 Purchases   58,362   165,790 
    104,570   196,401 
 Closing balance 10  (36,962)  (46,208)
    67,608   150,193 
    
28.3 This includes employees' retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 21.243 million (2019: Rs. 19.495 million).  

 
    
    
29 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST   
    
 Export logistics and related charges   49,852   156,307 
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1  16,767   17,646 
 Commission   7,591   13,385 
 Loading and others   5,546   11,405 
 Rent, rates and taxes   2,492   2,203 
 Freight charges - local sale   2,214   11,555 
 Vehicle running expenses   1,561   1,391 
 Marking fee expense   812   1,879 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  789   773 
 Sales promotion expenses   635   1,555 
 Communication   345   313 
 Travelling and conveyance   327   647 
 Repair and maintenance   301   270 
 Entertainment   234   215 
 Utilities   149   260 
 Printing and stationery   79   74 
 Advertisements   59   24 
 Miscellaneous   7   356 
    89,760   220,258 
    
29.1 This includes employees' retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 1.879 million (2019: Rs. 1.602 million). 

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   
    
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1  50,260   53,875 
 Board, Audit and HR Committee meeting fees   3,020   4,600 
 Vehicle running expenses   2,731   2,721 
 Travelling and conveyance   352   79 
 Advertisements   165   353 
 Communication, postage, telegram   1,218   1,306 
 Printing and stationery   542   1,879 
 Rent, rates and taxes   4,729   4,192 
 Entertainment   1,108   1,752 
 Legal and professional charges   3,372   5,880 
 Insurance   367   358 
 Repairs and maintenance   3,609   3,800 
 Utilities   1,499   1,726 
 Fees and subscription   4,668   2,996 
 Corporate expenses   759   1,283 
 Charity and donation 30.2  542   1,311 
 Auditors' remuneration 30.3  1,680   1,494 
 Other auditors' remuneration 30.4  2,103   1,780 
 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.2  2,223   3,443 
 Amortization of intangible assets 7  -     2,800 
 Education expenses   3,414   6,584 
 Fixed assets written off 6.1.1  3   11,519 
 Provision as per doubtful debt 11  897   2,182 
 Miscellaneous   1,256   550 
    90,517   118,463 
    
30.1 This includes employees' retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 6.456 million (2019: Rs. 5.683 million).   

30.2 None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in any donee's fund to which donation was made.  
 

    
30.3 Auditor's remuneration   
    
 Annual audit fee   1,164   1,175 
 Half yearly review fee   250   77 
 Audit fee for consolidated financial statements   42   38 
 Fee for other services   49   38 
 Out of pocket expenses   175   166 
    1,680   1,494 
30.4 Other auditors' remuneration   
 Internal audit fee   1,960   1,577 
 Out of pocket expenses   143   203 
    2,103   1,780 

Note ----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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31 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES   
    
 Workers' Welfare Fund   -     6,740 
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund  23.3  -     15,898 
 Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment   -     20 
 Exchange loss   16,194   22,421 
 Loss on sale of store items   173   -   
 Others   2,740   -   
    19,107   45,079 
    
32 FINANCE COST   
    
 Mark-up on long term financing   120,275   45,667 
 Mark-up on short term borrowings   37,256   25,076 
 Mark-up on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23.3  1,043   741 
 Mark-up on Gratuity Fund 38.2.1  1,188   -   
 Amortization of transaction cost   3,217   -   
 Bank charges and commission   8,047   8,994 
    171,026   80,478 
    
33 OTHER INCOME   
 
 Income from financial assets   
   Interest on term deposit/bank accounts 33.1  39,519   33,236 
   Exchange Gain   11   -   
    39,530   33,236 
 Income from non-financial assets   
  Scrap sales   4,326   6,076 
  Rental income   536   495 
  Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment   104   -   
  Written back provision for store & spares (generator)   26,496   -   
  Gain on sale of store items   -     176 
  Exchange Gain   246   -   
  Others   2,893   442 
    34,601   7,189 
    74,131   40,425 

    
33.1 Income earned from bank deposits are under interest / mark-up arrangements with conventional banking system.  

 
   
34 TAXATION   
    
 Current    34,367   79,435 
 Prior year    (1)  -   
 Deferred    (8,718)  7,882 
    25,648   87,317 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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34.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:   
    
    
 Profit before tax   65,327   646,927 
    
 Tax at 29%   18,945   187,609 
    
 Tax effect of   
 -   admissible/inadmissible expenses in determining   -     1,209 
           taxable income - net   39,415  
 -   unrealized profit    720   (1,878)
 -   income charged at different rates   2,211   7,860 
 Exempt income   (50,515)  (94,568)
 Tax Credit under section 65B   -     (20,797)
 Prior year's tax reversal   (1)  -   
 Minimum Tax U/s 113   23,591  -   
 Tax effect on taxable temporary differences - net   (8,718)  7,882 
    25,648   87,317 
    
34.2 The returns of income of the Holding Company have been filed upto and including Tax Year 2019 (corresponding to financial 

year ended June 30, 2019)  which are treated as deemed assesment order by Commissioner Inland Revenue under 
section 120 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, assessment order(s) including deemed assessment orders may 
be amended by the CIR within five years from the expiry of the financial year in which such order(s) is issued or further 
amended within one year from the end of financial year in which such amended orders issued.   
   

 Deemed assessment orders in respect of tax years 2015, 2016 and 2017 were amended by CIR.   

34.3 As per section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, in case a public company which does not distributes 20% of its 
after tax profit for the year within six months of the end of the tax year through cash, a tax at the rate of 5 percent of its 
accounting profit before tax shall be imposed. The Holding Company earned a profit after tax of Rs. 213.522 million for 
the year ended June 30, 2019, however, keeping in view the lower profitability and foreseeing the challenging conditions 
faced by cement sector in the year ahead, the Board of Directors did not recommended any dividend for the year ended 
June 30, 2019.

   
 The Holding Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the vires of Section 

5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and SHC accepted the CP and granted stay against the aforementioned section. In 
view of Holding Company's legal consultant, favourable outcome is anticipated. Hence no provision for tax liability in this 
respect has been recorded by the Holding Company in these consolidated financial statements.   
   

34.4 During the year, amendment made under section 65B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through the Finance Act, 2019 
whereby the percentage of tax credit on investment in plant and machinery has been reduced from 10% to 5% for the tax 
year 2019 which is subject to adjustment against the refund or may required to be paid with the Return of Income. The 
Holding Company filed a petition in the high court against the amendment and obtained stay order as the likely impact of 
the amendment in 65B would be Rs. 10.398 million. The management is confident that the Holding Company has an 
arguable case on merits. Hence, no provision has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements, since till the next 
date, no adverse action shall be taken against the Holding Company in respect of this case.  

    

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED   
    
35.1 Basic earnings per share   
    
 (Loss) / profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
    Holding Company (Rupees in thousands)  (34,596) 429,585
    
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number of shares)   99,718,125   99,718,125
    
 (Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)  (0.35) 4.31 

   
35.2 Diluted earning per share   
    
 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Holding Company did not have any convertible instruments in 

issue as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to 
convert is exercised.   

    
    
36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
    
 Cash and bank balances 17  60,599   119,234 
 Short term borrowings 25  (306,544)  (285,080)
    (245,945)  (165,846)
    
37 CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION   
    
37.1 Thatta Cement Company Limited    
    
 Production capacity - clinker (tons) 37.1.1  548,400   548,400 
 Actual production - clinker (tons) 37.1.1  258,158   470,245 
 Actual production - cement (tons) 37.1.2  197,463   366,649 
    
37.1.1 The production capacity utilization of clinker during the year has remained at 47.07% (2019: 85.75%).   

   
37.1.2 Cement from clinker is produced in accordance with the market demand.   
    
37.1.3 In the prior years, the 'production capacity' and the resulting 'production capacity utilization' has been understated and 

overstated respectively. The Company has rectified the same.   
    
37.2 Thatta Power (Private) Limited    
    
 Installed capacity - kWh   237,422,280  202,356,000
 Total output - kWh   72,096,840  99,103,622
 Load factor  30.37% 48.97%
    
37.2.1 Installed capacity has been computed on the basis of 8,760 hours (2019: 8,760 hours).   

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

2020 2019

2020 2019
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----------------------------- Rupees in thousands -----------------------------

Executives

2020 2019

Chief
Executive

Chief
Executive

Executives

 Managerial remuneration   14,353   29,141   12,000   42,537 
 Leave fare allowance   725   1,407   303   885 
 Bonus   1,550   3,354   606   2,148 
 Retirement benefits   2,113   3,955   1,966   6,439 
 Other benefits   156   119   157   240 
    18,897   37,976   15,032   52,249 
      
 Number of person(s)   2   11   1   13 

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES   
    
 Related parties comprise of associated undertakings and related group companies, directors of the Group, key 

management personnel and staff retirement funds. The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with 
related parties are entered into at commercial terms and conditions. Further, contribution to defined contribution plan 
(provident fund) is made as per the terms of employment and trust deed and contribution to the defined benefit plan 
(gratuity scheme) is in accordance with the actuarial advice.    

    
 Details of transactions during the year ended / outstanding balances as at June 30, 2020 with related parties are as 

follows:    
 
   
38.1 Transactions with related parties   
    
38.1.1 Key management personnel   
 Salaries and benefits 39  56,873   67,281 
 Sale of vehicle   -     102 
    
38.1.2 Other related parties   
 Contribution to employees' Gratuity Fund 23.1.4  -     19,984 
 Markup on account of payable to Gratuity Fund 32  1,188   -   
 Contribution to employees' Provident Fund   8,753   9,850 
 Education expenses - Model Terbiat School  30  3,309   6,312 
    
38.2 Balances with related parties   
    
38.2.1 Other related parties   
 Payable to Employees' Gratuity Fund 23.1.4  35,983   21,224 
 Payable to Employees' Provident Fund   754   -   
    
38.2.2 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment and as further 

disclosed under note 39.   
    
39 REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES   
    
 The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements for the year in respect of remuneration to the 

Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows: 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands -------------------------------------

2020

Cement Power Intra group adjustment Consolidated

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

-------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands --------------------------------------------------

40.2 Other information     
   

         
         
 
 Segment assets  3,477,100   3,610,100   3,655,345   3,618,069   (391,814)  (398,787)  6,740,631   6,829,383 
 Unallocated corporate assets  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Total assets  3,477,100   3,610,100   3,655,345   3,618,069   (391,814)  (398,787)  6,740,631   6,829,383 
         
 Segment liabilities  1,012,521   991,194   1,324,419   1,482,301   (75,377)  (79,811)  2,261,563   2,393,684 
 Unallocated corporate liabilities  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Total liabilities  1,012,521   991,194   1,324,419   1,482,301   (75,377)  (79,811)  2,261,563   2,393,684 
         
 Capital expenditure  24,050   33,154   95,775   1,153,108   -     -     119,825   1,186,262 
         
 Depreciation  87,648   139,853   99,036   55,283   -     -     186,684   195,136 
         
 Non-cash expenses other than depreciation  1,130   7,782   1,992   -     -     -     3,122   7,782 

2020

Cement Power Intra group adjustment Consolidated

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

39.1 The Chief Executive, Executive Director and Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained car(s) and other 
benefits in accordance with their entitlement as per rules of the Group.    
 

39.2 An aggregate amount of Rs. 3.020 million (2019: Rs. 4.60 million) was paid to Non-Executive Directors during the year 
on account of Board, Audit Committee and HR & Remuneration Committee meeting fees.

40 OPERATING SEGMENTS 
  
 For management purposes the Group is organized into following major business segments. 
  
 Cement Engaged in manufacturing and marketing of cement.
 Power Engaged in generation and sale of electric power.

THATTA CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40.1 Revenues     
   

         
         
 
 Sales - net  1,755,227   3,468,411   1,196,210   1,381,288   (516,400)  (715,321)  2,435,037   4,134,378 
 Cost of sales  (1,703,127)  (2,796,444)  (901,703)  (989,934)  531,399   722,780   (2,073,431)  (3,063,598)
 Gross profit  52,100   671,967   294,507   391,354   14,999   7,459   361,606   1,070,780 
 Selling and distribution cost  (89,760)  (220,258)  -     -     -     -     (89,760)  (220,258)
 Administrative expenses  (85,292)  (102,244)  (26,484)  (35,545)  21,259   19,326   (90,517)  (118,463)
   (175,052)  (322,502)  (26,484)  (35,545)  21,259   19,326   (180,277)  (338,721)
 Operating profit  (122,952)  349,465   268,023   355,809   36,258   26,785   181,329   732,059 
 Other operating expenses  (19,107)  (34,633)  -     (10,446)  -     -     (19,107)  (45,079)
 Finance cost  (44,153)  (50,620)  (127,772)  (29,858)  899   -     (171,026)  (80,478)
   (63,260)  (85,253)  (127,772)  (40,304)  899   -     (190,133)  (125,557)
 Other income  45,278   31,106   63,471   29,631   (34,618)  (20,312)  74,131   40,425 
 Segment results  (140,934)  295,318   203,722   345,136   2,539   6,473   65,328   646,927 
 Unallocated expenditures  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 (Loss)/profit before taxation  (140,934)  295,318   203,722   345,136   2,539   6,473   65,327   646,927 
 Taxation  (17,084)  (81,796)  (8,564)  (5,521)  -     -     (25,648)  (87,317)
 (Loss)/profit for the year  (158,018)  213,522   195,158   339,615   2,539   6,473   39,679   559,610 
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40.4 Geographical segment analysis      
       
 Local  2,214,215   3,349,640   6,740,631   6,829,382   4,479,068   4,435,698 
 Export   220,822   784,738   -     -     -     -   
   2,435,037   4,134,378   6,740,631   6,829,382   4,479,068   4,435,698 

40.5 Information about major customers      
       
 Major customers for cement segment are various individual dealers, builders & developers whereas major customer for 

power segment is Hyderabad Electric Supply Company Limited.

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------
2020 2019

Revenue Total Assets Net Assets

2019 20192020 2020

40.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities   

   
40.3.1 Operating revenues   
 Total revenue of reportable segments   2,951,437   4,849,699 
 Elimination of intra group revenue   (516,400)  (715,321)
 Consolidated revenue   2,435,037   4,134,378 
   
40.3.2 Profit or loss   
 Total profit before taxation of reportable segments   62,788   640,454 
 Adjustment of unrealized profit   2,539   6,473 
 Consolidated profit before taxation   65,327   646,927 
    
40.3.3 Assets   
 Total assets of reportable segments   7,132,445   7,228,169 
 Elimination of intra group balances   (390,211)  (397,184)
 Reclassification for consolidation purposes   (1,603)  (1,603)
 Consolidated assets   6,740,631   6,829,382 
    
40.3.4 Liabilities   
 Total liabilities of reportable segments   2,336,940   2,473,495 
 Elimination of intra group balances   (75,377)  (79,811)
 Consolidated liabilities   2,261,563   2,393,684 

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT   
    
 The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowing and management of working capital with a view to maintain 

an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a whole the Group's risk arising from 
financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such 
instruments. Financial instruments of the Group are as under:   

 
   

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 Financial assets   
    
 At amortized cost   
 Long term deposits 8  1,096   1,096 
 Trade debts 11  937,558   881,813 
 Short term investments 12  306,000   306,000 
 Trade deposits 14  1,734   1,534 
 Other receivables and accrued interest 15  24,683   23,910 
 Cash and bank balances 17  60,599   119,234 
    1,331,670   1,333,587 
 Financial liabilities   
    
 Long term financing (includindg current maturity)  19  1,133,070   1,317,586 
 Unclaimed dividend   2,039   2,540 
 Long term deposits 20  2,791   4,297 
 Trade and other payables 23  353,372   288,311 
 Accrued mark-up 24  43,578   44,513 
 Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
    1,841,394   1,942,327 
    
41.1 Financial instruments and related disclosures   
    
 Financial risk management objectives   
    
 The Group has exposure to the following risks from financial instrument:    
 -   credit risk   
 -   liquidity risk   
 -   market risk   
 -   operational risk   
    
 The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Group has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the 

Group's risk management framework. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, the Group's 
management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing the Group's financial risk exposure. The 
Group's overall risk management program focuses on the under predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

 a) Credit risk    

  Credit risk is a risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other 
party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk 
arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with same party, or when counter 
parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar 
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly effected by change in 
economics, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.    
   

  At the reporting date, the Group's total credit risk was concentrated in the following industrial/economic sectors: 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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%Rupees in
thousands

%Rupees in
thousands

2020 2019

 Accrued interest  6,980  1%  7,298  1%
 Short term investment  306,000  23%  306,000  23%
 Cash at bank  57,378  4%  116,098  9%
 Others  958,091  72%  901,055  67%
   1,328,449  100%  1,330,451  100%

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure to credit risk, 
the Group has developed a policy of obtaining advance payment from its customers against sale of cement. Except for 
customers relating to the Government and certain credit worthy customers, the management strictly adheres to this 
policy. For any balance receivable from such Government and credit worthy customers, the management continuously 
monitors the credit exposure towards them and make provisions for loss allowance against those balances considered 
doubtful. Cash is held only with banks with high quality credit worthiness. There is no significant risk exposure to deposits 
and other receivables.   

    
 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:    

  
    
 Long term deposits 8  1,096   1,096 
 Trade debts 11  937,558   881,813 
 Short term investments 12  306,000   306,000 
 Trade deposits 14  1,734   1,534 
 Other receivables and accrued interest 15  24,683   23,910 
 Bank balances 17  57,378   116,098 
    1,328,449   1,330,451 
    
41.1.1 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired   
    
 The credit quality of assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information 

and external credit ratings or to historical counterparty default rates. As at June 30, 2020 trade debts of Rs. 605.99 
million (2019: Rs. 327.635 million) were past due but not impaired. These relates to a number of independent customers 
for whom there is no recent history of default except for HESCO. As at June 30, 2019, trade debts includes Rs. 801.227 
million receivable from HESCO. The risk attributable to trade debt receivable from HESCO is secured to the extent of Rs. 
286.71 million through Standby Letter of Credit obtained from HESCO under the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). The 
aging analysis of these trade debts is as follows:   

    
 
    
 -   within 30 days   105,029   169,419 
 -   31 to 90 days   226,539   384,759 
 -   91 to 180 days   228,417   22,897 
 -   over 180 days   377,573   304,738 
  11  937,558   881,813 
    
 

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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 Financial assets that are past due or impaired   
    
 The credit quality of financial assets that are past due or impaired can be assessed by reference to note 11. The aging 

analysis of these impaired trade debts is as follows:   
    
    
    
 Below ten years   3,079   2,182 
 Over ten years   72,028   72,028 
    75,107   74,210 
 b) Liquidity risk and management   
    
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than 
expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall 
due.    

    
  The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of non-current interest bearing liabilities, long term deposit, short 

term borrowings, trade and other payable and mark-up accrued.   
    
  The Group's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 

to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Group's reputation.    

    

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

 The credit quality of cash at bank (in Current, Profit & loss saving and deposit accounts) as per credit rating agencies are 
as follows:

 Rating - Bank balances   
 
 A1 +   36,973   88,544 
 A1   546   29 
 A-   31   31 
 Others   19,827   27,494 
  17  57,377   116,098 
    
 Rating - Accrued interest   
    
 A1 + 15  6,980   7,298 
    
 Rating - Short term investments   
    
 Term deposit (A1+)   306,000   306,000 
   
 Due to Group's long standing relationship with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong 

financial standing except where there is contractual obligation to maintain certain balance, management does not expect 
non-performance by these counterparties on their obligation to the Group. For trade debts, internal risk assessment 
process determines the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other 
factors. Individual risk limits are fixed based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the 
management. The utilization of said limits is regularly monitored.
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One to 
five year

  Non-derivative Liabilities     
 Long term financing (including
   current maturity)   1,133,070   (1,500,744)  (81,796)  (118,061)  (1,300,887)
 Long term deposits   2,791   (2,791)  -     -     (2,791)
 Trade and other payables   353,372   (353,372)  (353,372)  -     -   
 Short term borrowings   306,544   (306,544)  (153,272)  (153,272)  -   
 Accrued mark-up   43,578   (43,578)  (43,578)  -     -   
    1,839,355   (2,207,029)  (632,018)  (271,333)  (1,303,678)

 Non-derivative Liabilities      
 Long term financing (including
   current maturity)   1,317,586   (1,930,921)  (243,558)  (209,695)  (1,477,668)
 Long term deposits   4,297   (4,297)  -     -     (4,297)
 Trade and other payables   288,311   (288,311)  (288,311)  -     -   
 Short term borrowings   285,080   (285,080)  (142,540)  (142,540)  -   
 Accrued mark-up   44,513   (44,513)  (44,513)  -     -   
    1,939,787   (2,553,122)  (718,922)  (352,235)  (1,481,965)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

2020
Six to twelve

months
One to 
five year

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

2019
Six to twelve

months

41.1.2 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities    
  

 The table below analyses Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
date of statement of financial position to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The amounts in the 
table are the gross nominal undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments).

 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rate 
effective as at reporting date.

 c) Market risk   
    
  Market risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit 

spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor's/ issuer's credit standing) will affect the Group's income or the value 
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.   
  

 d) Interest / mark-up rate risk management   
    
  Interest / mark-up rate risk management arises from the possibility of changes in interest/mark-up rates which may 

affect the value of financial instruments. The Group has long term financing and short term borrowings at variable 
rates. The Group is exposed to interest / mark-up rates risk on long term financing, where interest rate risk is 
covered by holding "Prepayment option" which can be exercised upon any adverse movement in the underlying 
interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments is 
as follows: 
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  Management closely monitors the Group's liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of liquidity 
ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance 
on large individual customers except for supply of electricity to HESCO, Public Utility Company, in accordance with 
Power Purchase Agreement.
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 Assets      
 Short term investment 12 8.50%  -     306,000   -     306,000 
 Bank balance in PLS accounts 17 6.5% to 11.25%  -     -     36,180   36,180 
 Total assets    -     306,000   36,180   342,180 
       
 Liabilities      
 Short term running finance 25 12.97% to 15.60%  (153,272)  (153,272)  -     (306,544)
 Long term financing  19   (81,796)  (118,061)  (1,300,887)  (1,500,744)
 Total liabilities    (235,068)  (271,333)  (1,300,887)  (1,807,288)
 On-balance sheet gap    (235,068)  34,667   (1,264,707)  (1,465,108)
 Total interest risk sensitivity gap    (235,068)  (200,401)  (1,465,108)  (1,465,108)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

 2020
Mark-up /
return (%)

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

More than
1 year

Total

Note

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019

Carrying amount

 Fixed rate instruments   
 Financial assets   306,000   306,000 
    
 Variable rate instruments   
 Financial assets   36,180   77,560 
 Financial liabilities   1,439,614   1,602,666 
    
 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:   
    
 The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, 

change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the consolidated statement of profit or loss.  
   

 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:   
    
 Financial assets   
    
 If interest rate had fluctuated by  _1% with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit before tax for the year 

would have been Rs. 0.36 million (2019: Rs 0.78 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest 
income from these consolidated financial assets.   

    
 Financial liabilities   
    
 If interest rate had fluctuated by  _1% with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit before tax for the year 

would have been Rs. 14.396 million (2019: Rs. 16.027 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest 
expense of these consolidated financial liabilities.

 A summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates 
at the end of year is as follows:   

+

+
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 Trade and other payables    123,881  737   6,728   41 
     123,881   737   6,728   41 
      
 Currently, the Group does not obtain forward cover against the gross exposure. The following significant rates applied 

during the year:    
     
    
     
 USD to PKR    158.64   136.39   168.10   163.24 
     
 Sensitivity analysis    
     
 A  five percent strengthening / weakening of Pak Rupee against US Dollar on June 30th would have increased / decreased 

the consolidated equity and consolidated statement of profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes 
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis that 
were used for the year 2019.

------------------------------------- in thousands -------------------------------------

USDPKRUSDPKR
2020 2019

Rate as on June 30Average Rate
2020 20202019 2019

 Assets      
 Short term investment 12 8.50%  -     306,000   -     306,000 
 Bank balance in PLS accounts 17 3% to 8%  -     -     77,560   77,560 
 Total assets    -     306,000   77,560   383,560 
       
 Liabilities      
 Short term running finance 25 8.92% to 13.99%  (142,540)  (142,540)  -     (285,080)
 Long term financing  19 8.89% to 14.92%  (243,558)  (209,695)  (1,477,668)  (1,930,921)
 Total liabilities    (386,098)  (352,235)  (1,477,668)  (2,216,001)
 On-balance sheet gap    (386,098)  (46,235)  (1,400,108)  (1,832,441)
 Total interest risk sensitivity gap    (386,098)  (432,333)  (1,832,441)  (1,832,441)

----------------------------------------- Rupees in thousands ------------------------------------------

2019
Mark-up /
return (%)

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

More than
1 year

Total

Note

 Effects of US Dollars gain / loss   6,194   336 
    
 f) Fair value of financial instruments   
    
  Fair value of the financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be sold or exchanged, or a liability can 

be settled, between knowledgable willing parties at arm's length transaction.   

 e) Foreign exchange risk management    

  Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to change in foreign 
exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign 
currencies. Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to the foreign 
entities including amount payable, outstanding letter of credits and bills payable. The Group's exposure to foreign 
currency risk is as follows:

----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
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  The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair 
values. The methods used for determining fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in 
respective policy notes.   

     
 g) Fair value hierarchy   
    
  The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation technique:   
  
  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.   

  Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable 
either, directly or indirectly.   

    
  Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 

observable market data.   
   
 As at 30 June 2020, there were no financial instruments which were measured at fair values in the consolidated financial 

statements.    
    
 h) Capital risk management   
    
  The objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it 

can continue to provide returns and benefits for shareholders and to maintain a strong base to support the sustained 
development of its business.   

  
  The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and make adjustments to it in the light 

of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
amount of dividend payable to the shareholders or issue new shares.   

    
  The Group finances its expansion projects through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a 

view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Note
----- Rupees in thousands -----

2020 2019
 Gearing ratio   
    
 Long term financing (including current maturity) 19  1,133,070   1,317,586 
 Accrued mark-up 24  43,578   44,513 
 Short term borrowings 25  306,544   285,080 
 Total debt   1,483,192   1,647,179 
    
 Less: Cash and bank balances 17  (60,599)  (119,234)
 Net debt (A)   1,422,593   1,527,945 
    
 Share capital 18  997,181   997,181 
 Share premium   99,718   99,718 
 Accumulated profit   2,512,111   2,543,016 
 Non-controlling interests   870,058   795,783 
 Total equity (B)   4,479,068   4,435,698 
    
 Total equity and net debt (A+B)   5,901,661   5,963,643 
    
 Gearing ratio (A+B)/(A)  24.10% 25.62%
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i) Operational risk   
    
 Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, 

technology and infrastructure supporting the Group's activities, either internally within the Group or externally at the 
Group's service providers and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from 
legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of operation behaviour. Operational risks arise from 
all the Group's activities.   

     
 The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its 

reputation while achieving its objectives of becoming a profitable organisation, producing high quality cement and 
uninterrupted power generation to generate returns for investors. Primary responsibility for the development and 
implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the 
controls in the following areas:   

    
 - requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
 - requirements for reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;   
 - compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;   
 - documentation of controls and procedures;   
 - requirements for periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to  

address the risks identified;   
 - ethical and business standards;   
 - risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective; and   
 - operational and qualitative track record of the plant and equipment supplier and related service providers.  

   
42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES   
    
 The total number of employees as at year end were 497 (2019: 511) and average number of employees were 503 (2019: 

517).  

43 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE   
    
 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 30, 2020 have proposed final cash dividend Rs. Nil per share 

(2019: Rs. Nil per Share) in respect of year ended June 30, 2020.   
    
44 COMPARATIVE FIGURES   
    
 For better presentation certain prior year’s figures have been reclassified consequent to certain changes in the current 

year’s presentation.   
    
45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION   
    
 These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 30, 2020 by the Board of Directors of 

the Company.   
    
46 GENERAL   
    
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.
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FORM OF PROXY
The Secretary
Thatta Cement Company Ltd.
Office No. 606-608A, 6th Floor,
Continental Trade Centre,
Block 8, Clifton 
Karachi   

Please quote:
No. of shares held.
Folio No.

I/We, __________________________________ of ________________, holding Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)/-
Passport No.___________________ and being a member of Thatta Cement Company Limited, hereby 
appoint____________________________________ of ___________________________, holding CNIC/Passport 
No._________________________________, or failing him/her hereby appoint____________________________________of 
_________________________________________, holding CNIC/Passport No.____________________, as my/our proxy to vote 
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, October 26, 2020, at 03:00 
p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand/seal this __________________day of ______, 2020 

Witnesses:

1.  Signature     ______________________________
 Name      ______________________________
 Address      ______________________________
 CNIC/Passport No.   ______________________________ 

2.  Signature    ______________________________ 
 Name     ______________________________
 Address      ______________________________
 CNIC/Passport No.   ______________________________

 ________________________
 Signature

 Rupee five  
 revenue
 stamp

Important:

1. This Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at our Registered Office, not later than 48 hours before the time 
of holding the meeting.

2. A Proxy must be a shareholder of the Company.

149 THATTA CEMENT



2020

202003:00 26

/ CNIC / CNIC

Annual Report 2020 150






	Starting pages
	UNCOSLIDATED - 2020
	COSLIDATED - 2020

